
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA

May 16, 2017

1. 9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

2. 9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

3. 9:10 a.m. Human Services (35 min)

4. 9:45 a.m. Brett Mason, Sheriff (15 min)
a. RE: Montgomery Update

5. 10:00 a.m. Human Resources (10 min)

6. 10:10 a.m. Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health  (10 min)
a. RE: Measles Update

7. 10:20 a.m. Nik Kadel, Ditch Inspector (10 min)
a. RE: County Ditch #60

8. 10:30 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator/Engineer
a. RE: Golf Carts/ATVs on County Highways Discussion
b. RE: TH 112 Bolton & Menk Professional Services Agreement
c. RE: 2017 Bonding - Draft Schedule of Events
d. RE: Resolution to call for CIP, June 6th at 9:00 a.m.
e. RE: Henderson Flood Mitigation Study
f. RE: MnDOT Master Partnership Agreement
g. RE: Subordination Agreement
h. RE: Blighted Properties

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 1 / 138



i. RE: County Credit Card Request for Brent Christian

9. Commissioner Committee Reports

10. Future Meetings

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 2 / 138



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 1

9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 3 / 138



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
May 2, 2017

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, May 2, 2017 
at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: Steve 
Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel, Dave Gliszinski, John King and Joe Connolly. Darrell Pettis and Brent 
Christian were also present.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
agenda for the business of the day.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the consent agenda:

● Approved the April 18, 2017 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes
●Approved a 3.2 On & Off Beer License Renewal for Best Point Resort
●Approved April 2017 Transfers:
#1652 Transfer 9,496.72 from Ditch to Revenue (2012-2016 Postage & Fees)
#1653 Transfer 4,038.00 from Agency to Revenue (April Landshark)

Judge Vandelist swore in Brett Mason, appointed to fill the unexpired term of the County Sheriff 
created by the retirement of David Tietz, effective April 29, 2017.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
claims for Human Services:
Financial:            $  23,177.25
Soc Services:      $  61,295.92

Cindy Westerhouse, Human Resources Director came before the Board with several items for 
discussion and approval.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
accept the Memorandum of Agreement to grant the leave of absence request from Nick Greenig 
from his position as Patrol Sergeant in the Sheriff’s Office, effective April 29, 2017.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board accepted the 
resignation request from Kelly Wroe, full time Accounting/License Clerk in the License 
Bureau/Auditor-Treasurer’s Office, effective May 12, 2017.  Kelly has been employed with Le 
Sueur County since March 2015.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
post and advertise for a full time Accounting/License Clerk in the License Bureau/Auditor-
Treasurer’s Office, as a Grade 7, Step 1 at $19.00 per hour.  

Amy Beatty, Environmental Programs Specialist appeared before the Board with three items for 
consideration and approval.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 4 / 138



On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
2016 Annual County Feedlot Officer Annual Report and Performance Credit Report.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the 2017 - 2018 Solid Waste Licenses and the City Composting/Recycling Facilities as follows:

City Composting Facilities-waive the licensing fee, insurance and bonding requirements.
1. City of Cleveland
2. City of Le Center
3. City of Le Sueur
4. City of Montgomery
5. City of St. Peter – paid the $200 licensing fee.

City Recycling Facilities-waive the licensing fee and bonding requirement.
1. City of Le Center

Township Recycling Facilities
1. Waterville Township

Collection and Transportation of Solid Waste License
1. City of Le Center- 1 truck-waive the licensing fee and bonding requirement
2. Hansen Sanitation, Inc.-Kasota, MN-5 Trucks-$225.00
3. Lakers New Prague Sanitary, Inc-New Prague, MN-4 Trucks-$190.00
4. LJP Enterprises, Inc-St Peter, MN-13 Trucks-$505.00

Recycling Facilities
1. Barnett Brothers, Inc-Kilkenny, MN - $200.00
2. Fessel’s Wood Recycling Services, LLC – Waterville, MN -$200.00
3. Selly Excavating, Inc-Le Center, MN-$200.00

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
SCORE money to help pay for the cost of operating a garbage and recycling facility in 
Waterville Township from October 25, 2016 – April 30, 2017 in the amount of $8,518.97 and 
from May 1, 2017 – April 30, 2018 estimated cost of $15,429 to be paid semi-annually.

Josh Mankowski, Environmental Resources Specialist appeared before the Board with two items 
for approval.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved the use 
of $3,627 of gravel tax funds to be used on the Peterson shoreline project.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the use of gravel tax funds in the amount of $4,500 for the Volkenant rain garden project.

Stacy Lienemann, Director of the Waseca – Le Sueur Regional Library System appeared before 
the Board.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 5 / 138



On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board agreed to send 
letters in support of library services to state and federal legislators.

Administrator Pettis appeared before the Board with several items for discussion and approval.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the Board Chair to sign a Revenue Recapture Service Level Agreement between Le 
Sueur County Probation and the Minnesota Department of Revenue.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Board Chair to sign a Findings and Order Directing Proceedings to 
Reestablish and Correct the Drainage System Record for Le Sueur County Ditch 43.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the Board Chair to sign a Findings and Order Directing Proceedings to Reestablish 
and Correct the Drainage System Record for Le Sueur County Ditch 44.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Board Chair and County Administrator to sign a South Central Transit 
(TRUE) Joint Powers Agreement.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board appointed 
Commissioner King to the South Central Transit (TRUE) Governing Board, with Lance Wetzel 
as an alternate.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved a 
County issued credit card request for Allan Sowieja, Deputy Sheriff.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
change the bid opening date for the Le Sueur Shop to Monday, May 22, 2017 at 1:00 p.m.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved up to 
$15,000 for repairs to be done on Le Sueur – Scott Joint Ditch #4, Branch K.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
open a closed meeting to develop an offer to purchase real property, parcel 20.033.0100 per MN 
Stat. 13D.05 (3) (c) (3).

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
close the closed meeting.

Commissioner Committee Reports:

Commissioners Gliszinski and Connolly attended a County Officials meeting.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 6 / 138



Commissioner King attended a VINE transit meeting.

Commissioner Rohlfing attended a LTDS board meeting and also requested to review the 2017 
Board goals list at the next County board meeting.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the following claims 
were approved for payment:

Warrant # Vendor Name Amount

45099 Bolton & Menk Inc. $  54,401.00
45117 Havel Land Improvement Inc. $    6,037.50
45118 I & S Group Inc. $  31,888.00
45122 Iverson Reuvers LLC $    2,500.00
45125 Le Sueur Co Soil & Water $    4,177.12
45126 Mach Construction LLC $    4,832.70
45132 MN Earthworks LLC $    4,505.00
45135 MN State Auditor $    3,139.40
45142 Pomp’s Tire Service Inc. $    2,194.56
45146 Revize LLC $    2,400.00
45147 Rinke-Noonan Law Firm $  10,184.50
45153 S.E.H. Inc. $  41,070.38
45154 Selly Excavating Inc. $    2,025.00
45159 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $    3,031.93
45174 Tri-County Solid Waste $    9,312.34
45183 Wenck Associates Inc. $    2,787.00

79  Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  27,847.35  
16  Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $184,486.43
95  Total all claims paid: $212,333.78

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned 
until Tuesday, May 16, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 7 / 138



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, May 2, 2017
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us.
●Approved the agenda. (King-Connolly)
●Approved the April 18, 2017 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes, a 3.2 On & Off Beer 
License Renewal for Best Point Resort, and April 2017 Transfers:#1652 Transfer 9,496.72 from Ditch to 
Revenue (2012-2016 Postage & Fees) and #1653 Transfer 4,038.00 from Agency to Revenue (April 
Landshark). (Connolly-Wetzel)
●Judge Vandelist swore in Brett Mason, appointed to fill the unexpired term of the County Sheriff created 
by the retirement of David Tietz, effective April 29, 2017.
●Approved claims for Human Services: Financial: $  23,177.25 and Soc Services: $  61,295.92 
(Gliszinski-Wetzel)
●Approved to accept the Memorandum of Agreement to grant the leave of absence request from Nick 
Greenig from his position as Patrol Sergeant in the Sheriff’s Office. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)
●Accepted the resignation request from Kelly Wroe, full time Accounting/License Clerk in the License 
Bureau/Auditor-Treasurer’s Office. (Connolly-King)
●Approved to post and advertise for a full time Accounting/License Clerk in the License Bureau/Auditor-
Treasurer’s Office. (Gliszinski-Wetzel) 
●Approved the 2016 Annual County Feedlot Officer Annual Report and Performance Credit Report. 
(King-Wetzel)
●Approved the 2017 - 2018 Solid Waste Licenses and the City Composting/Recycling Facilities. 
(Connolly-Gliszinski)
●Approved SCORE money to help pay for the cost of operating a garbage and recycling facility in 
Waterville Township from October 25, 2016 – April 30, 2017 and from May 1, 2017 – April 30, 2018. 
(Wetzel-Gliszinski)
●Approved the use of gravel tax funds to be used on the Peterson shoreline project. (King-Wetzel)
●Approved the use of gravel tax funds to be used on the Volkenant rain garden project. (Connolly-
Gliszinski)
●Agreed to send letters in support of library services to state and federal legislators. (King-Wetzel)
●Approved a Revenue Recapture Service Level Agreement between Le Sueur County Probation and the 
Minnesota Department of Revenue. (King-Connolly)
●Approved a Findings and Order Directing Proceedings to Reestablish and Correct the Drainage System 
Record for Le Sueur County Ditch 43. (Wetzel-Connolly)
●Approved a Findings and Order Directing Proceedings to Reestablish and Correct the Drainage System 
Record for Le Sueur County Ditch 44. (Gliszinski-King)
●Approved a South Central Transit (TRUE) Joint Powers Agreement. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)
●Appointed Commissioner King to the South Central Transit (TRUE) Governing Board, with Lance 
Wetzel as an alternate. (Gliszinski-Connolly)
●Approved a County issued credit card request for Allan Sowieja, Deputy Sheriff. (Connolly-Wetzel)
●Approved to change the bid opening date for the Le Sueur Shop to Monday, May 22, 2017 at 1:00 p.m. 
(King-Wetzel)
●Approved up to $15,000 for repairs to be done on Le Sueur – Scott Joint Ditch #4, Branch K. (King-
Connolly)
●Approved to open a closed meeting to develop an offer to purchase real property, parcel 20.033.0100 per 
MN Stat. 13D.05 (3) (c) (3). (King-Connolly)
●Approved to close the closed meeting. (King-Gliszinski)
●The following claims were approved for payment: (Wetzel-Gliszinski)
Warrant #          Vendor Name                               Amount
45099 Bolton & Menk Inc. $  54,401.00
45117 Havel Land Improvement Inc. $    6,037.50

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 8 / 138

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


45118 I & S Group Inc. $  31,888.00
45122 Iverson Reuvers LLC $    2,500.00
45125 Le Sueur Co Soil & Water $    4,177.12
45126 Mach Construction LLC $    4,832.70
45132 MN Earthworks LLC $    4,505.00
45135 MN State Auditor $    3,139.40
45142 Pomp’s Tire Service Inc. $    2,194.56
45146 Revize LLC $    2,400.00
45147 Rinke-Noonan Law Firm $  10,184.50
45153 S.E.H. Inc. $  41,070.38
45154 Selly Excavating Inc. $    2,025.00
45159 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $    3,031.93
45174 Tri-County Solid Waste $    9,312.34
45183 Wenck Associates Inc. $    2,787.00
79  Claims paid less than $2,000.00:                    $  27,847.35  
16  Claims paid more than $2,000.00:                  $184,486.43
95  Total all claims paid:                                       $212,333.78
●Adjourned until Tuesday, May 16, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. (Connolly-King)
ATTEST:  Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 9 / 138



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 2

9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 10 / 138



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 3

9:10 a.m. Human Services (35 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 11 / 138



Human Services Board Agenda
May 16, 2017 @ 9:15 a.m.

100- INFORMATION/PRESENTATIONS:

 101 –  General Updates and Highlights
 102 – May is MH Awareness Month
 103 – May is Foster Care Month
 104 – UCare back in May 1st for PMAP
 105 – Human Service Performance Management Results (SNAP)
 106 -  Legislative Updates

200- CHARTS/GRAPHS:

 210- Finance Graphs/Report;
 220- Income Maintenance/Child Support Graphs;                                 
 230- Family Services Graphs-
                    231- Social Services Team 

       232- Child Services Team
                   232.1- Out Of Home Placement Report
                   232.2- In-Home Family Therapy Report;
        233- Behavioral Health Team

300- BOARD APPROVAL ITEMS:

310 – Family Housing Assistance Grant Letter of Support (MVAC)
320 – Service Level Agreement – Administration of Revenue Recapture
330 – Greater MN Contract (In-Home Skills)
340 – Amendment for Local Collaborative Time Study Contracts
350 - Commissioner’s Warrants                                             

Department of Human Services
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE          LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057-1646

507-357-2251          FAX 507-357-6122

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 12 / 138



www.mnvac.org                                     FHPAP.Basics for Professionals 8-14-16

B a s i c s  f o r  P r o f e s s i o n a l s
Family Homeless Prevention & Assistance Program (FHPAP)

Rural Housing Assistance & Stabilization Program (RHASP)

MVAC is the service provider for several homelessness prevention programs in South Central Minnesota.  The primary 
programs are FHPAP (Minnesota Housing) and RHASP (HUD).

FHPAP and RHASP provide crisis resolution services and support dollars to 265 households each fiscal year.  Support 
can be utilized to assist with rent and other housing expenses.  Families need to be income eligible (FHPAP—175% of the 
Federal Poverty Guideline, RHASP—200% of the FPG), be homeless or on the verge of homelessness (documentation 
required) and be willing to participate in budgeting and follow up services.  
FHPAP funds are allocated quarterly by county and provides an average of $650/household with a onetime housing 
payment.  
RHASP is a Rapid Re-Housing short term rental assistance program.  If rental assistance is provided for more than 1 
month, the household pays 30% of income towards rent.  RHASP housing costs should be within the Fair Market Rents; a 
safety inspection of the unit is required prior to issuance of funds.  

Households will be screened by MVAC staff using the following criteria to determine eligibility and appropriateness of 
services when funds are available: 

 Live, work or attend school in our 9 county area
 Currently homeless or at imminent risk of losing 

housing the night before enrollment into the program 
(doubled-up situations looked at on case by case 
basis)

 Income eligibility 
 Housing affordability (basic housing costs-rent, 

electricity, gas, etc. less than 60% of net 
income/resources)

 Resolvability of crisis 

 Ability to resolve crisis with their own or with other 
agencies’ resources

 Willingness to participate in follow up services and 
cooperation with past follow up requirements

 Length of time since past enrollments 
 Likelihood that household will be able to maintain 

housing
 Cooperation with Employment Service Programs
 See * for homeless households

*Homeless households are given a vulnerability assessment and added to the Coordinated Entry System Priority List. 
MVAC refers to this list when considering assisting homeless individuals/families.  

When appropriate, households may be required to apply for Emergency Assistance through 
County Human Services prior to receiving assistance through FHPAP or RHASP.

MVAC IS NOT A SHELTER. 
MVAC’s HOMELESS PREVENTION FUNDS CANNOT PAY FOR TEMPORARY HOUSING (HOTELS).  

To apply, persons should contact their local MVAC office to be screened for the above programs.  Income and housing 
crisis documentation are required if the household is enrolled.  

Blue Earth County
507-345-2406

Brown County
507-354-3138

Faribault County
507-526-5291

Le Sueur County
507-357-4246

Martin County
507-238-1663 

Nicollet County
507-934-5224

Sibley County
507-237-2981

Waseca County
507-835-8240

Watonwan County
507-375-5748 

To help eliminate homelessness consider participating in Homeless Response Team meetings.  HRTs are facilitated by 
MVAC staff to bring together professionals and others interested in housing and poverty issues to foster collaboration and 
increase available resources.  Contact the above numbers for meeting information.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 13 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 14 / 138



KHG.FHPAP.App 2017-2019.County Board Approval 4-19-17

Resolution Authorizing Application for

Minnesota Housing and Finance Agency

Family Homelessness Prevention & Assistance Program

WHEREAS, the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency, State of Minnesota, has been authorized to 

undertake a program to provide funds for Family Homelessness Prevention & Assistance 

Program; and,

WHEREAS, the counties in Region 9 have developed an application for the Minnesota Housing 

Finance Agency Family Homelessness Prevention & Assistance Program; and

WHEREAS, Minnesota Valley Action Council has demonstrated the ability to perform the 

required activities of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency Family Homelessness Prevention 

& Assistance Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that Minnesota Valley Action Council is hereby authorized 

as the grantee and administrator of funds made available through the Minnesota Housing Finance 

Agency Family Homelessness Prevention & Assistance Program in the counties of Blue Earth, 

Brown, Faribault, Le Sueur, Martin, Nicollet, Sibley, Waseca and Watonwan, in Minnesota.

I hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the 

_Le Sueur_ County Board of Commissioners at their session on the _16_ day of  May_, 2017, 

and as appears on the minutes of their record of proceedings.

By ________________________

  (authorized officer)

Its ________________________

    (title)

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 15 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 16 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 17 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 18 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 19 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 20 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 21 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 22 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 23 / 138



PURCHASE OF SERVICE AGREEMENT

GREATER MINNESOTA FAMILY SERVICES
AND

Le SUEUR COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT

May 15, 2017 to December 31, 2017

The Le Sueur County Human Service Department, 88 South Park Avenue, Le Centre, 
MN 56057, hereafter referred to as “Department” and the Greater Minnesota Family Services, 
2320 E Hwy 12, Suite 2, Willmar, Minnesota 56201, hereafter referred to as “Contractor”, enter 
into this agreement for the period from May 15, 2017 to December 31, 2017.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Contractor is an organization approved under Minnesota Department of 
Human Services Rule 29,

WHEREAS, the County wished to purchase such program services from the Contractor,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual understandings and agreements set 
forth, the County and the Center agree as follows:

Purchase of Service:
As specified in the Federal Register of January 31, 1977, CFR 45 Part 28 and the Minnesota 
Comprehensive Annual Services Program Plan, the County agrees to purchase and the 
Contractor agrees to furnish the following:

Family Based Services – 
     Family Based Mental Health
     Family Based Counseling
     Family Based Crisis Services
     Group Skills 

County and Insurance Funding Model.  Contractor will provide 1,296 hours of family based 
services (1 F.T.E.).  These positions are serviced by 1 F.T.E. Qualified Mental Health 
Practitioners, qualified to provide mental health practitioner services under the supervision of a 
licensed Qualified Mental Health Professional.   Contractor will accept reimbursement as $63.00 
per hour for the Mental Health Practitioner $88.93 for the Licensed Mental Health Professional, 
$36.84 MHP Group skills and $25.43 group therapy.  All services to Medical Assistance, Prepaid 
Medical Assistance Plan (PMAP), and commercial insurance eligible and severely emotionally 
disturbed, and emotionally disturbed children will be billed to insurance.  Diagnostic 
Assessments will be provided on an as needed basis at the request of the Department.  Diagnostic 
Assessments are $88.93 per unit.  A Service Unit includes one hour of direct and indirect service 
to the client.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 24 / 138



Cost and Delivery of purchased Services: (MA/GAMC and County Funding Model):   

If no clients are eligible for MA/GAMC, PMAP, or commercial insurance, the total cost of the 
Family Based Mental Health, Family Based Counseling and Family Based Crisis Services would 
be $81,648.  Each insurance eligible client with a severe emotional disturbance or emotional 
disturbance will reduce the county’s total costs by billing MA, Prepaid Medical Assistance Plan 
(PMAP), or commercial insurance for all direct client contact and travel time.

Number of Client Cases per FTE Caseload

The Greater Minnesota Family Services Board of Directors has established the maximum 
number of case referrals from the Department, at any given time, shall be twelve client cases for 
1.0 FTE. The range would be six to twelve cases. The Contractor requests that if more cases need 
referral, the Department would refer these clients to other available Family Based staff.

Eligibility for Services: 

The parties understand and agree that the eligibility of the client to receive the Purchased 
Services to be purchased by the Department and furnished by the Contractor is to be determined 
according to the Department.

When the Department has determined that the client is no longer eligible to receive Purchased 
Services from the Contractor, the Department shall so notify the Contractor within five (5) days 
of the determination.

Delivery of Care and Services:

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Contractor shall maintain in all respects its present 
control over and autonomy with respect to:

a. The application of its intake procedures and requirements to clients.
b. The methods, times, means, and personnel for furnishing Purchased Services to eligible 

clients.
c. The determination of when to terminate the furnishing of Purchased Services to eligible 

clients.

Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as requiring the Contractor to provide or continue 
Purchased Services to or for any eligible clients.

Payment for Purchased Services:

a. Certification of Expenditures:  The Contractor shall, within (15) working days following 
the last day of each month submit an invoice to the Department

b. Payment:  The Department shall within thirty (30) days of the date of the receipt of the 
invoice, make payment to the Contractor.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 25 / 138



Audit and Record Disclosures:

The Contractor shall allow personnel of the Department, the Minnesota Department of Human 
Services and the Department of Health to access the Contractor’s records at reasonable hours in 
order to exercise their responsibility to monitor the services.  The Contractor will be compliant 
with National Standards, U.S. Department of Human Services under the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 (HIPAA).

The Consultant agrees to provide assurances that it will comply with Health Information 
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) requirements necessary to protect individual 
identifying health information (IIHI). Use and disclosure will require that IIHI will be:

 Appropriately safeguarded.
 Any misuse of IIHI will be reported.
 Secure satisfactory assurances from any subcontractor.
 Grant individual access and ability to amend their IIHI.
 Make available an accounting of disclosures and release applicable records if requested.
 Upon termination, return or destroy all IIHI in accordance with conventional record 

retention/destruction practices.

Safeguard of Client Information:

The use or disclosure by any party of information concerning an eligible client in violation of 
any rule of confidentiality or for any purpose not directly connected with the administration of 
the Department’s or the Contractor’s responsibility with respect to the Purchased Services 
hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of such eligible client, his/her attorney or 
his/her responsible guardian.

Equal Employment Opportunity and Civil Rights Clause:

The contractor agrees to comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VII (42 USC 2000d) 
including Executive Order NO. 11246 and Title VI (42 USC 2000c).

Fair Hearing and Grievance Procedures:

The contractor agrees that a fair hearing and grievance procedure will be established in 
conformance with and in conjunctions with the Fair Hearing and Grievance Procedures 
established, developed and provided by the Minnesota Department of Human Services.

Bonding, Indemnity and Insurance Clause:

a. Bonding:  The Contractor shall obtain and maintain at all times, during the terms of 
agreement, a fidelity bond covering the activities of its personnel authorized to receive or 
distribute monies in the amount of $500,000.

b. Indemnity:  The Contractor does hereby agree that it will at all times hereafter, during the 
existence of this agreement, indemnify and hold harmless the Department from any and 
all liability, loss, damages, costs or expenses which may be claimed against the 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 26 / 138



Department or the Contractor (1) by reason of any service client’s suffering personal 
injury, death or property loss or damages either while participating in or receiving from 
the Contractor the care and services to be furnished by the Contractor under this 
agreement or while on premises owned, leased or operated by the Contractor or while 
being transported to or from said premises in any vehicle owned, operated, leased, 
chartered or otherwise contracted by the Contractor or any officer, agent or employee 
thereof; or (2) by reason of any service client’s causing injury to, or damage to, property 
of another person during any time when the Contractor or any officer, agent or employee 
thereof has undertaken or is furnishing the care and services called for under this 
agreement. 

c. Insurance:  The Contractor does further agree that, in order to protect itself as well as the 
Department under the indemnity agreement provision hereinabove set forth, it will at all 
times during the term of this agreement have and keep in force a liability insurance policy 
in the amount of $3,000,000.

The Contractor certifies that the services to be provided under this agreement are not 
available without cost to eligible clients.  The Contractor further certified that payment for 
Purchased Services will be in accordance with rates of payment, which do not exceed 
amounts reasonable and necessary to assure quality or service.  (If services are being 
purchased from another public agency, the rate of payment shall be adjusted to the actual cost 
of the service.)

Conditions of the Parties’ Obligation:

a. It is understood and agreed that in the event the reimbursement to the Department from 
the state and federal sources is not obtained and continued an aggregate level sufficient to 
allow for the purchase of the indicated quantity of Purchased Services, the obligations of 
each party hereunder shall thereupon be terminated.

b. This agreement may be cancelled by either party at any time, with or without cause, upon 
thirty (30) day notice, in writing, delivered by mail or in person.

c. Before termination date specified in Section 1 of this agreement, the Department may 
evaluate the performance of the Contractor in regard to the terms of this agreement to 
determine whether such performance merits renewal of this agreement.

d. Any alterations, variations, modifications or waivers of provision of this agreement shall 
be valid only when they have been reduced to writing duly signed and attached to the 
original of this agreement.

e. No claims for services furnished by the Contractor not specifically provided in this 
agreement will be allowed by the Department nor shall the Contractor do any work or 
furnish any material not covered by the agreement, unless this is approved in writing by 
the Department.  Such approval shall be considered to be a modification of the 
agreement.

f. In the event that there is a revision of federal regulations, which make this agreement 
ineligible for federal financial participation, all parties will review the agreement and 
renegotiate those items necessary to bring the agreement into compliance with the new 
federal regulations.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 27 / 138



g. The Contractor agrees to establish written procedures for discharging a person or 
terminating services to a person.  These written procedures shall include:  notification of 
the case manager, person to be discharged, the person’s parent, or legal guardian prior to 
the termination of services, assistance in developing or securing alternative services and 
assuring a smooth transition to other services, the review and approval of the proposed 
action by the interdisciplinary team, and other procedures as agreed by the Contractor and 
the Agency.

Subcontracting:

The Contractor shall not enter into subcontracts from any of the work contemplate under this 
agreement without written approval of the Department.  All subcontracts shall be subject to the 
requirements of this contract.  The Contractor shall be responsible for the performance of any 
subcontractor.

Miscellaneous:

Entire Agreement:  It is understood and agreed that the entire agreement of the parties is 
contained herein; and that this agreement supersedes all oral agreements and negotiations 
between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof, as well as any previous agreements 
presently in effect between the Contractor and any county family service department(s) relating 
to the subject matter hereof.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 28 / 138



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Department and the Contractor have executed this agreement as 
of the day and year first above written.

Signature________________________ ______________________
Thomas Belcher, C.F.O. Date Signed
Greater Minnesota Family Services

Signature________________________ ______________________
Susan Rynda, Director Date Signed
Le Sueur County Human Services

_______________________________ ______________________
Chairperson, Date Signed
Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND EXECUTION

_______________________________ ______________________
County Attorney Date Signed

An Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Employer

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 29 / 138



1 
 

AMENDMENT FOR LOCAL COLLABORATIVE TIME STUDY CONTRACTS 

 

Amendment Number 1 to ONK%122765-HH 

Contract Start Date: 7/1/2017  

Original Contract Expiration Date: 6/30/2022  

Current Contract Expiration Date: 6/30/2017 

 

This amendment is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Department of Human 
Services (hereinafter STATE) and Le Sueur County, Minnesota acting through its Human Services 
Department, 88 S. Park Ave, Le Center, MN 56057 (hereinafter COUNTY) related to Local 
Collaborative Time Study contract number ONK%122765-HH 

 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, STATE and COUNTY are engaged in Local Collaborative Time Study contract 
ONK%122765-HH; 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that section 5.8, Affirmative Action, of the Original Contract 
does not apply to counties; and 

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed that section 5.8 should, therefore, should be stricken.  

Therefore, the parties agree that: 

Contract Amendment 

In this Amendment, changes to Original Contract language will use strike through for deletions and 
underlining for insertions. 

Therefore, the parties agree that: 

REVISION 1: Article 5, “General Provisions”, section 5.8., Affirmative Action, only is stricken in 
its entirety and it is not replaced, as follows.  Original Contract sections 5.1. through 5.7. in Article 5 
remain unchanged.   

Section 5.8. Affirmative Action. The COUNTY certifies that it has received a certificate of compliance 
from the Commissioner of Human Rights pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, section 363.073. This 
section shall not apply if the amount of funds distributed pursuant to the contract is less than 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 30 / 138



2 
 

$50,000 where the COUNTY has not employed more than twenty full-time employees at any time 
during the previous 12 months. 

REVISION 2: Article 5, “General Provisions”, sections 5.9 through 5.11 are re-numbered as follows: 

Section 5.89. Purchase of equipment. The COUNTY shall obtain the STATE’s approval before 
purchasing an information management system or any equipment to support an information 
management system using LCTS funds.  
 
Section 5.910. Ownership of equipment. (When applicable) Disposition of all equipment purchased 
pursuant to this contract shall be in accordance with Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations, part 74, 
subpart C. For all equipment having a unit acquisition of $5,000.00 or more, the STATE shall have 
the right to require transfer of the equipment (including title) to the Federal government or to an 
eligible non-Federal party named by the STATE. This right will normally be exercised by the 
STATE only if the project or program for which the equipment was acquired is transferred from one 
COUNTY to another.  
 
Section 5.1011. Federal audit requirements and COUNTY debarment information. COUNTY 
certifies it will comply with the Single Audit Act, CFR Part 75 (formerly OMB Circulars including 
A-128 and OMB Circular A-133), as applicable. Failure to comply with these requirements could 
result in forfeiture of federal funds. 

EXCEPT AS AMENDED HEREIN, THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT AND ALL 
PREVIOUS AMENDMENTS REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. 

 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Signature Page Follows 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 31 / 138



 

3 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this grant contract to be duly executed intending to be 
bound thereby. 

APPROVED:

1. COUNTY – LE SUEUR COUNTY  
HUMAN SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT   

 
By: __________________________________ 
 
 
Title: ________________________________ 
 
 
Date: ________________________________ 
 
 
I certify that the signatory for the  
COUNTY have the lawful authority to  
bind the COUNTY to the terms of this  
contract. 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
      County Attorney 
 
 

2. MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT  
               OF HUMAN SERVICES 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Title: Director, Financial Operations Division 
 
 
Date: __________________________________ 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 32 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 33 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 34 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 35 / 138



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 4

9:45 a.m. Brett Mason, Sheriff (15 min)

RE: Montgomery Update

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 36 / 138



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 5

10:00 a.m. Human Resources (10 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 37 / 138



Equal Opportunity Employer

HUMAN RESOURCES
AGENDA ITEMS
May 16, 2017

Recommendation to hire Katie Vrzal as a full time Administrative 
Assistant II – Legal Assistant in the County Attorney’s Office as a Grade 
4, Step 1 at $15.97 per hour, effective May 17, 2017.   

Recommendation to hire Jeremy Swenson as a part time Corrections 
Officer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office as a Grade 6, Step 1 at $17.94 
per hour, effective May 16, 2017.   

Recommendation to promote Jim Whiteis to a full time Investigator in 
the Sheriff’s Office, as a Grade 11, Step 10 at $32.90 per hour, effective 
July 2017.  

Recommendation to hire Richard Droog as a full time Deputy Sheriff in 
the Sheriff’s Office as a Grade 10, Step 6 at $27.06 per hour, effective 
May 16, 2017.  

Recommendation to grant regular status to Bryan Tupy, full time 
Corrections Officer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office, effective May 15, 
2017.  

88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607

Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director

Human Resources

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 38 / 138



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 6

10:10 a.m. Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health  (10 min)

RE: Measles Update

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 39 / 138



PRESS RELEASE

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: May 15, 2017

Contact: Cindy Shaughnessy, Director 
Le Sueur County Public Health
Phone 507-357-8246   Email cshaughnessy@co.le-sueur.mn.us

Measles cases confirmed in Le Sueur County

The Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) has confirmed two cases of measles in Le Sueur County. 
These are the first confirmed measles cases in south central Minnesota in 2017. The confirmed cases are 
unvaccinated children under the age of five. The children have not required hospitalization and are 
recovering at home.

MDH investigates how individuals become infected, identifies people known to be exposed, monitors 
them for symptoms and informs them of recommended protective actions. Health officials continue to 
monitor individuals across the state and update the MDH website regularly with case statistics (see link 
below).

"Le Sueur County Public Health is working closely with MDH to ensure coordination of resources and 
information," says Cindy Shaughnessy, RN, PHN, and Director of Le Sueur County Public Health. "We 
are working collaboratively with MDH and other partners including the South Central Healthcare 
Coalition and Emergency Management to make sure people have accurate and up to date information 
regarding the measles outbreak.”

Measles is a highly contagious disease caused by a virus. It is no longer common in the United States due 
to high immunization levels. Symptoms include a high fever, cough, runny nose and watery eyes 
followed by a rash that typically spreads from the head to the rest of the body.  A person with measles can 
pass it on to others 4 days before the rash appears to 4 days after it appears.  Measles spreads easily by 
coughing, sneezing or even being in the same room with someone who has the illness. Measles can be a 
serious disease that can lead to hospitalization and even death.

Le Sueur County Public Health officials are encouraging people to check their immunization records to 
make sure they are vaccinated.  Measles can spread very easily among unvaccinated people, so the best 
way to protect yourself and your community is to make sure everyone who is able receives the measles, 
mumps and rubella or MMR vaccine.  You may request vaccination records by calling the MN 
Immunization Information Connection (MIIC) Record Request Line at 651-201-3980.

MDH is recommending an “accelerated” vaccination schedule for children and adolescents of the two 
dose MMR series in counties with a confirmed case of measles.  Children (12 months and older) and 
adolescents should have 2 doses of MMR.  The first dose is given at 12 months, and with the accelerated 
schedule can by followed by a second dose 28 days later.  Contact your health care provider for additional 
guidance.  People who need to be vaccinated should contact their health care provider.

For more information about measles, visit the MDH website at 

http://www.health.state.mn.us/divs/idepc/diseases/measles/index.html 

There is also a link on the Le Sueur County website at http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/ 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 40 / 138

mailto:cshaughnessy@co.le-sueur.mn.us
http://www.health.state.mn.us/divs/idepc/diseases/measles/index.html
http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


 

 Revised 5/12/2017 | Page 1 of 2 

Measles Outbreak Vaccination Guidance  
▪ During the current measles outbreak, MMR vaccination recommendations vary based on the location and age of the patient. 
▪ Assess measles immune status for every patient at every visit, regardless of age. 
▪ Recall children and adolescents age 12 months and older whom have not received the first dose of MMR, as resources allow. 
▪ Before giving a MMR vaccine, check MIIC records and ask parents whether any vaccines have been administered in the previous 4 weeks to ensure no MMR 

doses are administered less than 28 days from previous MMR, varicella or MMRV. If a parent-reported vaccination is not found in MIIC, verify administration 
by requesting documentation from the parent or administering clinic. Provide patients with written documentation of vaccines administered. 

 6 months to less than 12 months 12 months and older 

Exposed to measles1  
(Persons notified by public health officials or health care facilities as having been exposed to measles) 

Received Post-Exposure Prophylaxis1 Do not administer MMR at this time Determine Post-Exposure Prophylaxis received to 
guide MMR vaccination needs 

Did not receive Post-Exposure Prophylaxis ▪ Administer MMR if there is any concern for 
ongoing measles exposure2, 3 

▪ For all others, no early MMR vaccination 
recommended4 

Accelerate the two-dose MMR series if there is 
any concern for ongoing measles exposure3, 5 

Not exposed to measles 

Children and adolescents of a county in which a 
measles case has been reported in the previous 42 days  

Do not administer MMR at this time Accelerate the two-dose MMR series5 

Somali Minnesotan children and adolescents, 
regardless of county of residence 

Do not administer MMR at this time Accelerate the two-dose MMR series5 

All other Minnesotans Do not administer MMR at this time Consider acceleration of the two-dose MMR 
series OR follow the recommended immunization 
schedule for age-appropriate vaccination5 

1Individuals with the highest risk of exposure have been notified, and post-exposure prophylaxis has been provided if able. 
2This early MMR dose will not count toward the two recommended doses due at 12-15 months and 4-6 years. 
3 Those currently recognized as at an “increased risk for ongoing exposure” include persons previously informed of exposure who are residents of counties in which a measles 
case has been reported in the previous 42 days and/or Somali Minnesotans. 
4Early MMR is not necessary if beyond post-exposure prophylaxis window period and not at a recognized increased risk for ongoing exposure. PEP consists of either 
administering MMR within 72 hours of exposure or administering immune globulin within 6 days of exposure.  
5Administer the first dose of MMR on (or as soon as possible after) the first birthday, followed by a second dose 28 days later. Administer the second MMR dose now if it has 
been at least 28 days since the first MMR dose and no other live virus injectable vaccines (i.e., varicella vaccine, MMRV) have been administered in the past 28 days. MMRV is 
approved for children 12 months through 12 years of age (until the 13th birthday), and may be used for the second dose, depending on supply. Ensure that adults born in 1957 or 
after have at least one documented MMR. 
  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 41 / 138



M E A S L E S  O U T B R E A K  V A C C I N A T I O N  G U I D A N C E  

Vaccine Preventable Disease Section 
651-201-5414 | www.health.state.mn.us Revised 5/12/2017 | Page 1 of 2 

General considerations 
▪ The minimum interval between doses of MMR is 28 days. 
▪ Do not give MMR to persons who are pregnant or immunosuppressed. For a complete list of contraindications and precautions, see CDC’s Contraindications 

and Precautions (www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/acip-recs/general-recs/contraindications.html).    
▪ MMR vaccination given within 72 hours of exposure to measles virus may provide some protection against disease. If given during the pre-symptomatic or 

prodromal stage of illness MMR does not increase the risk for vaccine-associated adverse events. 
▪ If a patient received intramuscular immune globulin (IMIG) or intravenous immune globulin (IVIG) as post-exposure prophylaxis, they should wait to receive 

MMR, varicella, or MMRV. For IMIG they should wait 6 months, and for IVIG they should wait 8 months. For more information, see CDC’s Recommended 
intervals between administration of immune globulin preparations and measles- or varicella-containing vaccine 
(www.cdc.gov/vaccines/pubs/pinkbook/downloads/appendices/a/mmr_ig.pdf). 

▪ Adults born before 1957:   
▪ Most adults born before 1957 are considered immune to measles. 
▪ Health care personnel born before 1957 are typically considered immune to measles. However, ACIP recommends that unvaccinated health care 

workers born before 1957 who lack laboratory evidence of measles immunity (see below) receive 2 doses of MMR vaccine separated by at least 28 days.  
▪ Adults born in 1957 or later: 

▪ These adults should have either laboratory evidence of measles immunity or documentation of at least one live measles or MMR vaccine administered 
after the person turned 1 year old. 
▪ If adults cannot provide documentation or if the documentation is unclear regarding what type of measles vaccine (inactivated or live) was 

administered, it is recommended that they receive an MMR.  
▪ Documented measles vaccination from 1968 to present in the United States would have been with a live measles vaccine.  

▪ Health care workers, students in post-high school educational institutions, or international travelers should have two documented vaccinations with a 
live measles (for example, MMR vaccine) separated by at least 28 days and administered after the person turned 1 year old. 

▪ Laboratory evidence of measles immunity includes:  
▪ Laboratory evidence of measles immunoglobulin G (IgG) - equivocal results should be considered negative.  
▪ Laboratory confirmation of measles disease. 

NOTE: In the event that a health care worker who has 2 documented doses of MMR vaccine is tested serologically and determined to have negative or 
equivocal measles titer results, it is not recommended that the person receive an additional dose of MMR vaccine. Such persons should be considered to have 
presumptive evidence of measles immunity. 

▪ Health care providers should not accept verbal reports of vaccination without written documentation as presumptive evidence of immunity. For additional 
details about evidence of immunity criteria, see Prevention of Measles, Rubella, Congenital Rubella Syndrome, and Mumps, 2013: Summary 
Recommendations of the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP). Table 3. Acceptable presumptive evidence of immunity to measles, rubella, 
and mumps (https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/rr6204a1.htm#Tab3)  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 42 / 138

http://www.health.state.mn.us/
http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/acip-recs/general-recs/contraindications.html
http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/acip-recs/general-recs/contraindications.html
http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/acip-recs/general-recs/contraindications.html
http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/pubs/pinkbook/downloads/appendices/a/mmr_ig.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/pubs/pinkbook/downloads/appendices/a/mmr_ig.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/pubs/pinkbook/downloads/appendices/a/mmr_ig.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/rr6204a1.htm#Tab3
https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/rr6204a1.htm#Tab3
https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/rr6204a1.htm#Tab3


 
VACCINE-PREVENTABLE DISEASE SECTION 

(04/2016) Page 1 of 2 
 

Measles (Rubeola) 
What is measles? 
Measles, also called rubeola, is a very 
contagious disease caused by a virus. Because 
of high immunization levels, measles is no 
longer common in the United States. But it is 
still common in many other countries and may 
be brought into the U.S. by unvaccinated 
travelers. Keeping our measles immunization 
levels high is critical to preventing measles 
outbreaks. 

What are the symptoms of 
measles? 
▪ Rash AND 
▪ Fever AND 
▪ Cough OR runny nose OR watery/mattering 

eyes  

Symptoms appear about eight to 12 days after a 
person is exposed to measles. The first 
symptom is usually fever. The rash usually 
appears 2 to 3 days after the fever begins and 
lasts 5 to 6 days. The rash begins at the hairline, 
moves to the face and upper neck and then 
down the body. 

If you or your child has 
symptoms of measles, what 
should you do? 
Be sure to stay at home and avoid having 
visitors until you have talked with your doctor 
or clinic. Your doctor or clinic will tell you if you 
should come in for a visit. 

How serious is measles? 
Measles can be a serious disease that can lead 
to hospitalization and even death.  

Many people with measles have complications 
like diarrhea, ear infections, pneumonia, or 
acute encephalitis (a brain infection that can 
lead to permanent brain damage). 
Complications are more common in children 
under 5 years of age and adults older than 20.  

Measles during pregnancy increases the risk of 
premature labor, miscarriage, and low birth 
weight infants. 

Measles can be especially severe in persons 
whose immune systems are weak. 

How does measles spread? 
Measles is spread through the air when people 
who have it breathe and cough. It is highly 
contagious. 

You cannot get measles more than once, 
because after you have had it you are immune. 

How long is a person with 
measles contagious? 
A person with measles can pass it to others 
from 4 days before their rash appears to 4 days 
after it appears. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 43 / 138



M E A S L E S  ( R U B E O L A )  

(04/2016) Page 2 of 2 
 

Is there a treatment for 
measles? 
No, there is no specific treatment for measles. 
People with measles need bed rest, fluids, and 
control of fever. They may also need treatment 
for complications such as diarrhea, ear 
infection, or pneumonia. 

Is there a vaccine for measles? 
Yes. The measles vaccination is usually 
combined with mumps and rubella (MMR). 

▪ Children get MMR doses at 12-15 months 
and at 4-6 years of age; the second MMR 
may be given as soon as a month after the 
first dose. 

▪ An early dose of MMR is recommended for 
children 6-12 months of age who will be 
traveling internationally or where outbreaks 
are occurring.  

▪ Adults who have not had measles or 
measles vaccine should receive one dose of 
MMR vaccine, particularly if they were born 
in 1957 or later. 

▪ Students (including college students), 
health care workers, and international 
travelers need to have received two doses 
of MMR vaccine, if they have not, they 
should get vaccinated.  

▪ Talk to your health care provider if you have 
questions about what vaccines you or your 
child needs. 

If you or your child has been 
exposed to measles, what 
should you do? 
▪ Call your doctor or clinic right away. They 

will let you know if you need to come in for 
a visit.    

▪ If you have not been vaccinated, getting an 
MMR shot within 3 days of being exposed 
may prevent them from getting measles.  

▪ If you get a shot of immune globulin (a 
blood product with antibodies to the 
measles virus) within 6 days of being 
exposed to measles, it may prevent or 
lessen the severity of measles. 

What if there is a case of 
measles in a school or other 
setting (e.g., summer camp, 
child care, worksite, clinic)? 
MDH and the local health departments would 
work with the setting to identify individuals 
who may have been exposed, assess their 
immunity to measles, and recommend post-
exposure prophylaxis as needed for that 
particular situation. 

Vaccine-Preventable Disease Section 
PO Box 64975  
St. Paul, MN 55164-0975 
651-201-5414 or 1-877-676-5414 
www.health.state.mn.us/immunize  

To obtain this information in a different format, call: 
651-201-5414.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 44 / 138

http://www.health.state.mn.us/immunize


Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 7

10:20 a.m. Nik Kadel, Ditch Inspector (10 min)

RE: County Ditch #60

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 45 / 138



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 8

10:30 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator/Engineer

RE: Golf Carts/ATVs on County Highways Discussion

RE: TH 112 Bolton & Menk Professional Services Agreement

RE: 2017 Bonding - Draft Schedule of Events

RE: Resolution to call for CIP, June 6th at 9:00 a.m.

RE: Henderson Flood Mitigation Study

RE: MnDOT Master Partnership Agreement

RE: Subordination Agreement

RE: Blighted Properties

RE: County Credit Card Request for Brent Christian

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 46 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 47 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 48 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 49 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 50 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 51 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 52 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 53 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 54 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 55 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 56 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 57 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 58 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 59 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 60 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  1 of 12 

 

SCOPE OF WORK AND DELIVERABLES 

Trunk Highway 112 Turnback Project 

 

 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

 
This scope of services is for preliminary and final design for the rehabilitation and reconstruction of State 

Highway 112 located in Le Sueur County from the northbound entrance ramp at TH 169 through the City of Le 

Sueur to the intersection of County Road 115 (356th Street).  Funding for the project construction has been 

designated through the State Highway Jurisdictional Transfer Program to utilize State Turnback Funds for fiscal 

year 2020.  Additional funding is anticipated through the Municipal 429 special assessment process for City 

owned infrastructure improvements.  The project is anticipated to include the following elements: 

 

Project Elements: 

• Rehabilitation of MN 112 (Main/Commerce Street) from the interchange of TH 169 to intersection 

of State Highway 93 (Bridge Street) 

• Reconstruction of MN 112 from State Highway 93 (Bridge Street) through the intersection of 

County Road 115 (356th Street) 

• Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Improvements 

• Storm Sewer and Drainage Improvements 

• Traffic Data Collection and Analysis at six controlled intersections and two pedestrian crossings 

• Visual Quality “Streetscape” and Lighting Improvements 

• ADA Upgrades 

 

This contract will include, but is not limited to, overall project management of the preliminary and final design 

consisting of public and agency involvement, existing field surveys, geotechnical evaluation, environmental site 

assessment and documentation, traffic collection and analysis, utility coordination and relocation plans, hydraulic 

analysis, roadway geometrics and construction limits, right-of-way impacts, permits, staging and traffic control 

plans, and development of final plans and bidding documents. 

 

1.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 

Bolton & Menk will provide accurate and timely administrative and coordination services as necessary for 

the duration of the project. 

 

1.1 Project Administration and Coordination 

1.1.1 Weekly Phone/E-mail/Informal Meetings: Bolton & Menk will ensure effective 

coordination and communication with Le Sueur County and the City of Le Sueur 

throughout the project.  To facilitate this, we will remain in contact with the County’s 

project manager and City Engineer on an as needed basis, daily if necessary. 

1.1.2 Monthly Budget & Billing: Invoices will be accompanied by a cover letter explaining 

the general status of the project; including at a minimum the work completed to date; the 

anticipated remaining efforts and required schedule changes; and a progress report form. 

 

Deliverables:  Prepare and submit monthly progress and invoice reports. 

 

1.2 Work Plan and Schedule 
Bolton & Menk will prepare and maintain a refined work plan (scope of work, budget, and schedule) 

based on ongoing discussions with the County and City.  

 

Deliverables: Submit refined work plan (scope, budget and schedule) on a monthly basis, at a 

minimum. 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 61 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  2 of 12 

1.3 Kick-off Meeting 
The Kick-off meeting will be held with County and City staff to relay information and to get a start 

on this project. 

 

Deliverables: Schedule and facilitate meeting.  Prepare meeting agenda, displays, and minutes. 

 

1.4 Project Management Team Meetings 
Bolton & Menk will facilitate a Project Management Team (PMT) that will consist of representatives 

from the County Public Works staff, City of Le Sueur Community Development, City of Le Sueur 

Engineering, Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) State Aid Office, and other 

stakeholders identified by the PMT.  PMT representatives will participate in the PMT meetings to 

ensure their respective department’s interest is represented in the preliminary planning and final 

design process.  The primary purpose of this work group will be to make design-related 

recommendations that can be supported by city, county, and state staff and elected officials, enabling 

continued progress on the project development.  We have assumed a total of 9 PMT meetings; 18 

month schedule for the preliminary design and a total of 18 PMT meetings; 18-month schedule for 

the final design. 

 

Deliverables: Schedule and facilitate meetings.  Prepare meeting agenda, displays, and minutes. 

 

2.0 PUBLIC & AGENCY INVOLVEMENT 

 

Bolton & Menk will provide staff and technical project information and displays for use during public 

meetings, we will also provide coordination for public, agency, and stakeholder involvement meetings. 

Tasks will include scheduling meetings, preparing meeting notices, coordinating venues, and bringing 

required meeting supplies (name tags, sign-in sheets, etc.).  

 

2.1 Project Newsletter and News Releases 
Bolton & Menk will develop newsletters (up to six for bi-annual distribution) and prepare press 

releases prior to each of the three public information meetings for the project.  The newsletters will 

be concise and easy-to-read, with current information and meeting announcements.  Bolton & Menk 

will work with the County and City to determine appropriate news media and establish an 

appropriate news organization for the project. 

 

Deliverables: Prepare newsletters and press releases, which will be sent electronically or, if 

requested, as printed copies. 

 

2.2 Public Information Meetings 
Public Information Meetings will be scheduled at approximately 12 month intervals over 36 months 

(for up to three or more as agreed upon) for the overall project plus one for each neighborhood and 

business district based on the project scope of rehabilitation or reconstruction (for a total of two 

neighborhood/business information meetings).  If desired, Bolton & Menk can also use electronic 

means to reach an expanded group of local residents and businesspersons.   

 

2.2.1 Public Information Meeting #1 – Preliminary design phase to present recommended 

geometric layout, construction limits, and ROW impacts. 

2.2.2 Public Information Meeting #2 – Final design phase to present proposed construction 

staging, construction schedule, and traffic impacts. 

2.2.3 Public Information Meeting #3 – After bid award and prior to start of construction with 

purpose to prepare stakeholders for upcoming construction impacts, staging, schedule, 

traffic impacts, and community engagement. 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 62 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  3 of 12 

2.2.4 Neighborhood Information Meeting #1 – Preliminary or final design phase to discuss 

area specific improvements and project details related to the rehabilitation portion of the 

project. 

2.2.5 Neighborhood Information Meeting #2 – Preliminary or final design phase to discuss 

area specific improvements and project details related to the reconstruction portion of 

the project. 

 

Deliverables: Prepare meeting announcements, agendas, exhibits, and provide a written summary for 

each of the five public information meetings. 

 

2.3 Exhibits and Layouts 
Our team will put forth extra effort in presenting technical project information in formats that can be 

easily understood by non-technical stakeholders.  These will include graphically enhanced typical 

corridor sections and plan views.   

 

Deliverables: Development of branded project graphics and signature materials for distribution 

through print and electronic media. 

 

2.4 Property Owner Meetings 
It is anticipated, based on past project experience that meetings with individual property owners or 

other stakeholders who wish to meet privately with consultants will be desired.  We propose to host 

up to 20 property owner meetings to discuss potentially sensitive issues that are best vetted outside a 

public domain.  The results of the meetings would be shared with the County and City and 

paraphrased for the PMT meetings. 

 

Deliverables: Schedule and facilitate meetings.  Provide written summary. 

 

2.5 Project Website 
Bolton & Menk will develop a project website to host project information and interim/final 

deliverables, related links, useful information (such as photography of examples) and to receive 

email comments from interested persons. The project website will be used to solicit persons 

interested in being placed on a mailing list for newsletters and press releases.  The use of social 

media project sites (Facebook and Twitter) can be explored at the request of the project team.  

 

Deliverables: Develop and maintain the administrative functions of the site and control inappropriate 

submissions while facilitating productive dialog and information exchange. 

 

2.6 Agency Involvement 
2.6.1 City Council/County Board Meetings: Bolton & Menk will prepare for and attend four 

City Council and/or County Board meetings.  The content and timing of the meeting will 

be at the discretion of the County and City. 

2.6.2 Regulatory Agency Meetings: Bolton & Menk will prepare for and attend two meetings 

in the Project Area with agencies, such as Minnesota Department of Transportation 

(MnDOT), Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (MnDNR), Minnesota Pollution 

Control Agency (MPCA), Army Corps of Engineers (COE), and any others that have 

concerns with potential impacts of the project.  The first meeting is intended, at the onset 

of the project, to identify any concerns of the agencies about potential project impacts 

and to seek their inputs for addressing such concerns.  The second meeting is intended 

for Bolton & Menk to report on how the concerns identified were addressed.  

 
Deliverables: Schedule and attend meetings. Prepare meeting agenda, displays, and minutes. 

 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 63 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  4 of 12 

3.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS  

 
Bolton & Menk will perform sufficient data collection, field studies, and analysis to provide a framework 

for design.  

 

3.1 Data Collection 
Our team will conduct initial project set-up and control by conducting data collection that includes 

but is not limited to: electronic project area aerial photos and mosaic mapping, comprehensive 

planning documents and transportation plans, regulatory agency requirements, existing public and 

private utilities per City, County and State records, and existing right of way drawings and plats. 

 

Deliverables: Comprehensive document research file, including requested data clarification on 

unclear items or apparent conflicting data. 

 

3.2 Private Utility Coordination 

We will request and compile both private and public utility record drawings for the corridor.  

Experience on similar projects has shown a great success when utility owners are involved in the 

preliminary design phase rather than waiting for the final design phase. To accomplish this, we will 

coordinate the following: 

3.2.1 Design Locate Ticket Request: A Minnesota Gopher State One Call (GSOC) will be 

made by Bolton & Menk to verify the locations of existing utilities according to a design 

or field locate as necessary. 

3.2.2 Utility Information Meeting: We will coordinate and host a utility information or 

preliminary design meeting to expose and solicit feedback from the utility stakeholders.  

This level of involvement will minimize the number of surprises encountered during 

final design. 

   

Deliverables: Comprehensive utility owners contact list and utility base map. 

 

3.3 Topographic Survey 

Bolton & Menk will complete a comprehensive topographic survey within the designated project 

area to supplement digital mapping provided by the County and City and provide complete and 

accurate base mapping to be used for preliminary roadway and corridor design. 

 

3.3.1 Surface Topography: A topographic survey will be performed and accurately identify all 

the above ground improvements in the project area through an elevation .tin file. 

 

3.3.2 Water Main and Sanitary Sewer Topography: A topographic survey will be performed 

and accurately identify all hydrants, valves, manholes (including visual assessment of 

condition), water main mainline and services, and sanitary mainline and services. 

 
3.3.3 Storm Sewer Topography: A topographic survey will be performed and accurately 

identify all catch basins and manholes (including visual assessment of condition), and 

mainline storm sewer. 

 

Deliverables: A comprehensive topographic file and digital terrain model prepared in AutoCAD 

Civil 3D, and sanitary sewer and storm sewer manhole reports. 

 

3.4 Existing Right-of-Way and Easements 

We will acquire documentation of right of way boundaries, which exist per recorded legal documents 

by searching the records of the County Recorder and Register of Titles.  An initial base map will be 

generated from this research and will be modified, as appropriate, to reflect found monumentation 

when completing the topographic survey. 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 64 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  5 of 12 

Deliverables: A final base map of the project corridor. 

 

3.5 Coordinate Geotechnical Evaluation 

Bolton & Menk will coordinate with a geotechnical consulting firm for all geotechnical exploration 

and evaluation services.  Typical preliminary evaluation techniques for this project will include 

either solid-stem auger borings or penetration test borings along the project corridor spaced at 1,000 

foot intervals for approximately 23 total borings.  In addition, both Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) 

and Falling Weight Deflectometer (FWD) will be utilized to evaluate existing pavement conditions 

throughout the entire project corridor.  The GPR will provide pavement section thickness data in one 

foot increments, resulting in tremendous detail in pavement thickness variations.  The FWD, used in 

tandem with the GPR, will help evaluate composite (including aggregate) pavement section strength 

characteristics, the traffic it can support and what pavement preservation or improvement techniques 

such as an overlay or reconstruction is necessary to provide for future traffic needs. 

 

Deliverables: Preliminary Geotechnical Report to include: boring logs, subsurface profile, R-values, 

and pavement design recommendations. 

 

3.6 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) 
Bolton & Menk will coordinate with a consulting firm for the completion of a Limited Phase I ESA.  

This type of assessment is recommended during preliminary design and will include a regulatory 

search report, which is a compilation of records of facilities that are included on current federal and 

state environmental regulatory databases.  The regulatory report for the Phase I ESA will search 

databases that have been established by ASTM Practice E 1527-05. In general, the databases will be 

searched to a distance of one-quarter mile from the approximate corridor centerline. Along with the 

regulatory search, a historical records review including review of historical topographic maps, aerial 

photographs, and fire insurance maps will be performed to determine historical uses of the corridor.  

Finally, a site reconnaissance will be performed to observe current uses of properties along the 

corridor and the potential for environmental impacts. Interview of project personnel and/or properties 

owners may also be conducted at this time.  

 

Results of the regulatory search, historical records review, and site reconnaissance and interviews 

will be summarized within a Limited Phase I ESA report, including ranking all identified properties 

within the corridor as having a high, medium, or low potential for contamination based on criteria 

established by Mn/DOT.  Results of the Phase I ESA will be discussed with the project team and 

whether any sites identified in the Phase I ESA present “Recognized Environmental Conditions” 

(RECs) and, therefore, may adversely impact the project. 

 

Deliverables: Final Limited Phase I Environmental Site Assessment report. 

 

4.0 TRAFFIC STUDY 

 
Bolton & Menk will evaluate existing and near-term corridor capacity and safety needs and prepare traffic 

control and geometric design recommendations for project construction in 2020. 

 

4.1 Data Collection 
Our team will work to collect and analyze traffic data along the project corridor.  The traffic data that 

will be collected includes existing AADTs, AM and PM peak hour vehicular and pedestrian turning 

movement volumes, vehicle classification counts, and gap studies at the following selected 

intersections and pedestrian crossing locations: 

 

1. Intersection of County Road 35 (Dakota Street) 

2. Mid-block Pedestrian Crossing at Cheese Factory 

3. Intersection of State Highway 93 (Bridge Street) 

4. Intersection of N 2nd Street 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 65 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  6 of 12 

5. Intersection of N 4th Street 

6. Intersection of Ferry Street 

7. School Pedestrian Crossing at S 4th Street and S 5th Street 

8. Intersection of S Elmwood Street/Ferry Street 

 

This volume information, along with facility characteristics including lanes, traffic control, 

alignments, speed, and driver behavior, will be collected as inputs into a traffic model that is to be 

used to determine how a facility is able to handle traffic in terms of mobility. 

 

Deliverable: Turning movement counts and traffic characteristics at eight intersections. 

 

4.2 Crash Analysis 

 Crash diagrams and trends will be analyzed to determine if underlying causes exist (ie. sight 

distance).  A crash analysis will be conducted to determine potential safety improvements based on 

crash reduction factors and crash rates. 

 

 Deliverables: Existing crash study and evaluation for improved performance. 

 

4.3    Traffic Forecast Volumes 
We will complete a review of the available forecast year 2040 AADT volumes and establish growth 

rates throughout the corridor. Growth rates will be applied to the collected turning movement data to 

develop 2040 turning movement volumes for the intersections identified within Section 4.1. 

Deliverables: Traffic analysis of volumes per industry standard 20-year forecast. 

 

4.4 Warrant Analysis 

Our team will conduct a justification analysis based on warrants in the Minnesota MUTCD for four 

two-way stop control intersections, one three-way stop control intersection, one mid-block pedestrian 

crossing, and one two-way stop school crossing.  Recognizing existing intersection controls may no 

longer meet warrants, we will work with the City and County to determine the appropriate traffic 

control for these intersections and the corridor as a whole.  This will include additional analysis at 

each of six control intersections and mid-block pedestrian crossing such as sight line, crash 

experience, pedestrian needs, and traffic operations. 

 

We will complete a planning-level evaluation of daily traffic volumes at the other 21 intersections in 

the corridor.  As part of our public involvement process, we will educate stakeholders and elected 

officials of traffic control needs at specific intersections as well as the corridor as a whole.  

Intersection traffic control recommendations will be made on a corridor-wide basis and integrated 

with the preliminary geometric design. 

 

Deliverable: Warrant analysis and intersection control recommendations. 

 

4.5 Parking Needs Assessment 

We will complete an assessment of parking along the entire project corridor.  The assessment will 

include determining the number of on-street parking spaces, no parking areas, and areas with parking 

restrictions (time of day, duration of parking allowed).  Within residential areas, we will solicit input 

from property owners on the need for on-street parking.  Within the downtown business area, an on-

street parking occupancy assessment will be completed and include collection of number of parking 

spaces occupied. 

 

Future parking needs will be considered based on potential parking generators along the corridor, 

along with known deficiencies in available parking spaces as specifically observed downtown near 

Church and Dakota Street. 

 

Deliverables: Existing parking study and evaluation for improved performance. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 66 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  7 of 12 

4.6 Traffic Operations Analysis 
Traffic operations along the corridor will be analyzed using Trafficware Synchro/Simtraffic 9 

models for existing and forecast year 2040 conditions. Base models will be developed for AM and 

PM peak hours based upon observations of existing intersection geometrics and traffic control. The 

models will be further calibrated to most accurately represent existing conditions through the use of 

field observations of study area intersections. 

 

Measures of effectiveness from the modeling include intersection and corridor delay, level-of-

service, queue lengths, and volume to capacity ratios. These will be used to understand the current 

and future needs of the corridor and allow for the analysis of possible intersection traffic control 

changes and/or geometric changes from an operations perspective to determine the impact of the 

proposed change. 

 

Deliverable: Synchro/Sim Traffic model. 

 

4.7 Traffic Summary Report 
The traffic summary report will document the results of the overall traffic study.  The report will 

document the results of the crash analysis, forecast traffic volumes, warrant analysis, parking needs 

assessment, and traffic operations analysis.  The traffic summary report will incorporate the technical 

analysis such that an intersection control evaluation report can be generated out of the information. 

 

Deliverables: Comprehensive Traffic Summary Report.     

 

5.0 PUBLIC UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE ANALYSIS 

 

Bolton & Menk will work closely with City staff to review condition and suitability of the existing water 

and sanitary sewer system within the corridor.  As part of this analysis we will identify utility improvement 

recommendations for each project scope of rehabilitation and reconstruction.  

 

5.1 Existing Plans, Available Data, and Evaluation 

Our team, with input from City staff, will review the completeness and accuracy of the topographic 

survey in identifying locations and elevations of sanitary sewer and water main utilities.  This task 

will include the gathering of as-built information and review of comprehensive plans, I & I reports, 

water main break history, and available televising reports. 

 

Deliverables: Comprehensive evaluation of the existing sanitary sewer and water main infrastructure 

and condition. 

 

5.2 Preliminary Design and Feasibility Report 

We will prepare a detailed feasibility report in coordination with City staff.  Major components of 

the preliminary design and feasibility report will include the following: 

 

1. Documentation of the existing public utility infrastructure system (location, elevations, 

including pipe types and sizes). 

2. Recommendations for improvements based on outcomes of review of the pertinent 

comprehensive plans and study documents for the project area. 

3. Proposed sanitary sewer and water main system improvements. 

4. Discussions with City staff to evaluate pressure and flow of the existing system to 

determine if pipe sizes need to be increased or if hydrants and gate valves may need to 

be moved or added to the overall system. 

5. Evaluation of all private sewer and watermain services.  We will utilize televising and 

conversations with individual property owners to gather as much information about 

private services and possible need for replacement. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 67 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  8 of 12 

6. We will advise the City if we feel it will be necessary to obtain temporary or permanent 

easements to construct the proposed utility improvements. 

 

Deliverable: Comprehensive Feasibility Report. 

 

5.3 Preliminary Construction Cost Estimate 
Our team will prepare a statement of estimated quantities for all sanitary sewer and water main 

utility work consistent with the City’s Standard Specifications and specifically, the City’s method of 

measurement and payment. 

 

Deliverable:  Sanitary sewer and water main Engineer’s Cost Estimate. 

 

6.0 PRELIMINARY DESIGN & LAYOUT 

 
Bolton & Menk through analysis and evaluation, along with close coordination with County and City staff, 

will refine and develop a preliminary project design and layout.  This will include development of plan, 

profile, cross sections, and drainage considerations. 

 

6.1 Geometry, Profile, Sections, and Construction Limits 
We will develop a roadway design layout for the proposed 2020 improvement project that 

illustrates the proposed roadway, sidewalk, and intersection improvements and features.  Bolton & 

Menk will prepare design alignment, profiles, geometry, and cross sections using the agreed upon 

design vehicle and design speed.  The Geometric Layout will be presented to the County for their 

approval and for comment by other project stakeholders, including final approval by Mn/DOT to 

establish construction limits for the project. 

 

Deliverable: Color Geometric Layout. 

 

6.2 Right-of-Way Needs 
Our team will identify the right-of-way needs to accommodate a final project delivery.  This 

includes permanent, temporary, and utility easements based on the construction limits defined in 

the preliminary design layout. 

 

Deliverables: Right-of-Way needs Layout. 

 

6.3 Hydraulic Analysis  
 Our team will analyze catch basin spacing and overall drainage to low points along the corridor to 

determine gutter spread.  It is critical to understand potential surface flooding issues and storm 

sewer capacity early in design to ensure compliance with MnDOT State Aid drainage requirements. 

 

 We will prepare a preliminary Hydraulics Report that summarizes drainage conditions, provides 

guidance on future stormwater improvements, and identifies easement or right-of-way needs for 

storm sewer, surface detention, or water quality improvements. 

 

 Deliverables: Comprehensive hydraulic report and storm sewer stick map. 

 

6.4 ADA Noncompliance 

 Our team will complete an ADA field review to record cross slopes, longitudinal grades, and lateral 

clearances to document noncompliance of the existing corridor.  An ADA report will be provided to 

document the deficiencies and make recommendations for improvements. 

 

 We will also review the pedestrian accommodations and connectivity throughout the corridor in 

order to determine where sidewalk or trail improvements may be warranted.  Of particular 

significance is the existing bit trail termini along County Road 35 (Dakota St) with desired 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 68 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  9 of 12 

connection to Mayo Park and the lack of any sidewalk infrastructure along the southern portion of 

the TH 112 (Elmwood St) corridor.  

 

 Deliverables: Issues Map for ADA and Pedestrian Design Recommendations. 

 

6.5 Street Lighting 
 We will analyze the existing street lighting based on type, spacing, and photometrics in order to 

understand lighting deficiencies and provide recommendations for improvements.  We will also 

work with County and City staff to ensure any recommendations are consistent with agency 

preferences and standards. 

 

 Deliverables: Existing and proposed street lighting maps and analysis. 

 

6.6 Streetscape Plan 
 Our team will work to identify aesthetic improvements to be included in the project consistent with 

the City and County desires and policies.  Visual quality elements could include tree replacements, 

retaining wall treatments and other streetscape concepts. 

 

 Deliverables: Streetscape Schematic Layout and/or Typical Sections. 

 

6.7 Pavement Design Alternatives 
We will review the pavement design recommendations from the preliminary geotechnical report 

and complete a pavement design alternate analysis.  The purpose of this analysis will be to 

determine the best structure to construct between bituminous or concrete, based on the life cycle 

cost.  The lowest initial cost and equivalent annual cost over a predetermined analysis period will be 

determined to assist in the selection of the best pavement design option. 

 

Deliverable: Pavement Design Life Cycle Cost Analysis and Recommendation  

 

6.8 Preliminary Construction Cost Estimate 

 Bolton & Menk will identify a cost estimate for recommended improvements, project funding 

sources, and cost sharing agreement distribution.  We will prepare a preliminary cost estimate for 

the 2020 improvement project by identifying initial estimated bid items and appropriate unit costs. 

 

 Deliverables: Preliminary Engineer’s Cost Estimate. 

 

7.0 RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 
Based on the right-of-way needs identified during the preliminary design, the right-of-way acquisition 

process will be coordinated and led by subconsultant Henning Professional Services.  Bolton & Menk will 

work with the subconsultant to coordinate all right-of-way services related to the potential acquisitions that 

we have assumed will be required for approximately 16 residential parcels and three commercial parcels.  

No relocation is included as part of this scope.  The right-of-way services as part of this scope will include 

the following: 

 

1. Title Work 

2. Title Surveys and Mapping 

3. Appraisals 

4. Drafting and Presenting Offers 

5. Negotiating and Finalizing Settlements 

6. Submitting Right-of-Way Certificates 

 

 
  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 69 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  10 of 12 

8.0 FINAL DESIGN 
 

Bolton & Menk will develop and prepare the detailed design and bidding documents necessary for the 

construction of the project.  We will prepare the construction plans for the proposed roadway 

improvements that are consistent with the geometrics approved during the preliminary layout phase. 

 

The format of the Construction Plans will comply with the MnDOT State Aid manual and all design files 

will be in AutoCAD Civil 3D.  

 

8.1 Construction Plan Set 

The construction plan set may consist of, but is not limited to, the following sheets: 

1. Title Sheet 

2. General Layout 

3. Statement of Estimated Quantities (SEQ) 

4. Soils Construction Notes and Standard Plates & Plans 

5. Typical Sections 

6. Quantity Tabulations  

7. Alignment Plan 

8. Existing Utility Tabulations (electric, gas, telephone, cable TV, etc.) 

9. Miscellaneous Details 

10. Standard Plan Sheets 

11. In-place Topography, Utility and Right-of-Way 

12. Removal Plan Sheets 

13. Construction Plan Sheets 

14. Roadway Profile Sheets 

15. Intersection & ADA Detail Sheets 

16. Retaining Wall Plans 

17. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 

18. Proposed Drainage Tabulation 

19. Drainage Plans, and Profiles 

20. Pond Grading Plan 

21. Proposed Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Tabulations 

22. Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Plans, and Profiles 

23. Temporary Erosion/Sediment Control Plans 

24. Turf Establishment and Permanent Erosion/Sediment Control Plans 

25. Streetscape & Lighting Plan 

26. Striping Plan 

27. Signing Plan 

28. Construction Staging Plans 

29. Traffic Control Plans and Tabulations 

30. Cross-Section Sheets 

 

Deliverable: Hard and electronic copy of final plans and specifications. 

 

8.2 Private Utility Coordination 
Our team will continue the utility coordination process started in the preliminary design phase 

throughout final design.  We will distribute construction plans for a utility design meeting discussing 

expected impacts around the 60% design submittal.  We will work with owners on submitting final 

relocations plans and completing field verifications prior to completion of 100% design documents.   

 

Deliverable: All final utility tabulations, impacts, and relocation plans will be included in the final 

construction plans. 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 70 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  11 of 12 

8.3 Engineer’s Construction Cost Estimate 
We will update the preliminary construction cost estimate with each plan submittal based on 

quantities and information at hand, starting with the 60% design submittal.  Each estimate will 

include a breakdown of county and city cost sharing commitments, a risk assessment on quantities, 

and unit costs available at the time. 

 

Deliverable: Hard and electronic copy of engineer’s construction cost estimate. 

 

8.4 Coordinate Final Geotechnical Evaluation 
Bolton & Menk will coordinate with the subconsultant from the preliminary design phase for any 

additional geotechnical exploration and evaluation services during final design.  It is anticipated that 

potential additional subsurface exploration during final design may consist of, but is not limited to, 

the following tasks: 

1. Additional 20 solid-stem auger or penetration test borings within the roadway, spaced at 

1,000 foot intervals, in-between the borings previously performed for a net 500 foot 

spacing. 

2. Additional eight soil borings outside the roadway at proposed retaining wall locations. 

3. Additional four soil borings at potential infiltration pond locations. 

4. Additional geotechnical laboratory testing. 

 

Deliverable: Final Geotechnical Report to include all the information from the preliminary report, 

with addition of final pavement design recommendations, stormwater infiltration potential and 

estimated rates, retaining wall design recommendations, and comments on other items related to final 

performance or constructability. 

 

8.5 Special Provisions 
Bolton & Menk will complete the Special Provisions for this project, including utilizing the County 

and City special provisions as requested. 

 

The special provisions will be submitted in addition to the full set of plans at 90% and 100% design 

submittals. 

 

Deliverable: Submit special provisions in a comprehensive and timely manner. 

  

8.6 Plan Review and Approval 

Our team will submit Construction Plans and documents for review and approval at the following 

milestones: 

 
8.6.1 60% Design Submittal: The 60% submittal will include hard and electronic copies of the 

completed plan sections as follows: 

• Title Sheet, General Layout, Typical Sections 

• In-place Topography and Utilities  

• Alignment Plan 

• Removal Plan 

• Construction Plan and Profile 

• Retaining Wall Plan 

• Drainage Plan and Profile 

• Pond Grading Plan 

• Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Plan and Profiles 

• Construction Staging Plan 

• Cross-Sections 

 

The 60% submittal will be reviewed by City of Le Sueur and Le Sueur County staff. 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 71 / 138



Exhibit A 

 

       Scope of Work and Deliverables: TH 112 Turnback Project, Le Sueur County, MN 

      March, 2017  12 of 12 

8.6.2 90% Design Submittal: The 90% will be the first draft of a biddable plan set and will 

include all completed sections provided at 60% submittal as well as remaining plan 

elements listed in Section 8.1 of this Scope of Work and Deliverables. 

 

 The 90% submittal will be reviewed by City of Le Sueur, Le Sueur County, and 

MnDOT State Aid staff. 

 
8.6.3 100% Design Submittal: Upon making the revisions to the 90% Construction Plan 

submittal, we will submit two signed and certified set of bound prints, one AutoCAD 

C3D copy and one PDF copy of the Construction Plan with the vellum title sheet. 

 

The 100% submittal will be reviewed by City of Le Sueur, Le Sueur County, and 

MnDOT State Aid staff for final review and approval for bid letting. 

 

  Deliverable: Submit all plan review deliverables in a comprehensive and timely manner. 

 

8.7 Permits 

Bolton & Menk will investigate the requirements for all permits and approvals for this project 

including the Minnesota Department of Health Watermain Permit, Minnesota Department of Natural 

Resources (DNR) Public Waters Permit, and the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 

(NPDES) Permit.  If any permit or approval is required, we will prepare the permit application for 

submittal to the agencies requiring them. 

 

Deliverable: Review and submit permit applications. 

 

8.8 Bidding and Construction Consultation 
Bolton & Menk will assist Le Sueur County with contract bidding and award activities in accordance 

with County and State Aid requirements.  We have assumed assistance with the following activities 

if necessary: 

1. Advertisement for Bid 

2. Distribute Bidding Documents 

3. Response to Questions 

4. Issue Addenda 

5. Bid Opening and Tabulation 

 

We will also be available to answer questions concerning design during the construction of the 

project at the request of the County.  We have assumed assistance with the following activities if 

necessary: 

1. Attend preconstruction meeting 

2. Answer design questions 

 

Deliverable: Prompt and comprehensive guidance and support during bid letting, opening, and 

construction. 

 

 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 72 / 138



Exhibit B

Fee Estimate

Turnback Eligible Non-Eligible
Amount Amount

Hourly Rates $170.00 $130.00 $130.00 $140.00 $120.00 $100.00 $110.00 $98.00 $130.00 $100.00 $125.00 $98.00 $80.00

Task Description

1.0 Project Management

1.1 Project Administration and Coordination 36 144 180 24,840.00

1.2 Work Plan and Schedule 18 54 72 10,080.00

1.3 Kick-off Meeting 2 4 2 2 2 2 2 16 1,780.00 280.00

1.4 Project Management Team Meetings (9 mtgs prelim + 18 mtgs final) 27 54 27 27 27 27 189 20,520.00 3,780.00

2.0 Public and Agency Involvement

2.1 Project Newsletter and News Releases 5 10 3 10 20 20 68 6,710.00 420.00

2.2 Public/Neighborhood Information Meetings (5 mtgs) 20 30 5 20 5 10 5 10 20 125 12,680.00 2,800.00

2.3 Exhibits and Layouts 10 16 40 20 86 8,420.00

2.4 Property Owner Meetings (20 mtgs) 20 40 20 20 20 120 12,560.00 2,800.00

2.5 Project Website 2 8 40 20 70 6,900.00

2.6 Agency Involvement (6 mtgs) 12 18 6 6 6 6 54 6,360.00 840.00

3.0 Existing Conditions

3.1 Data Collection 2 2 8 16 4 32 2,980.00 280.00

3.2 Private Utility Coordination 1 8 4 16 4 8 2 43 4,162.00 560.00

3.3 Topographic Survey 4 50 150 300 504 59,520.00

3.4 Existing Right-of-Way and Easements 4 100 80 80 264 31,520.00

3.5 Coordinate Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation 4 8 12 1,720.00

3.6 Coordinate Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) 4 8 12 1,720.00

4.0 Traffic Study

4.1 Data Collection 1 10 50 61 6,430.00

4.2 Crash Analysis 1 10 30 41 4,430.00

4.3 Traffic Forecast Volumes 1 10 40 51 5,430.00

4.4 Warrant Analysis 1 20 30 51 5,730.00

4.5 Parking Needs Assessment 1 4 20 30 55 6,290.00

4.6 Traffic Operations Analysis 1 1 30 40 72 8,200.00

4.7 Traffic Summary Report 1 2 20 50 16 89 9,310.00

5.0 Public Utility Infrastructure Analysis

5.1 Existing Plans, Available Data, and Evaluation 8 16 24 2,720.00

5.2 Preliminary Design and Feasibility Report 1 1 50 80 16 8 156 17,508.00

5.3 Preliminary Construction Cost Estimate 1 1 20 24 46 5,500.00

6.0 Preliminary Design and Layout

6.1 Geometry, Profile, Sections, and Construction Limits 8 40 8 20 100 200 376 37,200.00 2,800.00

6.2 Right-of-Way Needs 2 10 8 8 16 8 52 5,240.00 1,120.00

6.3 Hydraulic Anaylsis 10 8 100 40 40 198 21,220.00 1,120.00

6.4 ADA Noncompliance 2 10 8 4 40 64 6,680.00 560.00

6.5 Street Lighting 10 10 20 20 60 6,460.00

6.6 Streetscape Plan 2 10 40 8 60 6,824.00

6.7 Pavement Design Alternatives 1 8 16 25 2,810.00

6.8 Preliminary Construction Cost Estimate 2 20 8 8 8 40 8 16 110 11,388.00 1,120.00

7.0 Right-of-Way

7.1 Title Work 8 50 58 7,540.00

7.2 Title Surveys and Mapping 50 100 150 16,500.00

7.3 Coordinate Acquisition (Appraisals, Offers, Negotiations & Settlements) 10 20 8 38 4,300.00 1,120.00

7.5 Submitting Right-of-Way Certificates 8 40 25 73 9,810.00

8.0 Final Design

8.1 Construction Plan Set

Title Sheet 4 8 8 20 2,104.00

General Layout 4 8 8 20 2,104.00

Statement of Estimated Quantities 20 40 40 100 10,520.00

Soils Construction Notes and Standard Plate & Plans 2 4 4 10 1,052.00

Typcial Sections 10 30 40 80 8,220.00

Quantity Tabulations 10 60 60 130 13,180.00

Alignment Plan 4 20 20 44 4,480.00

Existing Utility Tabulations 8 40 40 88 8,960.00

Miscellaneous Details 8 20 20 48 5,000.00

Standard Plan Sheets 4 20 20 44 4,480.00

In-place Topography, Utility and Right-of-Way 8 20 20 48 5,000.00

Removal Plan Sheets 4 20 60 60 144 15,160.00

Construction Plan and Profile Sheets 8 40 150 150 348 36,260.00

Intersection & ADA Detail Sheets 4 20 80 80 184 19,120.00

Retaining Wall Plans 4 40 40 40 124 13,800.00

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 8 16 20 40 84 8,880.00

Proposed Drainage Tabulation 8 16 20 40 84 8,880.00

Drainage Plans and Profiles 4 8 80 100 100 292 31,120.00

Pond Grading Plan 2 8 40 80 80 210 22,020.00

Proposed Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Tabulations 8 80 80 80 248 1,040.00 27,040.00

Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Plan and Profiles 80 160 160 400 42,880.00

Temporary Erosion/Sediment Control Plans 2 4 40 40 86 8,660.00

Turf Establishment and Permanent Erosion/Sediment Control Plans 4 8 40 40 92 9,400.00

Streetscape and Lighting Plan 4 8 20 8 50 80 100 270 27,920.00 1,120.00

Striping Plan 4 20 50 50 124 13,020.00

Signing Plan 20 50 50 120 12,500.00

Construction Staging Plan 8 40 40 8 80 100 276 29,560.00 1,120.00

Traffic Control Plans and Tabulations 8 80 80 100 268 29,240.00

Cross Sections 40 175 200 415 42,300.00

8.2 Private Utility Coordination 4 16 20 8 48 5,400.00

8.3 Engineer's Construction Cost Estimate 4 40 100 50 194 20,780.00

8.4 Coordinate Final Geotechnical Evaluation 4 20 10 34 4,280.00

8.5 Special Provisions 8 100 20 20 20 50 20 238 26,560.00 2,800.00

8.6 Plan Review and Approval

60% Design Submittal 2 20 16 16 16 40 40 150 14,860.00 2,240.00

90% Design Submittal 30 16 16 16 40 40 158 15,820.00 2,240.00

100% Design Submittal 4 30 16 16 16 40 40 162 16,500.00 2,240.00

8.7 Permits 2 20 8 20 50 4,940.00 1,120.00

8.8 Bidding and Construction Consultation 8 40 10 10 10 20 10 20 128 14,120.00 1,400.00

 

Subtotal Hours 265 1269 442 480 398 2697 183 2286 285 354 380 128 153 9320

Subtotal Direct Labor Costs $45,050.00 $164,970.00 $57,460.00 $67,200.00 $47,760.00 $269,700.00 $20,130.00 $224,028.00 $37,050.00 $35,400.00 $47,500.00 $12,544.00 $12,240.00 $911,504.00 $129,528.00

Other Direct Costs

Subconsultant (AET - Preliminary Geotechnical Engineering) $39,971.80

Subconsultant (AET - Final Geotechnical Engineering) $22,391.75

Subconsultant (AET - Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (ESA)) $17,700.00

Subconsultant (Henning Professional Services - Right-of-Way Acquisition) $123,825.00

Subtotal Design Services $1,115,392.55 $129,528.00

TOTAL DESIGN SERVICES

Landscape 

Architect
Total  

Hours

Design Services

(Preliminary & Final)

Estimated Hours

Principal
Project 

Manager

Traffic 

Enginer

Municipal

Engineer

Water 

Resources

Design 

Enginer

$1,244,920.55

Registered 

Land 

Surveyor

Survey 

Technician
Clerical

CAD 

Technician
Survey Crew

Graphic 

Design 

Specialist

TH 112 Turnback Project

Le Sueur County, MN 1 April, 2017

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 73 / 138



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 74 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,565,000 General Obligation CIP Bonds, Series 2017A 

Issue Summary 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bps 

Total Issue Sources And Uses 

 Dated 08/01/2017 |  Delivered 08/01/2017

CIP Bonds - 

Highway 

Maintenance 

Shop

CIP Bonds - 

Non-Jail/LEC

Issue 

Summary

 
Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $1,030,000.00 $1,535,000.00 $2,565,000.00

 
Total Sources $1,030,000.00 $1,535,000.00 $2,565,000.00

 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.200%) 12,360.00 18,420.00 30,780.00

Costs of Issuance 13,050.69 19,449.31 32,500.00

Deposit to Project Construction Fund 1,000,000.00 1,500,000.00 2,500,000.00

Rounding Amount 4,589.31 (2,869.31) 1,720.00

 
Total Uses $1,030,000.00 $1,535,000.00 $2,565,000.00

Series 2017A GO CIP Bonds  |  Issue Summary  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:20 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 75 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,565,000 General Obligation CIP Bonds, Series 2017A 

Issue Summary 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bps 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

08/01/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 - - 25,352.50 25,352.50 25,352.50

08/01/2018 - - 25,352.50 25,352.50 -

02/01/2019 235,000.00 1.300% 25,352.50 260,352.50 285,705.00

08/01/2019 - - 23,825.00 23,825.00 -

02/01/2020 240,000.00 1.450% 23,825.00 263,825.00 287,650.00

08/01/2020 - - 22,085.00 22,085.00 -

02/01/2021 245,000.00 1.600% 22,085.00 267,085.00 289,170.00

08/01/2021 - - 20,125.00 20,125.00 -

02/01/2022 250,000.00 1.800% 20,125.00 270,125.00 290,250.00

08/01/2022 - - 17,875.00 17,875.00 -

02/01/2023 250,000.00 1.900% 17,875.00 267,875.00 285,750.00

08/01/2023 - - 15,500.00 15,500.00 -

02/01/2024 260,000.00 2.100% 15,500.00 275,500.00 291,000.00

08/01/2024 - - 12,770.00 12,770.00 -

02/01/2025 260,000.00 2.200% 12,770.00 272,770.00 285,540.00

08/01/2025 - - 9,910.00 9,910.00 -

02/01/2026 265,000.00 2.300% 9,910.00 274,910.00 284,820.00

08/01/2026 - - 6,862.50 6,862.50 -

02/01/2027 275,000.00 2.400% 6,862.50 281,862.50 288,725.00

08/01/2027 - - 3,562.50 3,562.50 -

02/01/2028 285,000.00 2.500% 3,562.50 288,562.50 292,125.00

Total $2,565,000.00 - $341,087.50 $2,906,087.50 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $15,807.50

Average Life 6.163 Years

Average Coupon 2.1577574%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.3524751%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.3621191%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1494106%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.5905223%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.1577574%

Weighted Average Maturity 6.163 Years

Series 2017A GO CIP Bonds  |  Issue Summary  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:20 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 76 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,565,000 General Obligation CIP Bonds, Series 2017A 

Issue Summary 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bps 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

105% 

Overlevy

02/01/2018 - - 25,352.50 25,352.50 26,620.13

02/01/2019 235,000.00 1.300% 50,705.00 285,705.00 299,990.25

02/01/2020 240,000.00 1.450% 47,650.00 287,650.00 302,032.50

02/01/2021 245,000.00 1.600% 44,170.00 289,170.00 303,628.50

02/01/2022 250,000.00 1.800% 40,250.00 290,250.00 304,762.50

02/01/2023 250,000.00 1.900% 35,750.00 285,750.00 300,037.50

02/01/2024 260,000.00 2.100% 31,000.00 291,000.00 305,550.00

02/01/2025 260,000.00 2.200% 25,540.00 285,540.00 299,817.00

02/01/2026 265,000.00 2.300% 19,820.00 284,820.00 299,061.00

02/01/2027 275,000.00 2.400% 13,725.00 288,725.00 303,161.25

02/01/2028 285,000.00 2.500% 7,125.00 292,125.00 306,731.25

Total $2,565,000.00 - $341,087.50 $2,906,087.50 $3,051,391.88

Significant Dates 
 
Dated 8/01/2017

First Coupon Date 2/01/2018

 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $15,807.50

Average Life 6.163 Years

Average Coupon 2.1577574%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.3524751%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.3621191%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1494106%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.5905223%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.1577574%

Weighted Average Maturity 6.163 Years

Series 2017A GO CIP Bonds  |  Issue Summary  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:20 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 77 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,030,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017A 

CIP Bonds - Highway Maintenance Shop 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bps 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

08/01/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 - - 10,178.75 10,178.75 10,178.75

08/01/2018 - - 10,178.75 10,178.75 -

02/01/2019 95,000.00 1.300% 10,178.75 105,178.75 115,357.50

08/01/2019 - - 9,561.25 9,561.25 -

02/01/2020 95,000.00 1.450% 9,561.25 104,561.25 114,122.50

08/01/2020 - - 8,872.50 8,872.50 -

02/01/2021 100,000.00 1.600% 8,872.50 108,872.50 117,745.00

08/01/2021 - - 8,072.50 8,072.50 -

02/01/2022 100,000.00 1.800% 8,072.50 108,072.50 116,145.00

08/01/2022 - - 7,172.50 7,172.50 -

02/01/2023 100,000.00 1.900% 7,172.50 107,172.50 114,345.00

08/01/2023 - - 6,222.50 6,222.50 -

02/01/2024 105,000.00 2.100% 6,222.50 111,222.50 117,445.00

08/01/2024 - - 5,120.00 5,120.00 -

02/01/2025 105,000.00 2.200% 5,120.00 110,120.00 115,240.00

08/01/2025 - - 3,965.00 3,965.00 -

02/01/2026 105,000.00 2.300% 3,965.00 108,965.00 112,930.00

08/01/2026 - - 2,757.50 2,757.50 -

02/01/2027 110,000.00 2.400% 2,757.50 112,757.50 115,515.00

08/01/2027 - - 1,437.50 1,437.50 -

02/01/2028 115,000.00 2.500% 1,437.50 116,437.50 117,875.00

Total $1,030,000.00 - $136,898.75 $1,166,898.75 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $6,345.00

Average Life 6.160 Years

Average Coupon 2.1575847%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.3523838%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.3620195%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1494106%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.5905137%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.1575847%

Weighted Average Maturity 6.160 Years

Series 2017A GO CIP Bonds  |  CIP Bonds - Highway Maint  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:20 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 78 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,030,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017A 

CIP Bonds - Highway Maintenance Shop 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bps 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

105% 

Overlevy

02/01/2018 - - 10,178.75 10,178.75 10,687.69

02/01/2019 95,000.00 1.300% 20,357.50 115,357.50 121,125.38

02/01/2020 95,000.00 1.450% 19,122.50 114,122.50 119,828.63

02/01/2021 100,000.00 1.600% 17,745.00 117,745.00 123,632.25

02/01/2022 100,000.00 1.800% 16,145.00 116,145.00 121,952.25

02/01/2023 100,000.00 1.900% 14,345.00 114,345.00 120,062.25

02/01/2024 105,000.00 2.100% 12,445.00 117,445.00 123,317.25

02/01/2025 105,000.00 2.200% 10,240.00 115,240.00 121,002.00

02/01/2026 105,000.00 2.300% 7,930.00 112,930.00 118,576.50

02/01/2027 110,000.00 2.400% 5,515.00 115,515.00 121,290.75

02/01/2028 115,000.00 2.500% 2,875.00 117,875.00 123,768.75

Total $1,030,000.00 - $136,898.75 $1,166,898.75 $1,225,243.69

Significant Dates 
 
Dated 8/01/2017

First Coupon Date 2/01/2018

 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $6,345.00

Average Life 6.160 Years

Average Coupon 2.1575847%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.3523838%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.3620195%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1494106%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.5905137%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.1575847%

Weighted Average Maturity 6.160 Years

Series 2017A GO CIP Bonds  |  CIP Bonds - Highway Maint  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:20 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 79 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,535,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017A 

CIP Bonds - Non-Jail/LEC 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bps 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

08/01/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 - - 15,173.75 15,173.75 15,173.75

08/01/2018 - - 15,173.75 15,173.75 -

02/01/2019 140,000.00 1.300% 15,173.75 155,173.75 170,347.50

08/01/2019 - - 14,263.75 14,263.75 -

02/01/2020 145,000.00 1.450% 14,263.75 159,263.75 173,527.50

08/01/2020 - - 13,212.50 13,212.50 -

02/01/2021 145,000.00 1.600% 13,212.50 158,212.50 171,425.00

08/01/2021 - - 12,052.50 12,052.50 -

02/01/2022 150,000.00 1.800% 12,052.50 162,052.50 174,105.00

08/01/2022 - - 10,702.50 10,702.50 -

02/01/2023 150,000.00 1.900% 10,702.50 160,702.50 171,405.00

08/01/2023 - - 9,277.50 9,277.50 -

02/01/2024 155,000.00 2.100% 9,277.50 164,277.50 173,555.00

08/01/2024 - - 7,650.00 7,650.00 -

02/01/2025 155,000.00 2.200% 7,650.00 162,650.00 170,300.00

08/01/2025 - - 5,945.00 5,945.00 -

02/01/2026 160,000.00 2.300% 5,945.00 165,945.00 171,890.00

08/01/2026 - - 4,105.00 4,105.00 -

02/01/2027 165,000.00 2.400% 4,105.00 169,105.00 173,210.00

08/01/2027 - - 2,125.00 2,125.00 -

02/01/2028 170,000.00 2.500% 2,125.00 172,125.00 174,250.00

Total $1,535,000.00 - $204,188.75 $1,739,188.75 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $9,462.50

Average Life 6.164 Years

Average Coupon 2.1578732%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.3525363%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.3621859%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1494106%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.5905282%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.1578732%

Weighted Average Maturity 6.164 Years

Series 2017A GO CIP Bonds  |  CIP Bonds - Non-Jail/LEC  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:20 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 80 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,535,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017A 

CIP Bonds - Non-Jail/LEC 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bps 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

105% 

Overlevy

02/01/2018 - - 15,173.75 15,173.75 15,932.44

02/01/2019 140,000.00 1.300% 30,347.50 170,347.50 178,864.88

02/01/2020 145,000.00 1.450% 28,527.50 173,527.50 182,203.88

02/01/2021 145,000.00 1.600% 26,425.00 171,425.00 179,996.25

02/01/2022 150,000.00 1.800% 24,105.00 174,105.00 182,810.25

02/01/2023 150,000.00 1.900% 21,405.00 171,405.00 179,975.25

02/01/2024 155,000.00 2.100% 18,555.00 173,555.00 182,232.75

02/01/2025 155,000.00 2.200% 15,300.00 170,300.00 178,815.00

02/01/2026 160,000.00 2.300% 11,890.00 171,890.00 180,484.50

02/01/2027 165,000.00 2.400% 8,210.00 173,210.00 181,870.50

02/01/2028 170,000.00 2.500% 4,250.00 174,250.00 182,962.50

Total $1,535,000.00 - $204,188.75 $1,739,188.75 $1,826,148.19

Significant Dates 
 
Dated 8/01/2017

First Coupon Date 2/01/2018

 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $9,462.50

Average Life 6.164 Years

Average Coupon 2.1578732%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.3525363%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.3621859%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1494106%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.5905282%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.1578732%

Weighted Average Maturity 6.164 Years

Series 2017A GO CIP Bonds  |  CIP Bonds - Non-Jail/LEC  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:20 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 81 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$7,325,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2017B 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA+ Rates plus 25bps 

Credit Enhanced (AA underlying) 

Sources & Uses 

 Dated 08/01/2017 |  Delivered 08/01/2017

Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $7,325,000.00

 
Total Sources $7,325,000.00

 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (0.800%) 58,600.00

Costs of Issuance 58,000.00

Deposit to Project Fund 7,208,400.00

 
Total Uses $7,325,000.00

Series 2017B GO Jail Bond  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:19 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 82 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$7,325,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2017B 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA+ Rates plus 25bps 

Credit Enhanced (AA underlying) 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

08/01/2017 - - - - -

08/01/2018 - - 186,585.00 186,585.00 -

02/01/2019 210,000.00 1.250% 93,292.50 303,292.50 489,877.50

08/01/2019 - - 91,980.00 91,980.00 -

02/01/2020 305,000.00 1.400% 91,980.00 396,980.00 488,960.00

08/01/2020 - - 89,845.00 89,845.00 -

02/01/2021 310,000.00 1.550% 89,845.00 399,845.00 489,690.00

08/01/2021 - - 87,442.50 87,442.50 -

02/01/2022 315,000.00 1.750% 87,442.50 402,442.50 489,885.00

08/01/2022 - - 84,686.25 84,686.25 -

02/01/2023 320,000.00 1.850% 84,686.25 404,686.25 489,372.50

08/01/2023 - - 81,726.25 81,726.25 -

02/01/2024 330,000.00 2.050% 81,726.25 411,726.25 493,452.50

08/01/2024 - - 78,343.75 78,343.75 -

02/01/2025 335,000.00 2.150% 78,343.75 413,343.75 491,687.50

08/01/2025 - - 74,742.50 74,742.50 -

02/01/2026 340,000.00 2.250% 74,742.50 414,742.50 489,485.00

08/01/2026 - - 70,917.50 70,917.50 -

02/01/2027 350,000.00 2.350% 70,917.50 420,917.50 491,835.00

08/01/2027 - - 66,805.00 66,805.00 -

02/01/2028 355,000.00 2.450% 66,805.00 421,805.00 488,610.00

08/01/2028 - - 62,456.25 62,456.25 -

02/01/2029 365,000.00 2.550% 62,456.25 427,456.25 489,912.50

08/01/2029 - - 57,802.50 57,802.50 -

02/01/2030 375,000.00 2.700% 57,802.50 432,802.50 490,605.00

08/01/2030 - - 52,740.00 52,740.00 -

02/01/2031 385,000.00 2.750% 52,740.00 437,740.00 490,480.00

08/01/2031 - - 47,446.25 47,446.25 -

02/01/2032 395,000.00 2.850% 47,446.25 442,446.25 489,892.50

08/01/2032 - - 41,817.50 41,817.50 -

02/01/2033 405,000.00 2.950% 41,817.50 446,817.50 488,635.00

08/01/2033 - - 35,843.75 35,843.75 -

02/01/2034 420,000.00 3.050% 35,843.75 455,843.75 491,687.50

08/01/2034 - - 29,438.75 29,438.75 -

02/01/2035 430,000.00 3.150% 29,438.75 459,438.75 488,877.50

08/01/2035 - - 22,666.25 22,666.25 -

02/01/2036 445,000.00 3.200% 22,666.25 467,666.25 490,332.50

08/01/2036 - - 15,546.25 15,546.25 -

02/01/2037 460,000.00 3.300% 15,546.25 475,546.25 491,092.50

08/01/2037 - - 7,956.25 7,956.25 -

02/01/2038 475,000.00 3.350% 7,956.25 482,956.25 490,912.50

Total $7,325,000.00 - $2,480,282.50 $9,805,282.50 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $87,422.50

Average Life 11.935 Years

Average Coupon 2.8371215%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.9041522%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.8869998%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.8054454%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.9686198%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.8371215%

Weighted Average Maturity 11.935 Years

Series 2017B GO Jail Bond  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:19 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 83 / 138



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$7,325,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2017B 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA+ Rates plus 25bps 

Credit Enhanced (AA underlying) 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

105% 

Overlevy

02/01/2018 - - - - -

02/01/2019 210,000.00 1.250% 279,877.50 489,877.50 514,371.38

02/01/2020 305,000.00 1.400% 183,960.00 488,960.00 513,408.00

02/01/2021 310,000.00 1.550% 179,690.00 489,690.00 514,174.50

02/01/2022 315,000.00 1.750% 174,885.00 489,885.00 514,379.25

02/01/2023 320,000.00 1.850% 169,372.50 489,372.50 513,841.13

02/01/2024 330,000.00 2.050% 163,452.50 493,452.50 518,125.13

02/01/2025 335,000.00 2.150% 156,687.50 491,687.50 516,271.88

02/01/2026 340,000.00 2.250% 149,485.00 489,485.00 513,959.25

02/01/2027 350,000.00 2.350% 141,835.00 491,835.00 516,426.75

02/01/2028 355,000.00 2.450% 133,610.00 488,610.00 513,040.50

02/01/2029 365,000.00 2.550% 124,912.50 489,912.50 514,408.13

02/01/2030 375,000.00 2.700% 115,605.00 490,605.00 515,135.25

02/01/2031 385,000.00 2.750% 105,480.00 490,480.00 515,004.00

02/01/2032 395,000.00 2.850% 94,892.50 489,892.50 514,387.13

02/01/2033 405,000.00 2.950% 83,635.00 488,635.00 513,066.75

02/01/2034 420,000.00 3.050% 71,687.50 491,687.50 516,271.88

02/01/2035 430,000.00 3.150% 58,877.50 488,877.50 513,321.38

02/01/2036 445,000.00 3.200% 45,332.50 490,332.50 514,849.13

02/01/2037 460,000.00 3.300% 31,092.50 491,092.50 515,647.13

02/01/2038 475,000.00 3.350% 15,912.50 490,912.50 515,458.13

Total $7,325,000.00 - $2,480,282.50 $9,805,282.50 $10,295,546.63

Significant Dates 
 
Dated 8/01/2017

First Coupon Date 8/01/2018

 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $87,422.50

Average Life 11.935 Years

Average Coupon 2.8371215%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.9041522%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.8869998%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.8054454%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.9686198%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.8371215%

Weighted Average Maturity 11.935 Years

Series 2017B GO Jail Bond  |  5/ 9/2017  |  1:19 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 84 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,490,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Issue Summary - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Total Issue Sources And Uses 

 Dated 11/05/2017 |  Delivered 11/05/2017

Current Ref 

GO CIP 

2006A

Current Ref 

GO CIP 

2007A

Current Ref 

GO CIP 

2008A

Issue 

Summary

 
Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $1,255,000.00 $1,240,000.00 $1,995,000.00 $4,490,000.00

 
Total Sources $1,255,000.00 $1,240,000.00 $1,995,000.00 $4,490,000.00

 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.000%) 12,550.00 12,400.00 19,950.00 44,900.00

Costs of Issuance 17,329.62 17,122.49 27,547.89 62,000.00

Deposit to Current Refunding Fund 1,222,941.11 1,210,000.00 1,950,000.00 4,382,941.11

Rounding Amount 2,179.27 477.51 (2,497.89) 158.89

 
Total Uses $1,255,000.00 $1,240,000.00 $1,995,000.00 $4,490,000.00

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Issue Summary  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 85 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,490,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Issue Summary - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

11/05/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 190,000.00 0.950% 15,088.23 205,088.23 205,088.23

08/01/2018 - - 30,677.50 30,677.50 -

02/01/2019 730,000.00 1.050% 30,677.50 760,677.50 791,355.00

08/01/2019 - - 26,845.00 26,845.00 -

02/01/2020 740,000.00 1.200% 26,845.00 766,845.00 793,690.00

08/01/2020 - - 22,405.00 22,405.00 -

02/01/2021 750,000.00 1.350% 22,405.00 772,405.00 794,810.00

08/01/2021 - - 17,342.50 17,342.50 -

02/01/2022 755,000.00 1.550% 17,342.50 772,342.50 789,685.00

08/01/2022 - - 11,491.25 11,491.25 -

02/01/2023 765,000.00 1.650% 11,491.25 776,491.25 787,982.50

08/01/2023 - - 5,180.00 5,180.00 -

02/01/2024 560,000.00 1.850% 5,180.00 565,180.00 570,360.00

Total $4,490,000.00 - $242,970.73 $4,732,970.73 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $15,737.61

Average Life 3.505 Years

Average Coupon 1.5438857%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.8291895%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.8391278%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.5413621%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.2573718%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.5438857%

Weighted Average Maturity 3.505 Years

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Issue Summary  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 86 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,490,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Issue Summary - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S Old Net D/S Savings

02/01/2018 205,088.23 204,929.34 204,100.00 (829.34)

02/01/2019 791,355.00 791,355.00 830,547.50 39,192.50

02/01/2020 793,690.00 793,690.00 834,147.50 40,457.50

02/01/2021 794,810.00 794,810.00 836,547.50 41,737.50

02/01/2022 789,685.00 789,685.00 837,427.50 47,742.50

02/01/2023 787,982.50 787,982.50 836,767.50 48,785.00

02/01/2024 570,360.00 570,360.00 609,705.00 39,345.00

Total $4,732,970.73 $4,732,811.84 $4,989,242.50 $256,430.66

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 
 
Gross PV Debt Service Savings..................... 243,145.06

 
Net PV Cashflow Savings @  1.541%(Bond Yield)..... 243,145.06

 
Contingency or Rounding Amount.................... 158.89

Net Present Value Benefit $243,303.95

 
Net PV Benefit / $4,733,145.06 PV Refunded Debt Service 5.140%

Net PV Benefit /  $4,365,000 Refunded Principal... 5.574%

Net PV Benefit /  $4,490,000 Refunding Principal.. 5.419%

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Issue Summary  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 87 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,490,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Issue Summary - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Current Refunding Escrow 

Date Principal Rate Receipts Disbursements Cash Balance

11/05/2017 - - 0.11 - 0.11

12/15/2017 1,222,941.00 - 1,222,941.00 1,222,941.11 -

02/01/2018 3,160,000.00 - 3,160,000.00 3,160,000.00 -

Total $4,382,941.00 - $4,382,941.11 $4,382,941.11 -

Investment Parameters 
 
Investment Model [PV, GIC, or Securities] Securities

Default investment yield target Unrestricted

 
 
Cash Deposit 0.11

Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 4,382,941.00

Total Cost of Investments $4,382,941.11

 
Target Cost of Investments at bond yield $4,369,286.75

Actual positive or (negative) arbitrage (13,654.36)

 
Yield to Receipt -

Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.5413621%

 

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Issue Summary  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 88 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,255,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Current Ref GO CIP 2006A - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

11/05/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 190,000.00 0.950% 3,896.88 193,896.88 193,896.88

08/01/2018 - - 7,253.75 7,253.75 -

02/01/2019 210,000.00 1.050% 7,253.75 217,253.75 224,507.50

08/01/2019 - - 6,151.25 6,151.25 -

02/01/2020 210,000.00 1.200% 6,151.25 216,151.25 222,302.50

08/01/2020 - - 4,891.25 4,891.25 -

02/01/2021 215,000.00 1.350% 4,891.25 219,891.25 224,782.50

08/01/2021 - - 3,440.00 3,440.00 -

02/01/2022 215,000.00 1.550% 3,440.00 218,440.00 221,880.00

08/01/2022 - - 1,773.75 1,773.75 -

02/01/2023 215,000.00 1.650% 1,773.75 216,773.75 218,547.50

Total $1,255,000.00 - $50,916.88 $1,305,916.88 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $3,509.81

Average Life 2.797 Years

Average Coupon 1.4507037%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.8082734%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.8203120%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.5413621%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.3427904%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.4507037%

Weighted Average Maturity 2.797 Years

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Current Ref GO CIP 2006A  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 89 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,255,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Current Ref GO CIP 2006A - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S Old Net D/S Savings

02/01/2018 193,896.88 191,717.61 204,100.00 12,382.39

02/01/2019 224,507.50 224,507.50 231,000.00 6,492.50

02/01/2020 222,302.50 222,302.50 228,400.00 6,097.50

02/01/2021 224,782.50 224,782.50 230,600.00 5,817.50

02/01/2022 221,880.00 221,880.00 232,400.00 10,520.00

02/01/2023 218,547.50 218,547.50 228,800.00 10,252.50

Total $1,305,916.88 $1,303,737.61 $1,355,300.00 $51,562.39

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 
 
Gross PV Debt Service Savings..................... 47,573.18

 
Net PV Cashflow Savings @  1.541%(Bond Yield)..... 47,573.18

 
Contingency or Rounding Amount.................... 2,179.27

Net Present Value Benefit $49,752.45

 
Net PV Benefit / $1,299,433.16 PV Refunded Debt Service 3.829%

Net PV Benefit /  $1,205,000 Refunded Principal... 4.129%

Net PV Benefit /  $1,255,000 Refunding Principal.. 3.964%

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Current Ref GO CIP 2006A  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 90 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,255,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Current Ref GO CIP 2006A - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Current Refunding Escrow 

Date Principal Rate Receipts Disbursements Cash Balance

11/05/2017 - - 0.11 - 0.11

12/15/2017 1,222,941.00 - 1,222,941.00 1,222,941.11 -

Total $1,222,941.00 - $1,222,941.11 $1,222,941.11 -

Investment Parameters 
 
Investment Model [PV, GIC, or Securities] Securities

Default investment yield target Unrestricted

 
 
Cash Deposit 0.11

Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 1,222,941.00

Total Cost of Investments $1,222,941.11

 
Target Cost of Investments at bond yield $1,220,856.48

Actual positive or (negative) arbitrage (2,084.63)

 
Yield to Receipt -

Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.5413621%

 

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Current Ref GO CIP 2006A  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 91 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,555,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2006A 

Prior Original Debt Service 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

08/01/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 180,000.00 4.000% 24,100.00 204,100.00 204,100.00

08/01/2018 - - 20,500.00 20,500.00 -

02/01/2019 190,000.00 4.000% 20,500.00 210,500.00 231,000.00

08/01/2019 - - 16,700.00 16,700.00 -

02/01/2020 195,000.00 4.000% 16,700.00 211,700.00 228,400.00

08/01/2020 - - 12,800.00 12,800.00 -

02/01/2021 205,000.00 4.000% 12,800.00 217,800.00 230,600.00

08/01/2021 - - 8,700.00 8,700.00 -

02/01/2022 215,000.00 4.000% 8,700.00 223,700.00 232,400.00

08/01/2022 - - 4,400.00 4,400.00 -

02/01/2023 220,000.00 4.000% 4,400.00 224,400.00 228,800.00

Total $1,205,000.00 - $150,300.00 $1,355,300.00 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 11/05/2017

Average Life 2.857 Years

Average Coupon 3.9999999%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 2.857 Years

Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 2.857 Years

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

2006A GO CIP Bds CR file  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 92 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,555,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2006A 

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Date

Refunded 

Bonds

Refunded 

Interest D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest

Refunded 

D/S

11/05/2017 - - - - - - -

12/15/2017 1,205,000.00 17,941.11 1,222,941.11 - - - -

02/01/2018 - - - 180,000.00 4.000% 24,100.00 204,100.00

08/01/2018 - - - - - 20,500.00 20,500.00

02/01/2019 - - - 190,000.00 4.000% 20,500.00 210,500.00

08/01/2019 - - - - - 16,700.00 16,700.00

02/01/2020 - - - 195,000.00 4.000% 16,700.00 211,700.00

08/01/2020 - - - - - 12,800.00 12,800.00

02/01/2021 - - - 205,000.00 4.000% 12,800.00 217,800.00

08/01/2021 - - - - - 8,700.00 8,700.00

02/01/2022 - - - 215,000.00 4.000% 8,700.00 223,700.00

08/01/2022 - - - - - 4,400.00 4,400.00

02/01/2023 - - - 220,000.00 4.000% 4,400.00 224,400.00

Total $1,205,000.00 $17,941.11 $1,222,941.11 $1,205,000.00 - $150,300.00 $1,355,300.00

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 11/05/2017

Average Life 2.857 Years

Average Coupon 3.9999999%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 2.857 Years

Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 2.857 Years

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

2006A GO CIP Bds CR file  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 93 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,240,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Current Ref GO CIP 2007A - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

11/05/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 - - 4,287.46 4,287.46 4,287.46

08/01/2018 - - 8,973.75 8,973.75 -

02/01/2019 200,000.00 1.050% 8,973.75 208,973.75 217,947.50

08/01/2019 - - 7,923.75 7,923.75 -

02/01/2020 205,000.00 1.200% 7,923.75 212,923.75 220,847.50

08/01/2020 - - 6,693.75 6,693.75 -

02/01/2021 205,000.00 1.350% 6,693.75 211,693.75 218,387.50

08/01/2021 - - 5,310.00 5,310.00 -

02/01/2022 205,000.00 1.550% 5,310.00 210,310.00 215,620.00

08/01/2022 - - 3,721.25 3,721.25 -

02/01/2023 210,000.00 1.650% 3,721.25 213,721.25 217,442.50

08/01/2023 - - 1,988.75 1,988.75 -

02/01/2024 215,000.00 1.850% 1,988.75 216,988.75 218,977.50

Total $1,240,000.00 - $73,509.96 $1,313,509.96 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $4,681.22

Average Life 3.775 Years

Average Coupon 1.5703155%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.8352036%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.8445621%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.5413621%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.2332108%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.5703155%

Weighted Average Maturity 3.775 Years

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Current Ref GO CIP 2007A  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 94 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,240,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Current Ref GO CIP 2007A - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S Old Net D/S Savings

02/01/2018 4,287.46 3,809.95 - (3,809.95)

02/01/2019 217,947.50 217,947.50 228,625.00 10,677.50

02/01/2020 220,847.50 220,847.50 231,425.00 10,577.50

02/01/2021 218,387.50 218,387.50 228,825.00 10,437.50

02/01/2022 215,620.00 215,620.00 231,025.00 15,405.00

02/01/2023 217,442.50 217,442.50 232,825.00 15,382.50

02/01/2024 218,977.50 218,977.50 234,225.00 15,247.50

Total $1,313,509.96 $1,313,032.45 $1,386,950.00 $73,917.55

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 
 
Gross PV Debt Service Savings..................... 69,235.28

 
Net PV Cashflow Savings @  1.541%(Bond Yield)..... 69,235.28

 
Contingency or Rounding Amount.................... 477.51

Net Present Value Benefit $69,712.79

 
Net PV Benefit / $1,310,422.58 PV Refunded Debt Service 5.320%

Net PV Benefit /  $1,210,000 Refunded Principal... 5.761%

Net PV Benefit /  $1,240,000 Refunding Principal.. 5.622%

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Current Ref GO CIP 2007A  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 95 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,240,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Current Ref GO CIP 2007A - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Current Refunding Escrow 

Date Principal Rate Receipts Disbursements Cash Balance

11/05/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 1,210,000.00 - 1,210,000.00 1,210,000.00 -

Total $1,210,000.00 - $1,210,000.00 $1,210,000.00 -

Investment Parameters 
 
Investment Model [PV, GIC, or Securities] Securities

Default investment yield target Unrestricted

 
 
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 1,210,000.00

Total Cost of Investments $1,210,000.00

 
Target Cost of Investments at bond yield $1,205,569.82

Actual positive or (negative) arbitrage (4,430.18)

 
Yield to Receipt -

Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.5413621%

 

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Current Ref GO CIP 2007A  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 96 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,555,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2007A 

Prior Original Debt Service 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

02/01/2018 - - - - -

08/01/2018 - - 24,312.50 24,312.50 -

02/01/2019 180,000.00 4.000% 24,312.50 204,312.50 228,625.00

08/01/2019 - - 20,712.50 20,712.50 -

02/01/2020 190,000.00 4.000% 20,712.50 210,712.50 231,425.00

08/01/2020 - - 16,912.50 16,912.50 -

02/01/2021 195,000.00 4.000% 16,912.50 211,912.50 228,825.00

08/01/2021 - - 13,012.50 13,012.50 -

02/01/2022 205,000.00 4.000% 13,012.50 218,012.50 231,025.00

08/01/2022 - - 8,912.50 8,912.50 -

02/01/2023 215,000.00 4.000% 8,912.50 223,912.50 232,825.00

08/01/2023 - - 4,612.50 4,612.50 -

02/01/2024 225,000.00 4.100% 4,612.50 229,612.50 234,225.00

Total $1,210,000.00 - $176,950.00 $1,386,950.00 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 11/05/2017

Average Life 3.867 Years

Average Coupon 4.0300007%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 3.867 Years

Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 3.867 Years

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

2007A GO CIP Bonds CR fil  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 97 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,555,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2007A 

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Date

Refunded 

Bonds D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest

Refunded 

D/S

11/05/2017 - - - - - -

02/01/2018 1,210,000.00 1,210,000.00 - - - -

08/01/2018 - - - - 24,312.50 24,312.50

02/01/2019 - - 180,000.00 4.000% 24,312.50 204,312.50

08/01/2019 - - - - 20,712.50 20,712.50

02/01/2020 - - 190,000.00 4.000% 20,712.50 210,712.50

08/01/2020 - - - - 16,912.50 16,912.50

02/01/2021 - - 195,000.00 4.000% 16,912.50 211,912.50

08/01/2021 - - - - 13,012.50 13,012.50

02/01/2022 - - 205,000.00 4.000% 13,012.50 218,012.50

08/01/2022 - - - - 8,912.50 8,912.50

02/01/2023 - - 215,000.00 4.000% 8,912.50 223,912.50

08/01/2023 - - - - 4,612.50 4,612.50

02/01/2024 - - 225,000.00 4.100% 4,612.50 229,612.50

Total $1,210,000.00 $1,210,000.00 $1,210,000.00 - $176,950.00 $1,386,950.00

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 11/05/2017

Average Life 3.867 Years

Average Coupon 4.0300007%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 3.867 Years

Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 3.867 Years

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

2007A GO CIP Bonds CR fil  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 98 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,995,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Current Ref GO CIP 2008A - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

11/05/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 - - 6,903.89 6,903.89 6,903.89

08/01/2018 - - 14,450.00 14,450.00 -

02/01/2019 320,000.00 1.050% 14,450.00 334,450.00 348,900.00

08/01/2019 - - 12,770.00 12,770.00 -

02/01/2020 325,000.00 1.200% 12,770.00 337,770.00 350,540.00

08/01/2020 - - 10,820.00 10,820.00 -

02/01/2021 330,000.00 1.350% 10,820.00 340,820.00 351,640.00

08/01/2021 - - 8,592.50 8,592.50 -

02/01/2022 335,000.00 1.550% 8,592.50 343,592.50 352,185.00

08/01/2022 - - 5,996.25 5,996.25 -

02/01/2023 340,000.00 1.650% 5,996.25 345,996.25 351,992.50

08/01/2023 - - 3,191.25 3,191.25 -

02/01/2024 345,000.00 1.850% 3,191.25 348,191.25 351,382.50

Total $1,995,000.00 - $118,543.89 $2,113,543.89 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $7,546.58

Average Life 3.783 Years

Average Coupon 1.5708286%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.8351867%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.8445522%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.5413621%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.2324307%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.5708286%

Weighted Average Maturity 3.783 Years

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Current Ref GO CIP 2008A  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 99 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,995,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Current Ref GO CIP 2008A - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S Old Net D/S Savings

02/01/2018 6,903.89 9,401.78 - (9,401.78)

02/01/2019 348,900.00 348,900.00 370,922.50 22,022.50

02/01/2020 350,540.00 350,540.00 374,322.50 23,782.50

02/01/2021 351,640.00 351,640.00 377,122.50 25,482.50

02/01/2022 352,185.00 352,185.00 374,002.50 21,817.50

02/01/2023 351,992.50 351,992.50 375,142.50 23,150.00

02/01/2024 351,382.50 351,382.50 375,480.00 24,097.50

Total $2,113,543.89 $2,116,041.78 $2,246,992.50 $130,950.72

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 
 
Gross PV Debt Service Savings..................... 126,336.59

 
Net PV Cashflow Savings @  1.541%(Bond Yield)..... 126,336.59

 
Contingency or Rounding Amount.................... (2,497.89)

Net Present Value Benefit $123,838.70

 
Net PV Benefit / $2,123,289.32 PV Refunded Debt Service 5.832%

Net PV Benefit /  $1,950,000 Refunded Principal... 6.351%

Net PV Benefit /  $1,995,000 Refunding Principal.. 6.207%

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Current Ref GO CIP 2008A  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 100 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,995,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 

Current Ref GO CIP 2008A - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates 

Current Refunding Escrow 

Date Principal Rate Receipts Disbursements Cash Balance

11/05/2017 - - - - -

02/01/2018 1,950,000.00 - 1,950,000.00 1,950,000.00 -

Total $1,950,000.00 - $1,950,000.00 $1,950,000.00 -

Investment Parameters 
 
Investment Model [PV, GIC, or Securities] Securities

Default investment yield target Unrestricted

 
 
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 1,950,000.00

Total Cost of Investments $1,950,000.00

 
Target Cost of Investments at bond yield $1,942,860.45

Actual positive or (negative) arbitrage (7,139.55)

 
Yield to Receipt -

Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.5413621%

 

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Current Ref GO CIP 2008A  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 101 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,090,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2008A 

Prior Original Debt Service 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

02/01/2018 - - - - -

08/01/2018 - - 40,461.25 40,461.25 -

02/01/2019 290,000.00 4.000% 40,461.25 330,461.25 370,922.50

08/01/2019 - - 34,661.25 34,661.25 -

02/01/2020 305,000.00 4.000% 34,661.25 339,661.25 374,322.50

08/01/2020 - - 28,561.25 28,561.25 -

02/01/2021 320,000.00 4.100% 28,561.25 348,561.25 377,122.50

08/01/2021 - - 22,001.25 22,001.25 -

02/01/2022 330,000.00 4.200% 22,001.25 352,001.25 374,002.50

08/01/2022 - - 15,071.25 15,071.25 -

02/01/2023 345,000.00 4.250% 15,071.25 360,071.25 375,142.50

08/01/2023 - - 7,740.00 7,740.00 -

02/01/2024 360,000.00 4.300% 7,740.00 367,740.00 375,480.00

Total $1,950,000.00 - $296,992.50 $2,246,992.50 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 11/05/2017

Average Life 3.862 Years

Average Coupon 4.2003850%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 3.862 Years

Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 3.862 Years

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

2008A GO CIP Bonds CR fil  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 102 / 138



 

   

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,090,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2008A 

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Date

Refunded 

Bonds D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest

Refunded 

D/S

11/05/2017 - - - - - -

02/01/2018 1,950,000.00 1,950,000.00 - - - -

08/01/2018 - - - - 40,461.25 40,461.25

02/01/2019 - - 290,000.00 4.000% 40,461.25 330,461.25

08/01/2019 - - - - 34,661.25 34,661.25

02/01/2020 - - 305,000.00 4.000% 34,661.25 339,661.25

08/01/2020 - - - - 28,561.25 28,561.25

02/01/2021 - - 320,000.00 4.100% 28,561.25 348,561.25

08/01/2021 - - - - 22,001.25 22,001.25

02/01/2022 - - 330,000.00 4.200% 22,001.25 352,001.25

08/01/2022 - - - - 15,071.25 15,071.25

02/01/2023 - - 345,000.00 4.250% 15,071.25 360,071.25

08/01/2023 - - - - 7,740.00 7,740.00

02/01/2024 - - 360,000.00 4.300% 7,740.00 367,740.00

Total $1,950,000.00 $1,950,000.00 $1,950,000.00 - $296,992.50 $2,246,992.50

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 11/05/2017

Average Life 3.862 Years

Average Coupon 4.2003850%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 3.862 Years

Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 3.862 Years

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 11/05/2017

Refunding Delivery Date 11/05/2017

2008A GO CIP Bonds CR fil  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  5/ 9/2017  |  9:43 AM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 103 / 138



Henderson Flood Mitigation Study

Flooding in the Minnesota River Valley has 
created traffic and mobility challenges for 
MnDOT and local communities for decades. 
The roadways leading into and out of the City 
of Henderson (Highways 19 and 93 and County 
Road 6) have been hit especially hard in recent 
years, with closures due to flooding occurring 
more often. During seasonal flooding events, 
residents and commuters traveling through 
the area have been forced to use detours that 
take them miles out of their way, costing them 
both time and money. The lengthy detours 
and restricted access to the Henderson Area 
can substantially impact local businesses and 
regional traffic.

Public Open House
May 17, 2017

You are invited to an open house to: 
• View draft flood mitigation materials including:

- Minnesota River hydraulic modeling
- Roadway conceptual layouts

• Cost estimates
• Ask questions
• Give feedback

      

We look forward to seeing you there!

Meet us 
here! 

N 5th Street

Main St

  
The project information to be presented at the              

Public Open House is also available for review at: 

www.mndot.gov/d7/projects/hwy19study

The Minnesota Department of Transportation 
(MnDOT), in partnership with the City of 
Henderson, Sibley County, Scott County, 
and Le Sueur County, has been working on a 
feasibility study to investigate transportation 
improvements in the Minnesota River Valley 
to determine possible improvements that 
would minimize roadway closures due to flood 
events. The study is focusing on the bridges 
and approach roadways for state Highway 19, 
Highway 93, and Sibley County Road 6. 

Study Overview

Background

N 6th Street

5:00-5:30  Welcome & View Study Materials
5:30-6:00  Presentation
6:00-7:00  View Study Materials, Question & Answer

“The outcome of this study will impact Henderson for 
generations. Please consider coming to any portion of this event, 

you and your involvement is what makes Henderson GREAT!”
-- Mayor Paul Menne

Roadhouse Event Center
510 Main Street

Henderson, MN 56044

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 104 / 138



Co
nt

ac
t

Matt Young
MnDOT Project Manager
507.304.6183
matthew.young@state.mn.us

?̧A@

Carver
Sibley

Sibley
Nicollet

Si
bl

ey
Sco

tt

Si
bl

ey
L

e
Su

eu
r

Scott
Le Sueur

Belle
Plaine

Green
Isle

Henderson

Le Sueur

UV40

UV51

UV53UV52

UV33

UV28

UV11

UV26

UV1

UV3

£¤169

UV8

UV12

UV6

UV16

UV18

UV14

UV27

UV20

UV5
UV60

?A19

?A25

UV20
£¤169

?õA@

Minnesota Trunk Higway?¦A@

US Higway+¡

County State Aid HighwayG̀WX
County Boundary

Study Roads- MN 93/MN19/CSAH 6

µ

The goal of the study is to identify a feasible, safe and accessible, 10-ton route into and out of Henderson, 
which would limit the length of detours and impacts to businesses during high water events. Currently, 
there is no funding programmed for implementing flood mitigation improvements. The results of this 
study will compare the alternatives considered and evaluate their relative benefits, costs, and impacts. This 
information can then be used by the project partners to seek funding for further design and construction.

To date, conceptual roadway improvements for the three routes that serve Henderson (Hwy 19, Hwy 93, 
and County Road 6) have been developed. Each alternative is independent of the others and would allow 
the roadway to remain open to traffic under a flood level equal to the Minnesota River crest during the 2010 
flood event. The Highway 93 and County 
Road 6 alternatives involve raising the 
roadway profiles to an elevation above the 
2010 flood elevation and the Highway 19 
alternative would raise and substantially 
lengthen the bridge across the Minnesota 
River floodplain.

As part of the study, each alternative has 
been preliminarily reviewed for benefits to 
users/motorists, environmental concerns 
(wetland, floodplain and floodway 
impacts), right of way and access impacts, 
and construction costs. A benefit/cost 
analysis for each alternative has been 
developed. A final study report is expected 
to be complete in fall 2017.

A Project Management Team (PMT), 
comprised of staff from MnDOT, local 
governmental units (city of Henderson and 
the counties of Sibley, Scott, and Le Sueur) 
has been meeting regularly throughout 
the study process. The members of the 
PMT serve as a communication link 
to constituents and elected officials. 
Meetings have also been held with 
environmental review and permitting 
agencies.

Project Management Team

Study Area- Hwy 93/ Hwy 19/Hwy 6

MnDOT
District 7
2151 Bassett Drive
Mankato, MN 56001-6888

Photo Source: Mankato Free Press

www.mndot.gov/d7/projects/hwy19study

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 105 / 138



T-number 	 

`7)4,44007-?/- 40401 11  

MASTER CONTRACT CERTIFICATION FORM 	 f /6 3 

SECTION 1— INSTRUCTIONS 

Complete form 	✓ Master Professional/Technical Contract programs 
for: 

Checklist if not 
	

2 copies of this Certification Form 
using SWIFT: ❑  RFP 

❑ Submit to your Agency Contract Coordinator to obtain Department of Administration 

approval  

Checklist if using 	71 Upload completed Certification Form to the SWIFT Event 

SWIFT: 	 Attach the documents from the above checklist into SWIFT Event 

NOTE: No work orders may be issued until a master contract program has been approved and master contracts are fully executed. 

SECTION 2 —BACKGROUND 

Department: Transportation (MnDOT) Division: Operations 

Estimated Cost of the Master Contract Program: $88 million (It is 
anticipated that individual master contracts will be capped at or 
between $25K and $1 Million depending on the size and location of 
the local government or agency.) 

Source of Funds (federal or state): Trunk Highway Fund 

* Master Contract Program Period: From: July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2022 and each Master Contract will be for a term of five 
years or until June 30, 2022 whichever occurs first. 

*The term of the original master contract program must not exceed two years unless the commissioner of Administration 
determines that a longer duration is in the best interest of the state. The total contract term cannot exceed five years. Minn. 
Stat. § 16C.06, subd. 3b (b). 
If the original contract length longer than two years is required, please write a justification below: 

This master contract program is for local governments'/agencies' assistance with projects within the territorial jurisdiction of the 

local government/agency. Since competitive solicitation procedures aren't feasible for such assistance, running a master contract 

for as long as possible will reduce the administrative burden for both the state and the local government/agency. 

Nature of Master Contract Program (Give sufficient detail about what you need and why you need it. Do not use acronyms.) 
MnDOT will enter into "master" partnership agreements with local government/agency, pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sections 174.02, 
and 161.20 (copies attached). These agreements will allow MnDOT to pay the local government/agency to perform certain work 

related to design, minor construction and maintenance. MnDOT anticipates Master Contracts with each county, some cities and 
government agencies — estimated total of 230 contracts. 

This is a renewal of a program MnDOT has had in place since 1996. There are three major factors are driving the need for this 
program. First, MnDOT staff reductions, as well as flat gas tax revenues, require us to work cooperatively with the local 

government/agency to most effectively utilize the expertise of both state and local staff. Second, in many cases, the local 

government/agencies' personnel are more readily available to work on projects, which translate into shorter turnaround times, and 
better overall service to the public. Third, MnDOT has certain expertise and equipment and can help the local government/agency 
complete some tasks they cannot perform with their own forces. 

Master Contract Certification Form (7/14) 
1jay~ ry~ 

_TEA 

PROFESSIONAL/TECHNICAL 

1879A

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 106 / 138



This program will involve the following categories of work: These categories of work will have both payable and receivable 

components which means that the local government/agencies and MnDOT may contract for services from one another and that the 

funds can flow both ways. 

1) Professional/Technical Services.  The local government/agency or MnDOT provides professional/technical services. The 

local government/agency will provide staff to perform professional and technical services, which could include (by way of 

example and without limitation) roadway design, public involvement processes, and construction inspection and 

administration, This work could also include project management, which may involve the local government/agency hiring 

and managing sub consultants to perform such work. Often, the local government/agency can combine trunk highway work 

with their local projects (e.g. including a section of a trunk highway in the design of a county road mill and overlay design 

project), making such work much more coordinated and efficient. 

2) Routine Roadway Maintenance.  A local government/agency or MnDOT may provide roadway maintenance upon the 

request of the other party. Roadway maintenance does not include roadway reconstruction. This work may include but is 
not limited to snow removal, ditch spraying, roadside mowing, bituminous mill and overlay (only on small projects), seal 

coat, bridge hits, major retaining wall failures, major drainage failures and message paintings. 
3) Construction Administration.  The local government/agency or MnDOT lets and manages construction contracts. The local 

government/agency or MnDOT will provide more or less "turnkey" construction projects (subject to normal MnDOT reviews 
and approvals) on the trunk highway system, by combining state work with local work. For example, if a county has a mill 

and overlay project on a county road, MnDOT might request that it add a section of nearby trunk highway, so that the 

county will let a single contract including both the county and the state projects. This coordinates and delivers projects 

more efficiently and with less disruption to the traveling public. This also helps allocate work to the party (local or state) 

with the expertise most suited to the project. 
4) Emergency Services. The local government/agency will agree to cooperate and share equipment and personnel in the 

event of an emergency. Having this mutual-aid agreement in place will allow the local government/agency to collect from 

the Federal Emergency Management Agency reimbursement for emergency response. 
5) Technical Services.  Technical services will not require a work order contract, an email or letter request will be sufficient. 

The providing partner must accept the request in writing via email or letter. The local government/agency or MnDOT will 

provide staff resources to perform such work as repairing sign knockdowns, fixing damaged guardrails, filling potholes, 
removing animal carcasses, material testing or bridge inspections. In many places, county and city forces have a greater 

presence on the roads and are able to deal with these situations more quickly that having to dispatch a MnDOT crew from a 

distant truck station. This also frees up MnDOT staff to focus on needs to which the expertise and equipment of state forces 

is better suited. 

Product or Result of Work Order Contracts (Be very specific. Examples: Tape Transcription Services; Court Reporter Services) 

The product or result will depend on the category of work, but includes (by way of example and without limitation) materials testing, 

bridge inspection, roadway design plans, management of the public involvement process and related administrative work, 

construction inspection and administration, repairing damaged signs and guardrails, and performing work such as patching or ASA 

upgrades on trunk highways in conjunction with local projects. 

Other Methods Considered (Examples: In House, Other Divisions or Offices; Other State Agencies) 

The primary alternatives are use of MnDOT staff and outside contractors. Other state agencies do not have the expertise or 

equipment to deliver transportation projects, but the local government/agency do. As noted above, this effort is driven by the need 

to work more closely with the local government/agency to ensure that that state and local resources are used most effectively to 

deliver a "seamless" transportation system to the public. 

In accordance with Minn. Stat. §16C.08, subd. 3, provide the following (attach additional pages if necessary) 

1) Describe how the proposed master contracts are necessary to achieve the agency's statutory responsibilities; 

These contracts are related to the design and construction of projects on the trunk highway system, and maintenance of 

those highways. The Commissioner of Transportation is required by constitution and statute to construct, operate, and 

maintain the trunk highway system, and is authorized by statute to contract for those purposes. The Commissioner is 
further authorized to provide assistance to the local government/agency for their local road systems. 

2) Describe your plan to notify firms or individuals who may be available to perform the services called for in the solicitation 
other than advertising in the State Register or on the MMD website, or on SWIFT; and 

Master Contract Certification Form (7/14) 
	

2 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 107 / 138



These contracts will be offered to the local government/agency based on needs determined by individual MnDOT districts in 

cooperation with the local government/agency in that district. Since each contract will be limited to the territorial 

jurisdiction of the applicable the local government/agency, a competitive solicitation cannot reasonably be performed. 

3) Describe the performance measures or other tools that will be used to monitor and evaluate contract performance and how 

the results of the work will be used. 

The work will be used to design, construct and maintain the public transportation system. MnDOT will use its standard 

performance review at the completion of each work order. In addition, this work will ultimately factor into the performance 

measures that are published at: http://www.accountability.state.mn.us/Departments/Transportation/index.htm  

SECTION 3 — MASTER CONTRACT PROGRAM INFORMATION 

The following information is required before the Master Contract Program will be approved. Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

The Department of Administration has final approval of all Master Contract programs. 

1. How will the master contracts be structured to meet the agency's needs? 

Example: by region, by county, by successful contractor 
Contracts will be limited to the territorial jurisdiction of the local government. 

2. Describe how the agency proposes to distribute work fairly to the contractors that have master contracts? 

Give specific details on how the agency will rotate work to the contractors. 
Examples: $0-$5,000 - Agency Discretion, $5,000-$25,000 - receive 3 written proposals, $25,000+ solicit to all on contract. 

OR create a list of all contractors, then work is distributed evenly down the list as work is needed. 
Since the contracts are limited to the territorial jurisdiction of the local government, there will be no rotation or solicitations 

used to award individual work orders. 

3. What do you propose is the maximum state obligation under a work order contract? 

Example: No work order contract may exceed $100,000. 
No work order contract may exceed $500,000. 

4. What do you propose are the required number of signatures for work order contracts? 

Guidelines. If the work specified in the master contract is very detailed and the work order requires very little additional 

information the work order will require only two signatures. Example, a court reporter's product is defined by the master 

contract, the work order states the date, time, and place for the services. 

If a master contract gives vague descriptions of the work to be done, such as building construction designs, the work order 
contract will be required to have three signatures. Generally, all work orders exceeding $100,000 will require three signatures. 

	2 (contractor/agency) plus encumbrance 
X  3 (contractor/agency/Administration) plus encumbrance 

5. Will other state agencies and/or other governmental units be allowed to use these contracts? 	Yes  X  No 

If so, how will they report usage to the issuing agency? 

Other State Agencies may execute Master Partnership contracts with MnDOT. However, Other State Agencies will not be 
allowed to execute Work Orders against MnDOT Master Partnership contracts with cities and counties. 

The issuing agency must track work order contracts so that the total amount paid to a contractor does not exceed the master 
contract dollar total. 

SECTION 4 — AGENCY CERTIFICATIONS 

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. 16C.08, I certify: 

1. 	No state agency employee is (a) able and (b) available to perform the services called for by the contract 
A. How did you reach this conclusion: 

As stated above, this is part of an effort to utilize Mn/DOT staff in the most effective; manner, by working cooperatively 

with the local government. This arrangement will allow the local government/agency to allocate work to the party with 

Master Contract Certification Form (7/14) 	 3 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 108 / 138



the resources {i.e. specialized training and equipment) most suited to performing the work, and to have "common" 
projects to be combined and administered by one entity to increase the effectiveness of both entities (and minimizing 
disruptions, such as multiple detours, experienced by the public). For Professional/Technical services, this will generally 
be an "overflow" mechanism when State employees are fully booked with work. 

B. List other methods considered for accomplishing the work. [Example: In-house, other divisions or offices, other state 
agencies.] 
The primary alternatives are use of MnDOT staff and outside contractors. Other state agencies do not have the 
expertise or equipment to deliver transportation projects, but the local government/agency do. As noted above, this 
effort is driven by the need to work more closely with the local government/agency to ensure that that state and local 
resources are used most effectively to deliver a "seamless" transportation system to the public. Given staff reductions 
from uncontrollable forces such as retirements, as well as the flattening of gas tax revenues, adding staff to perform 
this work is not practicable at this time. 

2. Unless otherwise authorized by law, a competitive proposal process shall be used to acquire professional or technical 
services. A competitive bidding process shall not be utilized to acquire professional or technical services. 

3. The following person(s) has/have been assigned to manage the contract as well as monitor and act as liaison for the 
contract Ted Schoenecker at (651) 366-3802, ted.schonecker(state.mn.us, MnDOT, State Sid Office, 395 John Ireland Blvd, 
MS 500, St. Paul, MN 55155 . 

4. Agencies shall not allow a contractor to begin work before the contract is fully executed unless an exception under Minn. 
Stat. §16C.05, subd. 2a has been granted by the commissioner and funds are fully encumbered. 

5. A contract shall not establish an employment relationship between the state or the agency and any persons performing 
under the contract. 

6. In the event the results of the contract work will be carried out or continued by state employees upon completion of the 
contract, the contractor is required to include state employees in development and training, to the extent necessary to 
ensure that after completion of the contract, state employees can perform any ongoing work related to the same function. 

7. The contractor and agents must not be employees of the state. 

8. The terms of the contract must permit the commissioner to unilaterally terminate the contract prior to completion, upon 
payment of just compensation, if the commissioner determines that further performance under the contract would not serve 
agency purposes. 

9. The agency will not contract out its previously eliminated jobs for four years without first considering the same former 
employees who are on the seniority unit layoff list who meet the minimum qualifications determined by the agency. 

10. The terms of a contract must provide that no more than 90 percent of the amount due under the contract may be paid until 
the final product has been reviewed by the head of the agency entering into the contract and the head of the agency has 
certified that the contractor has satisfactorily fulfilled the terms of the contract, unless specifically excluded or modified in 
writing by the commissioner. This clause does not apply to contracts for professional services as defined in sections 326.02 
to 326.15. 

Reasonable efforts will be made to avoid conflicts of interest throughout the selection and performance of this contract. All potential 
or actual conflicts of interest will be reported to MMD. 

Master Contract Certification Form (7/14) 	 4 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 109 / 138



Agency signature (required) 

Authorized Certification/Officer authorized to sign contracts: 
	

Date: 

Mitch Rasmussen, Assistant Commissioner, State Aid Division 

Materials Management Division/Professional Technical Approval: Date: cf  
/1 

Department of Administration signature (required) 

The following three Internal Approval signatures are for agencyuse; they are not required by MMD. 

Activity Manager: 

Ted Schoenec er, Deputy State Aid Engineer, State Aid for Local Transportation Division / 

Date: 

141(2 I n 
Division Director: 

NA 

Date: 

Assistant Commissioner (program): 

NA 

Date: 

MMD Cert #  	42.1  

Master Contract Certification Form (7/14) 	 5 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 110 / 138



4/7/2017 	 174.02 - 2016 Minnesota Statutes 

2016 Minnesota Statutes 

174.02 COMMISSIONER'S POWERS AND DUTIES. 
Subdivision 1. Appointment. The department shall be supervised and controlled by 

the commissioner of transportation, who shall be appointed by the governor and serve 
under the provisions of section 15.06. 

Subd. 1 a. Mission; efficiency; legislative report, recommendations. It is part of 
the department's mission that within the department's resources the commissioner shall 
endeavor to: 

(1) prevent the waste or unnecessary spending of public money; 

(2) use innovative fiscal and human resource practices to manage the state's resources 
and operate the department as efficiently as possible; 

(3) minimize the degradation of air, water quality, and the climate, including 
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions; 

(4) coordinate the department's activities wherever appropriate with the activities of 
other governmental agencies; 

(5) use technology where appropriate to increase agency productivity, improve 
customer service, increase public access to information about government, and increase 
public participation in the business of government; 

(6) utilize constructive and cooperative labor-management practices to the extent 
otherwise required by chapters 43A and 179A; 

(7) ensure that the safety, maintenance, and preservation of Minnesota's transportation 
infrastructure is a primary priority; 

(8) report to the legislature on the performance of agency operations and the 
accomplishment of agency goals in the agency's biennial budget according to section 
16A.10. subdivision 1; and 

(9) recommend to the legislature appropriate changes in law necessary to carry out 
the mission and improve the performance of the department. 

Subd. 2. Unclassified positions. The commissioner may establish four positions in 
the unclassified service at the deputy and assistant commissioner, assistant to 
commissioner or personal secretary levels. No more than two of these positions shall be at 
the deputy commissioner level. 

Subd. 2a. Transportation ombudsperson. (a) The commissioner shall appoint a 
person to the position of transportation ombudsperson. The transportation ombudsperson 
reports directly to the commissioner. The ombudsperson must be selected without regard 
to political affiliation and must be qualified to perform the duties specified in this 
subdivision. 

(b) Powers and duties of the transportation ombudsperson include, but are not limited 
to: 

(1) providing a neutral, independent resource for dispute and issue resolution between 
the department and the general public where another mechanism or forum is not available; 

(2) gathering information about decisions, acts, and other matters of the department; 

(3) providing information to the general public; 

(4) facilitating discussions or arranging mediation when appropriate; and 

(5) maintaining and monitoring performance measures for the ombudsperson 
program. 

(c) The transportation ombudsperson may not hold another formal position within the 
department. The transportation ombudsperson may not impose a complaint fee. 

Subd. 3. Departmental organization; affirmative action. (a) The commissioner 
shall organize the department in a manner recognizing the administrative and staffing 
needs of all modes of transportation within the commissioner's jurisdiction, and shall 

Authenticate 

https://www.revi  sor.m n.gov/statutes/?id=174.02 	 1/3 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 111 / 138



4/7/2017 	 174.02 - 2016 Minnesota Statutes 

employ personnel as the commissioner deems necessary to discharge the functions of the 
department. 

(b) The commissioner shall adopt an affirmative action plan for the department in 
order to insure that department hiring encourages the selection of members of groups of 
persons who because of unfair or unlawful discriminatory practices have in the past been 
denied equal employment opportunity. This plan need not be promulgated as a rule, but it 
shall be approved by the commissioner of management and budget. The plan shall provide 
that the affected groups of persons shall constitute at least the same proportional number of 
employees in the department as they constitute in the total employment in state 
government; provided that this limitation shall expire in respect to an affected group when 
the commissioner of management and budget certifies that members of that affected group 
are employed in the department in the same proportion as they constitute in the total 
employment in state government. 

Subd. 4. Appearances on public transportation matters. The commissioner may 
appear as a party on behalf of the public in any proceeding or matter before the Surface 
Transportation Board or any other agency or instrumentality of government that regulates 
public services or rates relating to transportation or other matters related to the powers and 
responsibilities of the commissioner as prescribed by law. The commissioner shall appear 
as a party on behalf of the public in proceedings as provided by law on matters that 
directly relate to the powers and duties of the commissioner or substantially affect the 
statewide transportation plan. 

Subd. 5. Cooperation. To facilitate the development of a unified and coordinated 
intrastate and interstate transportation system: 

(1) the commissioner shall maintain close liaison, coordination, and cooperation with 
the private sectors of transportation, the Upper Great Lakes Seaway Development 
Commission Corporation, and any multistate organization involved in transportation issues 
affecting the state; 

(2) the commissioner shall participate in the planning, regulation, and development of 
the port authorities of the state; 

(3) the commissioner or the commissioner's designee is a nonvoting member of the 
Metropolitan Airports Commission, as organized and established under sections 473.601 
to 473.679; 

(4) the commissioner shall cooperate with all federal agencies for the purpose of 
harmonizing state rules and federal regulations within the state to the extent and in the 
manner deemed advisable; 

(5) the commissioner may conduct joint hearings with any federal agency within or 
outside the state and, to the extent allowed under federal law or regulation, may approve 
and establish freight rates and charges that depart from the distance principle required by 
any state law; and 

(6) the commissioner may nominate members to any joint board as provided by 
federal acts. 

Subd. 6. Agreements, receipts, appropriation. (a) To facilitate the implementation 
of intergovernmental efficiencies, effectiveness, and cooperation, and to promote and 
encourage economic and technological development in transportation matters within and 
between governmental and nongovernmental entities, the commissioner may enter into 
agreements with other governmental or nongovernmental entities for research and 
experimentation; for sharing facilities, equipment, staff, data, or other means of providing 
transportation-related services; or for other cooperative programs that promote efficiencies 
in providing governmental services or that further development of innovation in 
transportation for the benefit of the citizens of Minnesota. 

(b) In addition to funds otherwise appropriated by the legislature, the commissioner 
may accept and spend funds received under any agreement authorized in paragraph (a) for 
the purposes set forth in that paragraph. 

(c) Funds received under this subdivision must be deposited in the special revenue 
fund and are appropriated to the commissioner for the purposes set forth in this 
subdivision. 

https ://www. rev i sor.m n.gov/statutes/?i  d= 174.02 	 2/3 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 112 / 138



4/7/2017 	 174.02 - 2016 Minnesota Statutes 

Subd. 7. [Repealed, 2014 c 227 art 1 s 23] 
Subd. 8. Electronic reports. Notwithstanding section 3.195, subdivision 1, any 

legislative report required to be submitted by the commissioner may be submitted 
electronically. 

Subd. 9. Pilot transportation project; alternative financing and investment. (a) 
The commissioner may select one pilot transportation project on the trunk highway system 
to implement the authority granted in this subdivision. In connection with the pilot project, 
the commissioner may enter into agreements with governmental or nongovernmental 
entities, including private and nonprofit entities, to finance or invest in the transportation 
project, including repayment agreements. An agreement under this subdivision is subject 
to (1) the availability of state money or other dedicated revenue or resources; and (2) the 
approval of the commissioner of management and budget. 

(b) The commissioner shall submit to the chairs and ranking minority members of the 
house of representatives and senate committees having jurisdiction over transportation 
policy and finance a report detailing agreements executed under this subdivision. The 
listing must identify each agreement, the contracting entities, the contract amounts and 
duration, and any repayment requirements. The listing may be submitted electronically, 
and is subject to section 3.195, subdivision 1. 

(c) The pilot project is subject to transportation planning, programming, and 
procurement requirements. Use of this subdivision must not result in the delay of any 
project programmed in the statewide transportation improvement program. 

(d) This subdivision does not preempt any other statute or provide new toll facility 
authority or design-build contracting authority. 

(e) Any repayment agreement under this subdivision must comply with all applicable 
debt and other financial policies and requirements. 

Subd. 10. Products and services; billing. The commissioner of transportation may 
bill operations units of the department for costs of centrally managed products or services 
that benefit multiple operations units. These costs may include equipment acquisition and 
rental, labor, materials, and other costs determined by the commissioner. Receipts must be 
credited to the special products and services account, which is established in the trunk 
highway fund, and are appropriated to the commissioner to pay the costs for which the 
billings are made. 

History: 1976 c 166 s 2; 1977 c 305 s 23; 1980 c 534 s 13; 1980 c 617 s 47; 1986 c 
444.  1993 c 266 s 28; 1995 c 248 art 11 s 12; 1998 c 366 s 58; 1999 c 230 s 17; 2001 c 
213 s 11.12; 2008 c 204 s 42; 2008 c 287 art 1 s 67; 2009 c 101 art 2 s 109; 2010 c 350 s  
4 5; 2010 c 351 s 40; 2012 c 287 art 4 s 38; 2013 c 127 s 47; 2014 c 227 art I s 11,12; 
2014 c 312 art 11 s 23  

Copyright (t) 2016 by the Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota. All rights reserved. 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=174.02 	 3/3 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 113 / 138



4/7/2017 	 161.20 - 2016 Minnesota Statutes 

2016 Minnesota Statutes 

161.20 GENERAL POWERS OF COMMISSIONER. 
Subdivision 1. Provisions of Constitution. The commissioner shall carry out the 

provisions of article 14, section 2, of the Constitution of the state of Minnesota. 
Subd. 2. Property acquisition; agreements and contracts. (a) The commissioner 

is authorized: 
(1) to acquire by purchase, gift, or by eminent domain proceedings as provided by 

law, in fee or such lesser estate as the commissioner deems necessary, all lands and 
properties necessary in preserving future trunk highway corridors or in laying out, 
constructing, maintaining, and improving the trunk highway system including recreational 
vehicle lanes; to locate, construct, reconstruct, improve, and maintain the trunk highway 
system; to purchase all road material, machinery, tools, and supplies necessary for the 
construction, maintenance, and improvement thereof; to construct necessary buildings, or 
rent or acquire by purchase, gift, or condemnation, grounds and buildings necessary for the 
storing and housing of such material, machinery, tools, and supplies or necessary for office 
space for employees; to maintain, repair, or remodel such buildings as may be necessary; 

(2) to acquire by purchase, gift, or condemnation, replacement sites for historically 
significant buildings or structures and to relocate these buildings or structures onto those 
sites, reconstructing and maintaining them until disposed of through public sale to the 
highest responsible bidder; 

(3) to make agreements with any county for the relocation or reestablishment, by the 
county, of section, quarter section, or meander corners originally established by the United 
States, when such relocation or reestablishment is necessary in order to write land 
acquisition descriptions or by reason of the construction, reconstruction, improvement, or 
maintenance of a trunk highway; 

(4) to contract on an equitable basis with railroad companies for the installation and 
reinstallation of safety devices at trunk highway-railroad grade crossings, and for the 
construction, reconstruction, and maintenance of bridges and approaches existing or 
necessary for the separation of grades at railroad and trunk highway intersections; and 

(5) in carrying out duties, to let all necessary contracts in the manner prescribed by 
law. 

Authenticate 

(b) The commissioner may make agreements with and cooperate with any 
governmental authority for the purpose of effectuating the provisions of this chapter. 

Subd. 3. Trunk highway fund appropriations. The commissioner may expend 
trunk highway funds only for trunk highway purposes. Payment of expenses related to 
Bureau of Criminal Apprehension laboratory, Explore Minnesota Tourism kiosks, 
Minnesota Safety Council, driver education programs, Emergency Medical Services 
Board, Mississippi River Parkway Commission, payments to MN.IT Services in excess of 
actual costs incurred for trunk highway purposes, and personnel costs incurred on behalf of 
the Governor's Office do not further a highway purpose and do not aid in the construction, 
improvement, or maintenance of the highway system. 

Subd. 4. Debt collection. The commissioner shall make reasonable and businesslike 
efforts to collect money owed for licenses, fines, penalties, and permit fees or arising from 
damages to state-owned property or other causes related to the activities of the Department 
of Transportation. The commissioner may contract for debt collection services for the 
purpose of collecting a money judgment or legal indebtedness. The commissioner may 
enter into an agreement with the commissioner of public safety to use debt collection 
services authorized by this subdivision when civil penalties relating to the use of highways 
have been reduced to money judgment. Money received as full or partial payment shall be 
deposited to the appropriate fund. When money is collected through contracted services, 
the commissioner may make payment for the service from the money collected. The 
amount necessary for payment of contractual collection costs is appropriated from the fund 
in which money so collected is deposited. 

Subd. 5. Acceptance of private funds. Notwithstanding sections 16A.013 to 
16A.016, the commissioner may accept on behalf of the state, gifts, grants, or 

https://www.revisonmn.gov/statutes/?id=161.20 	 1/2 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 114 / 138



4/7/2017 	 161.20 - 2016 Minnesota Statutes 

contributions for purposes pertaining to the activities of the department. Funds received 
under this subdivision must be deposited in the trunk highway fund and are annually 
appropriated to the commissioner for the purpose for which they are given. 

History: 1959 c 500 art 2 s 20; 1965 c 505 s 1; 1973 c 620 s 2; 1976 c 2 s 172; 1982 
c 641 art 1 s 3; 1984 c 417 s 13; 1984 c 558 art 5 s I; 1985 c 299 s 2; 1988 c 698 s 2; 
1991 c 339 s 3; 2000 c 479 art 2 s 4; 2002 c 364 s 5; 2003 c 112 art 2 s 50; 1Sp2003 c 19 
art 2 s 9.  2004 c 171 s 18; 2009 c 36 art 3 s 3;  2013 c 117 art 3 s 2; 2014 c 227 art I s 4 

Copyright © 2016 by the Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota. All rights reserved. 

https://www.revisor.m  n.gov/statutes/?id=161.20 	 212 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 115 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 

5.1. 	After authorizing the Providing Party to begin work, the Requesting Party will furnish any data or 
material in its possession relating to the project that may be of use to the Providing Party in performing 
the work. 

5.2. 	All such data furnished to the Providing Party will remain the property of the Requesting Party and will 
be promptly returned upon the Requesting Party's request or upon the expiration or termination of this 
contract (subject to data retention requirements of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act and 
other applicable law). 

5.3. 	The Providing Party will analyze all such data furnished by the Requesting Party. If the Providing Party 
finds any such data to be incorrect or incomplete, the Providing Party will bring the facts to the attention 
of the Requesting Party before proceeding with the part of the project affected. The Providing Party will 
investigate the matter, and if it finds that such data is incorrect or incomplete, it will promptly determine a 
method for furnishing corrected data. Delay in furnishing data will not be considered justification for an 
adjustment in compensation. 

5.4. 	The State will provide to the Local Government copies of any Trunk Highway fund clauses to be included 
in the bid solicitation and will provide any required Trunk Highway fund provisions to be included in the 
Proposal for Highway Construction, that are different from those required for State Aid construction. 

5.5. 	The Requesting Party will perform final reviews and inspections of its portion of the project work. If the 
work is found to have been completed in accordance with the work order contract, the Requesting Party 
will promptly release any remaining funds due the Providing Party for the Project(s). 

5.6. 	The work order contracts may include additional responsibilities to be completed by the Requesting Party. 

6. Time 

In the performance of project work under a work order contract, time is of the essence. 

7. Consideration and Payment 

7.1. 	Consideration. The Requesting Party will pay the Providing Party as specified in the work order. The 
State's normal and customary additives will apply to work performed by the State, unless otherwise 
specified in the work order. The State's normal and customary additives will not apply if the parties agree 
to a "lump sum" or "unit rate" payment. 

7.2. 	State's Maximum Obligation. The total compensation to be paid by the State to the 
Local Government under all work order contracts issued pursuant to this MPC will not 
exceed [$000,000.00] {this is the maximum amount the State will pay to the local 
government through June 30, 2022. This will vary by size of local government and 
amount of payable work anticipated with that unit. Suggested maximums are $1M for 
urban counties; $250 for rural; $$1M for urban cities, and $100K for rural cities. If the 
maximum exceeds $1M, please attach a budget that itemizes the project costs. Delete this 
red verbiage when preparing contract) 

7.3. 	Travel Expenses. It is anticipated that all travel expenses will be included in the base cost of the 
Providing Party's services, and unless otherwise specifically set forth in an applicable work order 
contract, the Providing Party will not be separately reimbursed for travel and subsistence expenses 
incurred by the Providing Party in performing any work order contract. In those cases where the State 
agrees to reimburse travel expenses, such expenses will be reimbursed in the same manner and in no 
greater amount than provided in the current "MnDOT Travel Regulations" a copy of which is on file with 
and available from the MnDOT District Office. The Local Government will not be reimbursed for travel 
and subsistence expenses incurred outside of Minnesota unless it has received the State's prior written 
approval for such travel. 

7.4. Payment. 

Page 6 of 13 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 116 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 

The law addresses suspension or revocation of a certificate of compliance and contract consequences in 
that event. A contract awarded without a certificate of compliance may be voided. 

15.3. Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600. 

15.3.1. General. Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 implement Minn. Stat. § 363A.36. These rules 
include, but are not limited to, criteria for contents, approval, and implementation of affirmative 
action plans; procedures for issuing certificates of compliance and criteria for determining a 
contractor's compliance status; procedures for addressing deficiencies, sanctions, and notice and 
hearing; annual compliance reports; procedures for compliance review; and contract 
consequences for non-compliance. The specific criteria for approval or rejection of an affirmative 
action plan are contained in various provisions of Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 including, 
but not limited to, parts 5000.3420-5000.3500 and 5000.3552-5000.3559. 

15.3.2. Disabled Workers. The Contractor must comply with the following affirmative action 
requirements for disabled workers: 

15.3.2.1. The Contractor must not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for 
which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The Contractor agrees to 
take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment, and otherwise treat 
qualified disabled persons without discrimination based upon their physical or mental 
disability in all employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

15.3.2.2. The Contractor agrees to comply with the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota 
Department of Human Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act. 

15.3.2.3. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, 
actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with Minn. Stat. Section 
363A.36, and the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota Department of Human 
Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act. 

15.3.2.4. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the commissioner of 
the Minnesota Department of Human Rights. Such notices must state the Contractor's 
obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in 
employment qualified disabled employees and applicants for employment, and the 
rights of applicants and employees. 

15.3.2.5. The Contractor must notify each labor union or representative of workers with which it 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract understanding, that the 
Contractor is bound by the terms of Minn. Stat. Section 363A.36, of the Minnesota 
Human Rights Act and is committed to take affirmative action to employ and advance 
in employment physically and mentally disabled persons. 

15.3.3. Consequences. The consequences for the Contractor's failure to implement its affirmative action 
plan or make a good faith effort to do so include, but are not limited to, suspension or revocation of 
a certificate of compliance by the Commissioner, refusal by the Commissioner to approve 
subsequent plans, and termination of all or part of this contract by the Commissioner or the State. 

15.3.4. Certification. The Contractor hereby certifies that it is in compliance with the requirements of Minn. 
Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 and is aware of the consequences for 
noncompliance. 

16. 	Workers' Compensation 
Page 10 of 13 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 117 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 1 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA

AND

LE SUEUR COUNTY 

MASTER PARTNERSHIP CONTRACT

This master contract is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Commissioner of Transportation in this contract 
referred to as the “State” and the Le Sueur County, acting through its County Board in this contract referred to as the 
“Local Government."

Recitals

1. The parties are authorized to enter into this contract pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, §§15.061, 471.59 and 174.02. 

2. Minn. Stat. § 161.20, subd. 2, authorizes the Commissioner of Transportation to make arrangements with and 
cooperate with any governmental authority for the purposes of constructing, maintaining and improving the trunk 
highway system. 

3. Each party to this contract is a “road authority” as defined by Minn. Stat. §160.02, subd. 25.

4. Minn. Stat. § 161.39, subd. 1, authorizes a road authority to perform work for another road authority. Such work 
may include providing technical and engineering advice, assistance and supervision, surveying, preparing plans 
for the construction or reconstruction of roadways, and performing roadway maintenance. 

5. Minn. Stat. §174.02, subd. 6, authorizes the Commissioner of Transportation to enter into contracts with other 
governmental entities for research and experimentation; for sharing facilities, equipment, staff, data, or other 
means of providing transportation-related services; or for other cooperative programs that promote efficiencies in 
providing governmental services, or that further development of innovation in transportation for the benefit of the 
citizens of Minnesota. 

6. Each party wishes to occasionally purchase services from the other party, which the parties agree will enhance the 
efficiency of delivering governmental services at all levels. This Master Partnership Contract (MPC) provides a 
framework for the efficient handling of such requests. This MPC contains terms generally governing the 
relationship between the parties. When specific services are requested, the parties will (unless otherwise specified) 
enter into a “Work Order” contracts.

7. After the execution of this MPC, the parties may (but are not required to) enter into “Work Order” contracts. 
These Work Orders will specify the work to be done, timelines for completion, and compensation to be paid for 
the specific work.

8. The parties are entering into this MPC to establish terms that will govern all of the Work Orders subsequently 
issued under the authority of this Contract.

Master Partnership Contract

1. Term of Master Partnership Contract; Use of Work Order Contracts; Survival of Terms

1.1. Effective Date: This contract will be effective on the date last signed by the Local Government, and all 
State officials as required under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 2. 

1.2. A party must not accept work under this Contract until it is fully executed. 

1.3. Expiration Date. This Contract will expire on June 30, 2022.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 118 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 2 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

1.4. Work Order Contracts. A work order contract must be negotiated and executed (by both the State and the 
Local Government) for each particular engagement, except for Technical Services provided by the State 
to the Local Government as specified in Article 2. The work order contract must specify the detailed 
scope of work and deliverables for that project. A party must not begin work under a work order until the 
work order is fully executed. The terms of this MPC will apply to all work orders contracts issued, unless 
specifically varied in the work order. The Local Government understands that this MPC is not a guarantee 
of any payments or work order assignments, and that payments will only be issued for work actually 
performed under fully-executed work orders. 

1.5. Survival of Terms. The following clauses survive the expiration or cancellation of this master contract 
and all work order contracts: 12. Liability; 13. State Audits; 14. Government Data Practices and 
Intellectual Property; 17. Publicity; 18. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue; and 22. Data Disclosure. 
All terms of this MPC will survive with respect to any work order contract issued prior to the expiration 
date of the MPC. 

1.6. Sample Work Order. A sample work order contract is available upon request from the State.

1.7. Definition of “Providing Party” and “Requesting Party”. For the purpose of assigning certain duties and 
obligations in the MPC to work order contracts, the following definitions will apply throughout the MPC. 
“Requesting Party” is defined as the party requesting the other party to perform work under a work order 
contract. “Providing Party” is defined as the party performing the scope of work under a work order 
contract.

2. Technical Services

2.1. Technical Services include repetitive low-cost services routinely performed by the State for the Local 
Government. These services may be performed by the State for the Local Government without the 
execution of a work order, as these services are provided in accordance with standardized practices and 
processes and do not require a detailed scope of work. Exhibit A – Table of Technical Services is 
attached. 

2.1.1. Every other service not falling under the services listed in Exhibit A will require a work order 
contract (If you have questions regarding whether a service is covered under 2.1.1, please contact 
Contract Management). 

2.2. The Local Government may request the State to perform Technical Services in an informal manner, such 
as by the use of email, a purchase order, or by delivering materials to a State lab and requesting testing. A 
request may be made via telephone, but will not be considered accepted unless acknowledged in writing 
by the State. 

2.3. The State will promptly inform the Local Government if the State will be unable to perform the requested 
Technical Services. Otherwise, the State will perform the Technical Services in accordance with the 
State’s normal processes and practices, including scheduling practices taking into account the availability 
of State staff and equipment. 

2.4. Payment Basis. Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties prior to performance of the services, the State 
will charge the Local Government the State’s then-current rate for performing the Technical Services. 
The then-current rate may include the State’s normal and customary additives. The State will invoice the 
Local Government upon completion of the services, or at regular intervals not more than once monthly as 
agreed upon by the parties. The invoice will provide a summary of the Technical Services provided by the 
State during the invoice period.

3. Services Requiring A Work Order Contract

3.1. Work Order Contracts: A party may request the other party to perform any of the following services 
under individual work order contracts. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 119 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 3 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

3.2. Professional and Technical Services. A party may provide professional and technical services upon the 
request of the other party. As defined by Minn. Stat. §16C.08, subd. 1, professional/technical services 
“means services that are intellectual in character, including consultation, analysis, evaluation, prediction, 
planning, programming, or recommendation; and result in the production of a report or completion of a 
task.” Professional and technical services do not include providing supplies or materials except as 
incidental to performing such services. Professional and technical services include (by way of example 
and without limitation) engineering services, surveying, foundation recommendations and reports, 
environmental documentation, right-of-way assistance (such as performing appraisals or providing 
relocation assistance, but excluding the exercise of the power of eminent domain), geometric layouts, 
final construction plans, graphic presentations, public relations, and facilitating open houses. A party will 
normally provide such services with its own personnel; however, a party’s professional/technical services 
may also include hiring and managing outside consultants to perform work provided that a party itself 
provides active project management for the use of such outside consultants.

3.3. Roadway Maintenance. A party may provide roadway maintenance upon the request of the other party. 
Roadway maintenance does not include roadway reconstruction. This work may include but is not limited 
to snow removal, ditch spraying, roadside mowing, bituminous mill and overlay (only small projects), 
seal coat, bridge hits, major retaining wall failures, major drainage failures, and message painting. All 
services must be performed by an employee with sufficient skills, training, expertise or certification to 
perform such work, and work must be supervised by a qualified employee of the party performing the 
work. 

3.4. Construction Administration. A party may administer roadway construction projects upon the request of 
the other party. Roadway construction includes (by way of example and without limitation) the 
construction, reconstruction, or rehabilitation of mainline, shoulder, median, pedestrian or bicycle 
pathway, lighting and signal systems, pavement mill and overlays, seal coating, guardrail installation, and 
channelization. These services may be performed by the Providing Party’s own forces, or the Providing 
Party may administer outside contracts for such work. Construction administration may include letting 
and awarding construction contracts for such work (including state projects to be completed in 
conjunction with local projects). All contract administration services must be performed by an employee 
with sufficient skills, training, expertise or certification to perform such work.

3.5. Emergency Services. A party may provide aid upon request of the other party in the event of a man-made 
disaster, natural disaster or other act of God. Emergency services includes all those services as the parties 
mutually agree are necessary to plan for, prepare for, deal with, and recover from emergency situations. 
These services include, without limitation, planning, engineering, construction, maintenance, and removal 
and disposal services related to things such as road closures, traffic control, debris removal, flood 
protection and mitigation, sign repair, sandbag activities and general cleanup. Work will be performed by 
an employee with sufficient skills, training, expertise or certification to perform such work, and work 
must be supervised by a qualified employee of the party performing the work. If it is not feasible to have 
an executed work order prior to performance of the work, the parties will promptly confer to determine 
whether work may be commenced without a fully-executed work order in place. If work commences 
without a fully-executed work order, the parties will follow up with execution of a work order as soon as 
feasible.

3.6. When a need is identified, the State and the Local Government will discuss the proposed work and the 
resources needed to perform the work. If a party desires to perform such work, the parties will negotiate 
the specific and detailed work tasks and cost. The State will then prepare a work order contract. 
Generally, a work order contract will be limited to one specific project/engagement, although “on call” 
work orders may be prepared for certain types of services, especially for “Technical Services” items as 
identified section 2.1.. The work order will also identify specific deliverables required, and timeframes for 
completing work. A work order must be fully executed by the parties prior to work being commenced. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 120 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 4 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

The Local Government will not be paid for work performed prior to execution of a work order contract 
and authorization by the State.

4. Responsibilities of the Providing Party

4.1. Terms Applicable to ALL Work Order Contracts. The terms in this section 4.1 will apply to ALL work 
order contracts.

4.1.1. Each work order will identify an Authorized Representative for each party. Each party’s 
authorized representative is responsible for administering the work order, and has the authority to 
make any decisions regarding the work, and to give and receive any notices required or permitted 
under this MPC or the work order.

4.1.2. The Providing Party will furnish and assign a publicly employed licensed engineer (Project 
Engineer), to be in responsible charge of the project(s) and to supervise and direct the work to be 
performed under each work order contract. For services not requiring an engineer, the Providing 
Party will furnish and assign another responsible employee to be in charge of the project. The 
services of the Providing Party under a work order contract may not be otherwise assigned, 
sublet, or transferred unless approved in writing by the Requesting Party’s authorized 
representative. This written consent will in no way relieve the Providing Party from its primary 
responsibility for the work. 

4.1.3. If the Local Government is the Providing Party, the Project Engineer may request in writing 
specific engineering and/or technical services from the State, pursuant to Minn. Stat. Section 
161.39. The work order Contract will require the Local Government to deposit payment in 
advance. The costs and expenses will include the current State additives and overhead rates, 
subject to adjustment based on actual direct costs that have been verified by audit.

4.1.4. Only the receipt of a fully executed work order contract authorizes the Providing Party to begin 
work on a project. Any and all effort, expenses, or actions taken by the Providing Party before the 
work order contract is fully executed are considered unauthorized and undertaken at the risk of 
non-payment.

4.1.5. In connection with the performance of this contract and any work orders issued, the Providing 
Agency will comply with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. When the 
Providing Party is authorized or permitted to award contracts in connection with any work order, 
the Providing Party will require and cause its contractors and subcontractors to comply with all 
Federal and State laws and regulations.

4.2. Additional Terms for Roadway Maintenance. The terms of section 4.1 and this section 4.2 will apply to 
all work orders for Roadway Maintenance.

4.2.1. Unless otherwise provided for by contract or work order, the Providing Party must obtain all 
permits and sanctions that may be required for the proper and lawful performance of the work.

4.2.2. The Providing Party must perform maintenance in accordance with MnDOT maintenance 
manuals, policies and operations.

4.2.3. The Providing Party must use State-approved materials, including (by way of example and without 
limitation), sign posts, sign sheeting, and de-icing and anti-icing chemicals.

4.3. Additional Terms for Construction Administration. The terms of section 4.1 and this section 4.3 will 
apply to all work order contracts for construction administration.

4.3.1. Contract(s) must be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder or best value proposer in 
accordance with state law.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 121 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 5 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

4.3.2. Contractor(s) must be required to post payment and performance bonds in an amount equal to the 
contract amount. The Providing Party will take all necessary action to make claims against such 
bonds in the event of any default by the contractor.

4.3.3. Contractor(s) must be required to perform work in accordance with the latest edition of the 
Minnesota Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Construction.

4.3.4. For work performed on State right-of-way, contractor(s) must be required to indemnify and hold 
the State harmless against any loss incurred with respect to the performance of the contracted 
work, and must be required to provide evidence of insurance coverage commensurate with project 
risk.

4.3.5. Contractor(s) must pay prevailing wages pursuant to applicable state and federal law.

4.3.6. Contractor(s) must comply with all applicable Federal, and State laws, ordinances and 
regulations, including but not limited to applicable human rights/anti-discrimination laws and 
laws concerning the participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in federally-assisted 
contracts.

4.3.7. Unless otherwise agreed in a work order contract, each party will be responsible for providing 
rights of way, easement, and construction permits for its portion of the improvements. Each party 
will, upon the other’s request, furnish copies of right of way certificates, easements, and 
construction permits.

4.3.8. The Providing Party may approve minor changes to the Requesting Party’s portion of the project 
work if such changes do not increase the Requesting Party’s cost obligation under the applicable 
work order contract.

4.3.9. The Providing Party will not approve any contractor claims for additional compensation without 
the Requesting Party’s written approval, and the execution of a proper amendment to the 
applicable work order contract when necessary. The Local Government will tender the processing 
and defense of any such claims to the State upon the State’s request.

4.3.10. The Local Government must coordinate all trunk highway work affecting any utilities with the 
State’s Utilities Office.

4.3.11. The Providing Party must coordinate all necessary detours with the Requesting Party. 

4.3.12. If the Local Government is the Providing Party, and there is work performed on the trunk 
highway right-of-way, the following will apply:

4.3.12.1 The Local Government will have a permit to perform the work on the trunk highway. 
The State may revoke this permit if the work is not being performed in a safe, proper 
and skillful manner, or if the contractor is violating the terms of any law, regulation, or 
permit applicable to the work. The State will have no liability to the Local Government, 
or its contractor, if work is suspended or stopped due to any such condition or concern.

4.3.12.2 The Local Government will require its contractor to conduct all traffic control in 
accordance with the Minnesota Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

4.3.12.3 The Local Government will require its contractor to comply with the terms of all 
permits issued for the project including, but not limited to, National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and other environmental permits.

4.3.12.4 All improvements constructed on the State’s right-of-way will become the property of 
the State.

5. Responsibilities of the Requesting Party

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 122 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 6 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

5.1. After authorizing the Providing Party to begin work, the Requesting Party will furnish any data or 
material in its possession relating to the project that may be of use to the Providing Party in performing 
the work.

5.2. All such data furnished to the Providing Party will remain the property of the Requesting Party and will 
be promptly returned upon the Requesting Party’s request or upon the expiration or termination of this 
contract (subject to data retention requirements of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act and 
other applicable law).

5.3. The Providing Party will analyze all such data furnished by the Requesting Party. If the Providing Party 
finds any such data to be incorrect or incomplete, the Providing Party will bring the facts to the attention 
of the Requesting Party before proceeding with the part of the project affected. The Providing Party will 
investigate the matter, and if it finds that such data is incorrect or incomplete, it will promptly determine a 
method for furnishing corrected data. Delay in furnishing data will not be considered justification for an 
adjustment in compensation.

5.4. The State will provide to the Local Government copies of any Trunk Highway fund clauses to be included 
in the bid solicitation and will provide any required Trunk Highway fund provisions to be included in the 
Proposal for Highway Construction, that are different from those required for State Aid construction.

5.5. The Requesting Party will perform final reviews and inspections of its portion of the project work. If the 
work is found to have been completed in accordance with the work order contract, the Requesting Party 
will promptly release any remaining funds due the Providing Party for the Project(s).

5.6. The work order contracts may include additional responsibilities to be completed by the Requesting Party.

6. Time

In the performance of project work under a work order contract, time is of the essence.

7. Consideration and Payment

7.1. Consideration. The Requesting Party will pay the Providing Party as specified in the work order. The 
State’s normal and customary additives will apply to work performed by the State, unless otherwise 
specified in the work order. The State’s normal and customary additives will not apply if the parties agree 
to a “lump sum” or “unit rate” payment.

7.2. State’s Maximum Obligation. The total compensation to be paid by the State to the 
Local Government under all work order contracts issued pursuant to this MPC will not 
exceed $250,000.00.

7.3. Travel Expenses. It is anticipated that all travel expenses will be included in the base cost of the 
Providing Party’s services, and unless otherwise specifically set forth in an applicable work order 
contract, the Providing Party will not be separately reimbursed for travel and subsistence expenses 
incurred by the Providing Party in performing any work order contract. In those cases where the State 
agrees to reimburse travel expenses, such expenses will be reimbursed in the same manner and in no 
greater amount than provided in the current "MnDOT Travel Regulations” a copy of which is on file with 
and available from the MnDOT District Office. The Local Government will not be reimbursed for travel 
and subsistence expenses incurred outside of Minnesota unless it has received the State’s prior written 
approval for such travel.

7.4. Payment. 

7.4.1. Generally. The Requesting Party will pay the Providing Party as specified in the applicable work 
order, and will make prompt payment in accordance with Minnesota law.

7.4.2. Payment by the Local Government. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 123 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 7 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

7.4.2.1. The Local Government will make payment to the order of the Commissioner of 
Transportation. 

7.4.2.2. IMPORTANT NOTE: PAYMENT MUST REFERENCE THE “MNDOT 
CONTRACT NUMBER” SHOWN ON THE FACE PAGE OF THIS CONTRACT 
AND THE “INVOICE NUMBER” ON THE INVOICE RECEIVED FROM 
MNDOT. 

7.4.2.3. Remit payment to the address below:

MnDOT 
Attn: Cash Accounting
RE: MnDOT Contract Number ##### and Invoice Number ######
(See note in 7.4.2.2. above.)
Mail Stop 215
395 John Ireland Blvd
St. Paul, MN 55155

7.4.3. Payment by the State.

7.4.3.1. Generally. The State will promptly pay the Local Government after the Local 
Government presents an itemized invoice for the services actually performed and the 
State's Authorized Representative accepts the invoiced services. Invoices must be 
submitted as specified in the applicable work order, but no more frequently than monthly. 

7.4.3.2. Retainage for Professional and Technical Services. For work orders for professional and 
technical services, as required by Minn. Stat. § 16C.08, subd. 2(10), no more than 90 
percent of the amount due under any work order contract may be paid until the final 
product of the work order contract has been reviewed by the State’s authorized 
representative. The balance due will be paid when the State’s authorized representative 
determines that the Local Government has satisfactorily fulfilled all the terms of the work 
order contract. 

8. Conditions of Payment

All work performed by the Providing Party under a work order contract must be performed to the Requesting 
Party’s satisfaction, as determined at the sole and reasonable discretion of the Requesting Party’s Authorized 
Representative and in accordance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. The Providing 
Party will not receive payment for work found by the State to be unsatisfactory or performed in violation of 
federal or state law.

9. Local Government’s Authorized Representative and Project Manager; Authority to Execute Work Order 
Contracts

9.1. The Local Government’s Authorized Representative for administering this master contract is the Local 
Government’s Engineer, and the Engineer has the responsibility to monitor the Local Government’s 
performance. The Local Government’s Authorized Representative is also authorized to execute work 
order contracts on behalf of the Local Government without approval of each proposed work order 
contract by its governing body.

9.2. The Local Government’s Project Manager will be identified in each work order contract. 

10. State’s Authorized Representative and Project Manager

10.1. The State's Authorized Representative for this master contract is the District State Aid Engineer, who has 
the responsibility to monitor the State’s performance.

10.2. The State’s Project Manager will be identified in each work order contract. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 124 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 8 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

11. Assignment, Amendments, Waiver, and Contract Complete

11.1. Assignment. Neither party may assign or transfer any rights or obligations under this MPC or any work 
order contract without the prior consent of the other and a fully executed Assignment Contract, executed 
and approved by the same parties who executed and approved this MPC, or their successors in office.

11.2. Amendments. Any amendment to this master contract or any work order contract must be in writing and 
will not be effective until it has been executed and approved by the same parties who executed and 
approved the original contract, or their successors in office.

11.3. Waiver. If a party fails to enforce any provision of this master contract or any work order contract, that 
failure does not waive the provision or the party’s right to subsequently enforce it.

11.4. Contract Complete. This master contract and any work order contract contain all negotiations and 
contracts between the State and the Local Government. No other understanding regarding this master 
contract or any work order contract issued hereunder, whether written or oral may be used to bind either 
party.

12. Liability. 

Each party will be responsible for its own acts and omissions to the extent provided by law. The Local 
Government’s liability is governed by Minn. Stat. chapter 466 and other applicable law. The State’s liability is 
governed by Minn. Stat. section 3.736 and other applicable law. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal 
remedies a party may have for the other party’s failure to fulfill its obligations under this master contract or any 
work order contract. Neither party agrees to assume any environmental liability on behalf of the other party. A 
Providing Party under any work order is acting only as a “Contractor” to the Requesting Party, as the term 
“Contractor” is defined in Minn. Stat. §115B.03 (subd. 10), and is entitled to the protections afforded to a 
“Contractor” by the Minnesota Environmental Response and Liability Act. The parties specifically intend that 
Minn. Stat. §471.59 subd. 1a will apply to any work undertaken under this MPC and any work order issued 
hereunder.

13. State Audits

Under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 5, the party’s books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and 
practices relevant to any work order contract are subject to examination by the parties and by the State Auditor or 
Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this MPC.

14. Government Data Practices and Intellectual Property 

14.1. Government Data Practices. The Local Government and State must comply with the Minnesota 
Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all data provided by the State under 
this MPC and any work order contract, and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, 
used, maintained, or disseminated by the Local Government under this MPC and any work order contract. 
The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08 apply to the release of the data referred to in this clause by 
either the Local Government or the State.

14.2. Intellectual Property Rights

14.2.1. Intellectual Property Rights. The Requesting Party will own all rights, title, and interest in all of 
the intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks, and 
service marks in the Works and Documents created and paid for under work order contracts. 
Works means all inventions, improvements, discoveries (whether or not patentable), databases, 
computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, 
specifications, materials, tapes, and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or originated by 
the Providing Party, its employees, agents, and subcontractors, either individually or jointly with 
others in the performance of this master contract or any work order contract. Works includes 
“Documents.” Documents are the originals of any databases, computer programs, reports, notes, 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 125 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 9 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, disks, or other 
materials, whether in tangible or electronic forms, prepared by the Providing Party, its employees, 
agents, or contractors, in the performance of a work order contract. The Documents will be the 
exclusive property of the Requesting Party and all such Documents must be immediately returned 
to the Requesting Party by the Providing Party upon completion or cancellation of the work order 
contract. To the extent possible, those Works eligible for copyright protection under the United 
States Copyright Act will be deemed to be “works made for hire.” The Providing Party 
Government assigns all right, title, and interest it may have in the Works and the Documents to 
the Requesting Party. The Providing Party must, at the request of the Requesting Party, execute 
all papers and perform all other acts necessary to transfer or record the Requesting Party’s 
ownership interest in the Works and Documents. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Requesting 
Party grants the Providing Party an irrevocable and royalty-free license to use such intellectual 
property for its own non-commercial purposes, including dissemination to political subdivisions 
of the state of Minnesota and to transportation-related agencies such as the American Association 
of State Highway and Transportation Officials.

14.2.2. Obligations with Respect to Intellectual Property. 

14.2.2.1. Notification. Whenever any invention, improvement, or discovery (whether or not 
patentable) is made or conceived for the first time or actually or constructively reduced 
to practice by the Providing Party, including its employees and subcontractors, in the 
performance of the work order contract, the Providing Party will immediately give the 
Requesting Party’s Authorized Representative written notice thereof, and must 
promptly furnish the Authorized Representative with complete information and/or 
disclosure thereon.

14.2.2.2. Representation. The Providing Party must perform all acts, and take all steps necessary 
to ensure that all intellectual property rights in the Works and Documents are the sole 
property of the Requesting Party, and that neither Providing Party nor its employees, 
agents or contractors retain any interest in and to the Works and Documents. 

15. Affirmative Action

The State intends to carry out its responsibility for requiring affirmative action by its Contractors, pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. §363A.36. Pursuant to that Statute, the Local Government is encouraged to prepare and implement an 
affirmative action plan for the employment of minority persons, women, and the qualified disabled, and submit 
such plan to the Commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights. In addition, when the Local 
Government lets a contract for the performance of work under a work order issued pursuant to this MPC, it must 
include the following in the bid or proposal solicitation and any contracts awarded as a result thereof:

15.1. Covered Contracts and Contractors. If the Contract exceeds $100,000 and the Contractor employed more 
than 40 full-time employees on a single working day during the previous 12 months in Minnesota or in 
the state where it has its principle place of business, then the Contractor must comply with the 
requirements of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600. A Contractor covered 
by Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 because it employed more than 40 full-time employees in another state and 
does not have a certificate of compliance, must certify that it is in compliance with federal affirmative 
action requirements.

15.2. Minn. Stat. § 363A.36. Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 requires the Contractor to have an affirmative action plan 
for the employment of minority persons, women, and qualified disabled individuals approved by the 
Minnesota Commissioner of Human Rights (“Commissioner”) as indicated by a certificate of compliance. 
The law addresses suspension or revocation of a certificate of compliance and contract consequences in 
that event. A contract awarded without a certificate of compliance may be voided. 

15.3. Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 126 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 10 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

15.3.1. General. Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 implement Minn. Stat. § 363A.36. These rules 
include, but are not limited to, criteria for contents, approval, and implementation of affirmative 
action plans; procedures for issuing certificates of compliance and criteria for determining a 
contractor’s compliance status; procedures for addressing deficiencies, sanctions, and notice and 
hearing; annual compliance reports; procedures for compliance review; and contract 
consequences for non-compliance. The specific criteria for approval or rejection of an affirmative 
action plan are contained in various provisions of Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 including, 
but not limited to, parts 5000.3420-5000.3500 and 5000.3552-5000.3559. 

15.3.2. Disabled Workers. The Contractor must comply with the following affirmative action 
requirements for disabled workers: 

15.3.2.1. The Contractor must not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for 
which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The Contractor agrees to 
take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment, and otherwise treat 
qualified disabled persons without discrimination based upon their physical or mental 
disability in all employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

15.3.2.2. The Contractor agrees to comply with the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota 
Department of Human Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act.

15.3.2.3. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, 
actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with Minn. Stat. Section 
363A.36, and the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota Department of Human 
Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act.

15.3.2.4. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the commissioner of 
the Minnesota Department of Human Rights. Such notices must state the Contractor's 
obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in 
employment qualified disabled employees and applicants for employment, and the 
rights of applicants and employees.

15.3.2.5. The Contractor must notify each labor union or representative of workers with which it 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract understanding, that the 
Contractor is bound by the terms of Minn. Stat. Section 363A.36, of the Minnesota 
Human Rights Act and is committed to take affirmative action to employ and advance 
in employment physically and mentally disabled persons.

15.3.3. Consequences. The consequences for the Contractor’s failure to implement its affirmative action 
plan or make a good faith effort to do so include, but are not limited to, suspension or revocation of 
a certificate of compliance by the Commissioner, refusal by the Commissioner to approve 
subsequent plans, and termination of all or part of this contract by the Commissioner or the State.

15.3.4. Certification. The Contractor hereby certifies that it is in compliance with the requirements of Minn. 
Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 and is aware of the consequences for 
noncompliance.

16. Workers’ Compensation

Each party will be responsible for its own employees for any workers compensation claims. This MPC, and any 
work order contracts issued hereunder, are not intended to constitute an interchange of government employees 
under Minn. Stat. §15.53. To the extent that this MPC, or any work order issued hereunder, is determined to be 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 127 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 11 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

subject to Minn. Stat. §15.53, such statute will control to the extent of any conflict between the contract and the 
statute. 

17. Publicity 

17.1. Publicity. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of a work order contract where the State is the 
Requesting Party must identify the State as the sponsoring agency and must not be released without prior 
written approval from the State’s Authorized Representative. For purposes of this provision, publicity 
includes notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public 
notices prepared by or for the Local Government individually or jointly with others, or any 
subcontractors, with respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from a work 
order contract. 

17.2. Data Practices Act. Section 17.1 is not intended to override the Local Government’s responsibilities 
under the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act.

18. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue

Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs this master contract and all work order 
contracts. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this master contract or any work order contracts, or the breach of 
any such contracts, must be in the appropriate state or federal court with competent jurisdiction in Ramsey 
County, Minnesota.

19. Prompt Payment; Payment to Subcontractors

The parties must make prompt payment of their obligations in accordance with applicable law. As required by 
Minn. Stat. § 16A.1245, when the Local Government lets a contract for work pursuant to any work order, the 
Local Government must require its contractor to pay all subcontractors, less any retainage, within 10 calendar 
days of the prime contractor's receipt of payment from the Local Government for undisputed services provided by 
the subcontractor(s) and must pay interest at the rate of one and one-half percent per month or any part of a month 
to the subcontractor(s) on any undisputed amount not paid on time to the subcontractor(s).

20. Minn. Stat. § 181.59. The Local Government will comply with the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 181.59 which 
requires: Every contract for or on behalf of the state of Minnesota, or any county, city, town, township, school, 
school district, or any other district in the state, for materials, supplies, or construction shall contain provisions by 
which the Contractor agrees: (1) That, in the hiring of common or skilled labor for the performance of any work 
under any contract, or any subcontract, no contractor, material supplier, or vendor, shall, by reason of race, creed, 
or color, discriminate against the person or persons who are citizens of the United States or resident aliens who 
are qualified and available to perform the work to which the employment relates; (2) That no contractor, material 
supplier, or vendor, shall, in any manner, discriminate against, or intimidate, or prevent the employment of any 
person or persons identified in clause (1) of this section, or on being hired, prevent, or conspire to prevent, the 
person or persons from the performance of work under any contract on account of race, creed, or color; (3) That a 
violation of this section is a misdemeanor; and (4) That this contract may be canceled or terminated by the state, 
county, city, town, school board, or any other person authorized to grant the contracts for employment, and all 
money due, or to become due under the contract, may be forfeited for a second or any subsequent violation of the 
terms or conditions of this contract. 

21. Termination; Suspension

21.1. Termination by the State for Convenience. The State or commissioner of Administration may cancel this 
MPC and any work order contracts at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days written notice to the 
Local Government. Upon termination, the Local Government and the State will be entitled to payment, 
determined on a pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed.

21.2. Termination by the Local Government for Convenience. The Local Government may cancel this MPC 
and any work order contracts at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days written notice to the State. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 128 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 12 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

Upon termination, the Local Government and the State will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro 
rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed.

21.3. Termination for Insufficient Funding. The State may immediately terminate or suspend this MPC and 
any work order contract if it does not obtain funding from the Minnesota legislature or other funding 
source; or if funding cannot be continued at a level sufficient to allow for the payment of the services 
covered here. Termination or suspension must be by written or fax notice to the Local Government. The 
State is not obligated to pay for any services that are provided after notice and effective date of 
termination or suspension. However, the Local Government will be entitled to payment, determined on a 
pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed to the extent that funds are available. The State will 
not be assessed any penalty if the master contract or work order is terminated because of the decision of 
the Minnesota legislature or other funding source, not to appropriate funds. The State must provide the 
Local Government notice of the lack of funding within a reasonable time of the State’s receiving that 
notice.

22. Data Disclosure

Under Minn. Stat. §270C.65, subd. 3, and other applicable law, the Local Government consents to disclosure of 
its federal employer tax identification number, and/or Minnesota tax identification number, already provided to 
the State, to federal and state tax agencies and state personnel involved in the payment of state obligations. These 
identification numbers may be used in the enforcement of federal and state tax laws which could result in action 
requiring the Local Government to file state tax returns and pay delinquent state tax liabilities, if any. 

23. Defense of Claims and Lawsuits

If any lawsuit or claim is filed by a third party (including but not limited to the Local Government’s contractors 
and subcontractors), arising out of trunk highway work performed pursuant to a valid work order issued under this 
MPC, the Local Government will, at the discretion of and upon the request of the State, tender the defense of such 
claims to the State or allow the State to participate in the defense of such claims. The Local Government will, 
however, be solely responsible for defending any lawsuit or claim, or any portion thereof, when the claim or cause 
of action asserted is based on its own acts or omissions in performing or supervising the work. The Local 
Government will not purport to represent the State in any litigation, settlement, or alternative dispute resolution 
process. The State will not be responsible for any judgment entered against the Local Government, and will not be 
bound by the terms of any settlement entered into by the Local Government except with the written approval of 
the Attorney General and the Commissioner of Transportation and pursuant to applicable law.

24. Additional Provisions

[The balance of this page has intentionally been left blank – signature page follows]

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 129 / 138



MnDOT Contract Number: 1028027

Page 13 of 13

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017)

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSIONER OF TRANSPORTATION

The Local Government certifies that the appropriate 
person(s) have executed the contract on behalf of the 
Local Government as required by applicable 
ordinance, resolution, or charter provision.

By:

By: (with delegated authority)

Title: Title Assistant Commissioner or
Assistant Division Director

Date: Date:

By:
COMMISSIONER OF ADMINISTRATION

As delegated to Materials Management Division

Title By:

Date: Date: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 130 / 138



Page 1 of 4 MPC Program FY 2017-2022
Exhibit A - Table of Tech Serv

Used with TA98 Project IDs
If a source code is not on this list, a work order is needed.

Date: 04/20/2017

If a source code is not on this list, a work order is needed.
C:\Users\mcgi1tay\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\11GPM1KX\Exhibit A - Table of Technical Services 04-20-2017 SJB .xlsx

Source 
Code Title Description
0032 Business Unit Management All expenses of business/office managers for general management and administration of support functions. includes administering 

central facilities maintenance and facilities capital budgets.
0152 Support Services Work that supports general office management, system management such as entering data into SWIFT, PPMS, PUMA and other 

MnDOT systems, attending staff meetings and other indirect support activities.
0400 Equipment Calibration-Mat Insp Use when performing periodic equipment calibration for equipment used in the materials lab or on construction projects.

0600  General Training Attended All costs (time, registration, materials, travel expenses, etc.) for attending or participating informal or informal training, including 
conferences that primarily provide training.

1182 Soils/Foundation Field/Laboratory Tests All laboratory testing necessary to provide geotechnical information to complete roadway soils recommendations and approvals for 
use in the development of Final Design Plans and Special Provisions. Lab work includes R-value, resilient modulus, soil 
classification, gradation, proctor testing, unconfined compression, consolidation, direct simple shear, direct sheer, permeability and 
triaxial tests.

1312 Tech Assist-Outside MnDOT Use when providing technical assistance to an organization external to MnDOT.
1421 Bridge Management System 

Operation/Administration/Data
Use for tasks related to the Bridge Management System, including operations, administration, or data entry.

1434 Structural Metals Inspection-Non DOT Reviewing shop drawings furnished by suppliers, fabricators, and contractors (working drawing or calculations), and for tasks related 
to structural metals inspection (materials surveys, physical and chemical laboratory testing, material inspection and engineering, and 
technical services in the field and offices) for local agency projects.

1501 Traffic Management System (TMS) Used by traffic operations staff for all tasks that support the RTMC's operations center (or TOCC) providing traveler information, 
managing incidents and monitoring the FMS. Includes dynamic message sign maintenance, ramp meter maintenance, camera 
maintenance, and loop detection activities. Includes maintenance activities related to any ITS or TMS device such as RTMC cables, 
monitor wall, switchers, routers, or modems. Use to record all costs for maintenance activities related to traffic management fiber 
optics. Use for tasks related to maintaining traffic operations software including minor software enhancements and fixes. Use when 
providing traffic operations technical assistance external to MnDOT.

1513 Traffic Management System (TMS) 
Integration

For tasks associated with the incorporation of new and existing TMS devices (cameras, loops, DMS, and other ITS devices) into 
existing infrastructure to ensure proper operation. Use with the Construction/Program Delivery Appropriation.

1520 Pavement Management System For tasks related to the operation of the pavement management system, including development and maintenance/technical support. 
Includes tasks to meet needs external to MnDOT.

1716 Record Sampling Used by Materials and Research Section and district materials staff to verify inspector" sampling and testing procedures and 
checking inspectors' equipment during project construction as required by FHWA. Use when performing field tests on split sample.

1721 Traffic Sign Work Orders Use for work involved in preparing work orders for traffic signs. Use only with Maintenance Operations appropriation (T790081).

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 131 / 138



Page 2 of 4 MPC Program FY 2017-2022
Exhibit A - Table of Tech Serv

Used with TA98 Project IDs
If a source code is not on this list, a work order is needed.

Date: 04/20/2017

If a source code is not on this list, a work order is needed.
C:\Users\mcgi1tay\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\11GPM1KX\Exhibit A - Table of Technical Services 04-20-2017 SJB .xlsx

Source 
Code Title Description
1732 Material Testing & Inspection Performing construction phase and research physical and chemical laboratory testing, and related technical services in the districts 

and central labs, and for performing research and construction phase non-destructive testing materials surveys, and related technical 
services in the field and offices. Includes detour surveys. Non-destructive tests include, skid resistance and falling weight 
deflectometer (FWD) testing.

1733 Concrete Plant Inspections Performing QA/QC physical testing at the plant; sampling and transporting of materials from the plant to the lab for lab testing, plant 
reviews, and operations; investigating plant discrepancies; and other technical services in the plant or office associated with 
stationary concrete plants or mobile concrete paving plant inspection.

1734 Construction Materials Inspections Performing construction phase material inspection and engineering, for structural steel, precast and pre-stressed concrete, 
reinforcement steel, and electrical products and related technical services in the field and office for materials to be used in multiple 
projects. Includes travel time, sampling, and sample delivery. Includes tasks related to reviewing shop drawings furnished by 
suppliers or fabricators and contractor working drawings or calculations, and for tasks related to structural metals inspection 
(materials surveys, physical and chemical laboratory testing, material inspection and engineering, and technical services in the field 
and offices).

1735 Bituminous Plant Inspection Performing QA/QC physical testing at the plant; sampling and transporting of materials from the plant to the lab for lab testing, plant 
reviews, and operations; investigating plant discrepancies; and other technical services in the plant or office associated with 
bituminous plant inspection.

1738 State Project - Specific Materials 
Inspection

Performing material inspection for materials designated for a specific construction project (SP). Generally applies to inspection of 
such things as structural steel, prestressed concrete items, and most precast concrete items and for SP specific tasks related to 
structural metals inspection (materials surveys, physical and chemical laboratory testing, material inspection and engineering and 
technical services in the field and offices).

1800 Field Inspection Occasional construction project field inspection (not cyclical inspection of assets); Includes field inspection of materials such as 
gradations, densities/DCP, proctors, compaction, slump tests, and field air testsand collecting and transporting samples for lab tests, 
but not the actual laboratory verifications.

1870 Traffic Signal Maintenance This work will not substitute for or alter existing cooperative construction agreements or traffic signal maintenance agreements.  
Work related to the occasional repair and replacement of traffic signal system structures and all electrical maintenance for traffic 
signal systems including electrical power, labor, equipment materials, GSOC locates, traffic control and responses to public 
inquiries. 

1871 Lighting Maintenance & Utilities All work related to installing, maintaining, restoring, or removing highway lighting systems and fixtures. Includes repairing, 
maintaining, or replacing supports necessary for roadway lighting luminaries. Includes patrol highway lighting, inspect lighting 
structures, electrical service for highway lighting, re-lamping, pump stations, anti-icing systems, truck roll-over warning systems and 
electrical repairs. Includes traffic control in support of roadway lighting activities. Use for tasks related to public 
inquiries/complaints, review utility billings, provide data, and conduct field reviews.

1875 Locate One Call Finding and marking locations of buried conduit, cables, hand holes, loops, etc. in order to maintain or repair the traffic management 
system, signal systems, or roadway lighting systems.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 132 / 138



Page 3 of 4 MPC Program FY 2017-2022
Exhibit A - Table of Tech Serv

Used with TA98 Project IDs
If a source code is not on this list, a work order is needed.

Date: 04/20/2017

If a source code is not on this list, a work order is needed.
C:\Users\mcgi1tay\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\11GPM1KX\Exhibit A - Table of Technical Services 04-20-2017 SJB .xlsx

Source 
Code Title Description
1876 Traffic Counting Use to record labor, equipment usage, and material costs for activities related to traffic counts made for statewide traffic monitoring 

or traffic operations. Includes all activities related to traffic counting, such as taking requests, assigning priorities, collecting field 
data, processing data, and developing new techniques for collection.

2102 Patching Related source type codes: 2103-Heavy patching, 2104-Bituminous paving, 2105-Blow patching
2142 Overhead Sign Panel Maintenance Work related to the repair and replacement of overhead sign panels, extruded sign panels mounted on I-beams, and overhead sign 

structures. Includes related cable locates and traffic control. Does not include structural work.
2210 Guardrail-Install/Repair/Maintenance Install, repair, or maintain low tension cable, plate beams, and end treatments; cable tension adjustments; and reflector replacement. 

includes related traffic control.
2222 Sign/Delineation/Marker Repair Replacing, repairing, and washing signs (including temporary stop signs). Includes re-sequencing intersection signing and 

repair/replace overhead and extrude signs mounted on I-beams. Includes related cable locates and traffic control.

2316 Brush & Tree Removal Maintaining, watering, trimming, and removing highway right of way tree and brush. Includes chipping of tree limbs and stump 
removal/grinding. Includes related traffic control.

2624 Indirect Expense Indirect shop expenses and shop equipment. Allocate to mobile equipment.
2629 Supplies & Small Tools Shop tools, small equipment, and supplies that cannot be directly charged to a mobile equipment unit.
2819 Bridge Curb, Walk And Railing Repairing and maintaining bridge curb, walk, rail, coping, and fencing connected to the rail. Includes glare screen and median 

barriers on bridges. Includes related traffic control.
2820 Bridge Deck Work associated with bridge deck and slab repair regardless of removal depth or type of material used for patching. Includes deck or 

slab overlays and replacements and underside deck delamination. Includes related traffic control.

2822 Miscellaneous Bridge Maintenance This source code does not include replacement or major repair. Miscellaneous maintenance tasks performed on a specific bridge or 
structure not covered by other source codes. Includes minor repairs and simple fixes on items such as stairways, drains, fencing, light 
bases, transient guards, and access doors. Includes transient removal, ordering materials, and picking up equipment. Includes related 
traffic control.

2824 Bridge Inspection-Non-Federal All tasks related to inventory, inspection, and load capacity rating work done on trunk highway bridges to meet the requirements of 
the National Bridge Inspection System and/or Minnesota Bridge Safety Inspection Program or for billing to local governments. 
Includes related inspection reports and deck condition surveys.

2827 Bridge Expansion, Relief Joints All maintenance tasks associated with bridge expansion joints, except joint reestablishment. Includes tightening expansion device 
bolts and replacing seal glands. Includes related traffic control.

2828 Bridge Inspection-Federal Fund All bridge inspection tasks for non-MnDOT bridges funded by the federal Fracture-Critical Bridge Program (Project Code will begin 
with TSL and with the local bridge number). Includes related inspection reports. For MnDOT Trunk Highway bridges (Project Code 
begins with TSO followed by the bridge number) and local and Department of Natural Resources (DNR) (bridge number begins with 
9A follow by bridge number) bridge inspections to be billed to the local government or Department of Natural Resources (DNR) use 
Source Code 2824.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 133 / 138



Page 4 of 4 MPC Program FY 2017-2022
Exhibit A - Table of Tech Serv

Used with TA98 Project IDs
If a source code is not on this list, a work order is needed.

Date: 04/20/2017

If a source code is not on this list, a work order is needed.
C:\Users\mcgi1tay\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\11GPM1KX\Exhibit A - Table of Technical Services 04-20-2017 SJB .xlsx

Source 
Code Title Description
2829 Bridge Superstructure All tasks to repair any bridge component above the bridge seat that is not included in other source codes. Includes repairs to all types 

of bridge superstructure elements such as girders, beams, floor beams, trusses, stringers, t-beams, precast channels, and box girders. 
Includes related traffic control.

2830 Bridge Bearing Assemblies All tasks related to the repair and maintenance of fixed or expansion-bearing assemblies on bridges. Includes related traffic

2834 Waterway Maintenance All tasks related to waterway maintenance for deck bridges. Includes debris removal, waterway cleanup, channel repair, and channel 
protection repair that is not part of slope protection. Includes related traffic control.

2838 Bridge Deck Crack Sealing All tasks related to deck crack sealing. Includes related traffic control. 
2863 Traffic Signal Inspection Work related to cyclical structural and electrical inspection and preventive maintenance checks of traffic signal systems/structures. 

Includes labor, equipment, materials, and traffic control.
3000 Class Of Frequency Coordination Use for frequency coordination done with APCO, AASHTO or FCCA.
3002 Radio/Electronic Infrastructure Use for the repair and preventative maintenance of all equipment associated with wireless two-way radio communications systems 

(includes mobile radios, portable radios, base stations, console workstations, recorders, etc.). Non-MnDOT equipment - Must use 
Project number assigned to requesting agency; Department of Public Safety (DPS) includes State Patrol (SP) Bureau of Criminal 
Apprehension (BCA), Fire Marshall); does not include Department of Natural Resources (DNR). See OSRC Project

3005 Radio - Mobile Equipment Use for the repair and preventative maintenance of all equipment associated with wireless two-way radio communications systems 
(includes mobile radios, portable radios, base stations, console workstations, recorders, etc.). Non-MnDOT equipment - Must use 
Project number assigned to requesting agency (State Patrol, DNR, BCA, Fire Marshall). See OSRC Project Code list.

3009 Radio/Electronic System Upgrade & 
Installation

Use for the installation and other services needed to provide major system upgrades or improvements to wireless or electronic 
systems. Use for all work performed to correct or repair deficiencies found in a new installation.

3025 Tower/Building Maintenance Use for all tasks related to the maintenance of a tower building or site. Includes towers, buildings, generators, LP system, fencing, 
landscaping, grounding, ice bridge, cable management, climbing ladders, card key systems, and HVAC.

3027 Radio Programming Creating or modifying radio frequency programs and programming mobile and portable radios. Does not include mobile radios used 
as fixed base radios as part of the Inter-OP System (Use 3009).

3049 On Call Electronic Communications 
Infrastructure Maintenance

To be used by Statewide Radio Communications personnel to record on-call time.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 134 / 138



Sample Resolution (Rev. 07/25/12)

Whereas, The Minnesota Department of Transportation wishes to cooperate closely with 
local units of government to coordinate the delivery of transportation services and 
maximize the efficient delivery of such services at all levels of government; and

Whereas, MnDOT and local governments are authorized by Minnesota Statutes sections 
471.59, 174.02, and 161.20, to undertake collaborative efforts for the design, 
construction, maintenance and operation of state and local roads; and

Whereas: the parties wish to able to respond quickly and efficiently to such opportunities 
for collaboration, and have determined that having the ability to write “work orders” 
against a master contract would provide the greatest speed and flexibility in responding to 
identified needs.

Therefore, be it resolved:  

1. That the County of Le Sueur enter into a Master Partnership Contract with the 
Minnesota Department of Transportation, a copy of which was before the Board.

2. That the proper County officers are authorized to execute such contract, and any 
amendments thereto.

3. That the County Engineer is authorized to negotiate work order contracts pursuant 
to the Master Contract, which work order contracts may provide for payment to or 
from MnDOT, and that the County Engineer may execute such work order 
contracts on behalf of the County of Lesueur without further approval by this 
Board.

Approved this 16th day of May, 2017.

Attest:

By:_______________________________

Title:_____________________________

Date:____________________________

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 135 / 138



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 9

Commissioner Committee Reports

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 136 / 138



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, May 16, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 10

Future Meetings

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 137 / 138



Future Meetings
May-June 2017 

May 16, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

May 18, 2017 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

May 20, 2017 FRST Community Meeting, 10:00 a.m. at The Village Community 
Center, 201 1st Street North, Waterville

May 23, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
BKV / Justice Center Workshop
CIP Workshop

May 29, 2017 Memorial Day, Offices Closed

May 30, 2017 No Board Meeting

June 6, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m. 2017-2021 CIP Public Hearing
10:00 a.m. German-Jefferson Ordinance Public Hearing

June 8, 2017 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Environmental Services Building

June 13, 2017 No Board Meeting

June 14, 2017 Board of Equalization Meeting, 6:30 p.m.

June 15, 2017 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

June 20, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

June 27, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
Reconvene Board of Equalization, 10:00 a.m.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 5/16/2017 Page 138 / 138


